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A Journey
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As we reflect on a journey of growth, resilience, and
unwavering commitment to protection, we remain
focused on our core mission: to protect people,
businesses, and the environment—creating

lasting value for all who depend on our products.

For decades, we have navigated challenges through
teamwork, adaptability, and strategic coordination,
and today, our diverse and comprehensive product
line continues to set the standard for exceptional
safety across industries, households across the
regions.

As we look to the future, DPL remains committed to
exploring new horizons, driven by the same relentless
determination that has defined our journey—an
unyielding pursuit of protection and innovation.

DPL’s journey reflects the strength and resilience of migratory birds, where
success depends on collaboration, adaptability, and strategic coordination.
Like these birds navigating vast distances, we have faced challenges with

a long-term vision, steadily progressing toward growth and stability. By
working together, embracing change, and staying focused on our goals, we
remain committed to protection and innovation for future generations.

DL

Mryyouwﬁﬁm

Ee=FF

Scan the QR code with
your smart device to
view this report online




Contents

4
8
9

14
16
18

28

34
40

AN OVERVIEW

About the Report

About Us

Group Structure

Our Socio-Economic Impact
Highlights of the Year

Our Contribution to UN SDGs

LEADERSHIP

Joint Statement of the
Chairman & the MD

Board of Directors

The Corporate Management

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

50 Corporate Governance

100 Operating Context

106 Managing Opportunities &
Risks

114 SLFRS S1& S2 Disclosure

127 Snapshot of DPL Pulse:

ESG Roadmap 2030 Targets

& Performance

46
48

50

56
58

THE STRATEGIC
REPORT

Value Creation Model
Responding to Our
Stakeholders

Strategic Priorities & Resource
Allocation

Managing Tradeoff
Determining Material Matters

BUSINESS LINE
REVIEWS

134 Hand Protection
137 Plantations



142
147
148

198
234
252
280

406
408
412
414
416
420
422

THE CAPITALS
REPORT

Financial Capital
Investment Case
Social & Relationship Capital
149 Customer

162 Supplier

177 Community
Human Capital
Manufactured Capital
Intellectual Capital
Natural Capital

150 Material

288 Energy

292 Emissions

302 Water

306 Waste

308 Biodiversity

ANNEXES

Decade at a Glance

The Share

Horizontal & Vertical Analysis
Group Structure

Glossary

Independent Assurance Report
GRI Content Index

312

318

320

322

324

429
437

439
IBC

FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Annual Report of The 327

Board of Directors

Nominations Governance 328

Committee Report

Remuneration Committee

Report 329

Related Party Transactions

Review Committee Report 332

Audit Committee Report 333
337

338

339
340
343
345

SASB Standard

Notice of Annual General
Meeting

Form of Proxy
Corporate Information

Statement by the Senior
Independent Director
Responsibility Statement of
Chairman, Managing Director
& Chief Financial Officer
Statement of Director’s
Responsibility Report
Financial Calendar 2024/25
Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of Profit or Loss
Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Statement of Financial
Position

Statement of Changes

in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial
Statements




About the Report

OUR ELEVENTH INTEGRATED REPORT PROVIDES A BALANCED ASSESSMENT OF PERFORMANCE
AGAINST STRATEGIC PRIORITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2025.IT
COMPREHENSIVELY COVERS OUR OPERATING CONTEXT, GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK,
APPROACH TO STAKEHOLDER VALUE CREATION, AND OUR AGILITY IN NAVIGATING DYNAMIC
MARKET CONDITIONS.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY @& 225

REPORTING IMPROVEMENTS
The Report covers the operations of Dipped Products PLC and its subsidiaries for the ) _
period from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025. The Group adopts an annual reporting Allgnment. _W'th _SLFRS
cycle and there have been no major restatements of financial or non-financial Sustainability Disclosure

information unless otherwise stated. Standards S1and S2
N
N,
)
KA

Plantations

Adoption of the following
SASB standards:

Household & Personal
Products

Agricultural Products

Hand

\Protection

Chemicals

Apparels, Accessories &
Footwear

Medical Equipment &

The consolidated financial and non-financial information included in this Report SIS

relates to the activities at the Group level. The scope of our non-financial statements JOINT ASSURANCE
extends beyond financials to cover the Group’s risks and opportunities within its
operating environment, as well as its impact on key stakeholders. With a head office
in Sri Lanka, the Group’s operations are distributed across O7 countries. The DPL
Group structure is detailed on page 09. The narrative report focuses mainly on the the integrity of its reporting

Hand Protection Sector as this is the principle business of DPL, the parent company. framework. External assurance for

Employing a combined assurance
model, the Group ensures

Additionally, Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC, and Horana * the financial statements,

Plantations PLC are pgblicly Hs.ted gompa_nies that publish Armgal Integrated Reports « sustainability information (GRI) &
for FY 2024/25, covering detailed financial and non-financial disclosures of the
plantation sector. * the Integrated Report
Kelani Valley Talawakelle Tea Horana is provided by Ernst & Young.
Plantations PLC Estates PLC Plantations Internally, assurance is overseen by

the Board, the Audit Committee,
internal audit, and our senior
management. Furthermore,

the accuracy and reliability of
sustainability data are specifically
verified through mandatory
quarterly reporting to the Hayleys
QR Code for Annual Report QR Code for Annual Report QR Code for Annual Report Cube - Sustainability Portal,
managed by the Group ESG
Division.

SCAN ME SCAN ME SCAN ME

CHANGES TO REPORTI} GRI [PaZ

During the year, a new subsidiary was acquired , and other changes impacting the
Group’s size, shareholding, structure, and supply chain were assessed.

No major restatements were made to the previous Annual Report’s financial or
non-financial information.

4 DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



REPORT EVOLUTION

Enhanced comprehensive
& quantitative information

coverage of the capital
reports and Improved

connectivity throughout the

Report

Increased Adoption of
applicable SASB standards:

4

4
2
P
2

Agricultural Products

Household & Personal
Products

Chemicals

Apparels, Accessories &
Footwear

Medical Equipment &
Supplies

MATERIALITY

Throughout this Report, we have embraced the concept of materiality, focusing our attention on topics that are deemed to exert

Reporting the Progress
Made on DPL Pulse: ESG
Roadmap 2030 Targets
with detailed update on
actions taken in the year

Increased disclosures
on climate, energy,
emissions, biodiversity,
labour, community and
supply chain impact on
environment & society

Advanced Disclosure on
our Contribution to the
United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals

Progress towards
adoption and quantitative
disclosure of SLFRS
Sustainability Disclosure
Standards S1and S2

(The analysis was done by
utilising internal capacity
and resources with no
additional costs borne for
external resources.)

Alignment of Corporate
Governance Reporting as
per new requirements

Improved visual and
graphical presentation of
disclosures and increased
digital accessibility to the

Report

the most significant influence on the Group’s value creation process. We increased engaging with stakeholders and reported in
detail the impact we have on all Stakeholders throughout the Report. For an in-depth understanding of our double materiality
assessment and determination process, please refer to page 58 of this Report.

We have strengthened our reporting on environmental and climate change impacts through the adoption of key reporting
standards. Our Report now discloses key sustainability and climate-related risks and opportunities, identified by applying

applicable GRIs, SLFRS ST and S2 Sustainability & Climate Disclosure Standards, relevant SASB standards, and TCFD guidelines.
We also detail the strategies implemented to mitigate these risks while capitalising on the opportunities they present.

DIGITAL TOOLS AND ACCESSIBILITY TO THER

Flip 6 )
Version (ﬁ

PDF

Version

Inclusion of f.oa
QR links LDZIJ

This report is available in printed form and online at
https://www.dplgroup.com/investor-relations/w

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25
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About the Report

REPORTING FRAMEWORKS

The reporting landscape has shifted significantly from FY 23/24 to 24/25 with the introduction of several new standards mandating updated
disclosure requirements. To ensure full compliance, we undertook a careful evaluation of these standards and conducted a gap analysis to
identify necessary adjustments. We also facilitated awareness sessions for senior and middle management to deepen their understanding
and align processes with the new requirements. As a result, our financial and non-financial reporting complies with all mandatory regulations
and aligns with international best practice through the early adoption of SLFRS Sustainability Reporting Standards S1and S2 (commencing
with a climate-first approach via S2 in FY 23/24). The specific regulatory and voluntary frameworks, requirements, standards, and codes
guiding the preparation of this Integrated Annual Report are provided below.

Financial Reporting ESG and Sustainability Reporting Corporate governance

Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standards

Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards

The Companies Act
No. 7 of 2007

Listing requirements
of the Colombo
Stock Exchange

New GRI Standards (2021)

Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) Standards
UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)

10 principles of the UN Global Compact

Gender Parity Reporting Framework of CA Sri Lanka

Recommendations of the TCFD (Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures) disclosures

Non-financial reporting guidelines of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants, Sri Lanka

SLFRS S1 General Disclosures and Sustainability-Related Risks &
Opportunities Qualitative Disclosure

SLFRS S2 Climate-Related Risks and Opportunities - qualitative and
quantitative disclosure

CONNECTIVITY OF INFORMATION

The connectivity of information has been improved by the use of the following icons throughout the report.

THE CAPITALS

@i: Financial Capital

Human Capital

Natural Capital

Capital

Intellectual Capital

Social & Relationship

Manufactured Capital

STRATEGY

Profitable Growth

g
-
=%

Customers

Inspired & Dedicated

Employees Team

Innovation &
Digitalisation

@ 20 B

Suppliers

Business Partners Customer Focus

Government &
Regulators

i3

Climate Action

Value Chain & Community

Communities
Development

E

o B 12 g ¢ &
©

Investors

B
P
U
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Code of Best Practice
on Corporate
Governance issued by
CA Sri Lanka

CSE Listing Section
9 on Corporate
Governance

Listing requirements
of the Colombo Stock
Exchange Section 7

@ Hand Protection
ﬁ Plantations



THE JOURNEY OF INTEGRATED REPORTING

Our continuous adoption
of local and global best
practices in reporting
has consistently earned
us humerous awards and
industry recognition.

Bronze Award for Manufacturing
Companies turnover over Rs. 5 Bn.
category at the 55th CA Sri Lanka

Annual Report award.

" %

2017

Gold Award for Manufacturing
Companies turnover over Rs. 5 Bn.
category at the 53rd CA Sri Lanka

Annual Report award.

GOLD Award for Manufacturing
Companies - turnover above Rs. 5
Bn at the 56th CA Sri Lanka Annual
Report award.

e
(.

Bronze Award for Manufacturing
companies turnover over Rs.10 Bn
category at the 58th TAGS CA Sri

Lanka Annual Reports awards.

.

(&

Bronze Award for Manufacturing
companies turnover over Rs.15 Bn
category at the 59th TAGS CA Sri

Lanka Annual Reports awards.

\

.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

As the Board, we acknowledge our
responsibility to ensure the integrity of
this Report. We hereby confirm that the
2024/25 Report addresses all relevant
material matters and fairly represents
the Group’s integrated performance.
We also confirm that the Report has
been prepared in line with the guidance
provided in the Integrated Reporting
Framework of the International
Integrated Reporting Council.

Signed on behalf of the Board
G- =

Mohan Pandithage

Chairman

T,
R
—_ |:"¢F"
S
Pushpika Janadheera
Managing Director
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FY 2024/25 marks the 11th year of integrated reporting for DPL. By applying the principles of integrated
thinking to our decision making and strategy formulation, we have enhanced resource allocation,
enabling the Group to balance the diverse interests of our stakeholders. Furthermore, we have
significance, and credibility of our information to stakeholders throughout this decade.

Gold Award for Manufacturing
Companies turnover over Rs. 5 Bn.
category at the 54th CA Sri Lanka
Annual Report award.

GOLD Award for Manufacturing
Companies - turnover above Rs. 10
Bn. at the 57th TAGS CA Sri Lanka
Annual Report award.

FEEDBACK &
INQUIRIES

We welcome your comments,
suggestions and queries on this
Report; please direct your feedback
to:

(e}l 2-3

Chief Financial Officer

Dipped Products PLC

400, Deans Road, Colombo 10,
Sri Lanka

E-mail: postmast@dplgroup.com

SCAN ME



Aboul Us

26

We are a world leader in protective handwear, producing world-class products by leveraging top-quality
resources and innovative strength. Our operations are supported by over 2,570 employees in Hand
Protection and over 15,775 in Plantations, enabling us to serve diverse clientele across 70 countries and
reinforce our global standing.

We lead the global protective hand-wear industry as one of its most renowned manufacturers.

DPL Purpose Statement

OUR VISION

To be the preferred and
most sought after provider
of hand protection wear in
the world.

OUR MISSION

DPL strives to be the
preferred global hand
protection provider.

We are committed to the PHG;EEI:JTHNG
continual improvement of ALWAYS

our business processes and
systems. We shall comply
with environmental and
social obligations, meet
the aspirations of our
employees, suppliers and
shareholders and build
relationships of trust.

Our suppliers

We work closely with our suppliers
to ensure that we source the best
materials and maintain a sustainable
and ethical supply chain.

We are committed to providing our
customers with high-quality, reliable
gloves that meet their needs and
exceed their expectations.

We strive to create a workplace
culture that values and supports our
employees,recognising that they are

our most important asset.

We are dedicated to being a good We prioritise financial We prioritise sustainability and strive
corporate citizen and making a performance and accountability to reduce our environment impact
positive impact in the communities to deliver consistent returns to our through eco-friendly manufacturing
where we live and work. shareholders, while considering processes, energy-efficient
long term sustainability and ethical technologies and sustainable

practices in our decision making. practices.

8 DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



GROUP STRUCTURE
DPL is part of Hayleys PLC, one of Sri Lanka’s most respected, diversified and socio-economically impactful business

conglomerates. The Hand Protection and Plantation Sectors are run relatively independently. Three Regional Plantation
Companies, listed separately on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

<
a
V’—\
ER
E)
S5
o<
g
DPL France SAS
(96.7%)

ROZENBAL POLSKA
Sp.z.0.0
(96.5%)

Feltex (Pvt) Ltd

Hi-Care Thai Gloves
— Co.Ltd
(100%) (100%)
Hayleys Plantation Services (Pvt) Ltd
(66.7%)

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
(72.4%)
Horana Plantations PLC Talawakelle Tea Estates
(51%) PLC (74.7%)

Kelani Valley Resorts (Pvt)
Ltd

Kalupahana Power
Company (Pvt) Ltd
(60%) (100%)
Mabroc Teas (Pvt) Ltd
(100%)
Mab_roc East Meridian Blue Mountain TTEL Hydro Power TTEL Somerset Hydro
Africa Ltd Exports Tea Exports Company (Pvt) Ltd Power (Pvt) Ltd
(70%) (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd (100%) (100%)
(100%) (100%)

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



Our Products

10

UNSUPPORTED
GLOVE RANGE

Electrician

Household

Industrial

SUPPORTED
GLOVE RANGE

General Purpose Industrial

Sleeves Mechanic
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DISPOSABLE
GLOVE RANGE

Industrial
Industrial

Medical
Examination

Medical
Examination

SPORTS
GLOVE RANGE Equestrian

Cycling

Weight lifting
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Aboul Us

WHO WE ARE Cill 216

Founded in Sri Lanka in 1976, Dipped Products PLC (DPL) has evolved into one of the world's foremost manufacturers of
protective handwear, leveraging our deep roots and access to premium natural rubber - a cornerstone of our renowned quality.
This strategic advantage, combined with a steadfast commitment to innovation and sustainability, underpins our global reputation.

We command approximately 5% of the global demand for natural and synthetic latex-based household and industrial gloves.
Our expansive portfolio features over 750 world-class products - encompassing supported, unsupported, and disposable gloves
tailored for diverse household, industrial, and medical applications - sold across more than 70 countries.

Our global operations are seamlessly integrated, with five manufacturing facilities in Sri Lanka, two in Thailand and dedicated

marketing arms in Italy, France, Poland, India and Middle east. Headquartered in Colombo, this extensive network is powered by a
dedicated workforce exceeding 18,345 across our manufacturing and plantation sectors. We are a proud member of Hayleys PLC,
one of Sri Lanka’s largest, most respected, and diversified conglomerates.

-~

B/

wetlani UaueJ,

Plantations®

Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
produces tea, rubber and
other crops in 25 estates

HAND PROTECTION

Supported Unsupported Disposable
Gloves Gloves Gloves
Varieties Varieties Varieties

)
‘éi PLANTATION SECTOR

52/

talawake((e

Tea Estates®

Talawakelle Tea Estates
PLC produces tea and
rubber in 16 estates

Sports
Gloves

1

Varieties

Renowned for producing some of Sri Lanka's highest-quality tea and rubber across
26,166 hectares (55 estates, 4 districts), our plantation sector is led by three Regional
Plantation Companies (RPCs): Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, Talawakelle Tea Estates
PLC, and Horana Plantations PLC. Their reputation as leaders stems from being among
the country's most sustainable, innovative, and profitable operations. They drive the
industry forward by embracing nature-positive agriculture, implementing equitable
remuneration models, and pursuing technology-driven transformation.

HORANA

PLANTATIONS PLC

Horana Plantations PLC
produces, tea, rubber and
other crops in 14 estates

~

KEY MARKETS - HAND
PROTECTION SECTOR
BY VALUE

2% 1%
13% -

11% 54%

19%

® Europe

® North America

® South America
Asia/Africa/Middle East

® Australia/New Zealand
Local

KEY MARKETS - PLANTATION
SECTOR BY VALUE

1% 1%1%
a1

|

59%
34%

@ Indirect Exports
@ Asia/Africa/Middle East
® Europe
North America
® Australia/New Zealand

Local

12
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OUR COMPETITIVE EDGE

Advanced Commitment to Innovation and
= Quality Sustainability R&D capabilities

757 Varieties 5 Facilities in 4,000+ latex 34 certification in 94% renewable 13 Patents
of gloves Sri Lanka producers Hand Protection energy usage
supported and Plantation 15 New products
2 Facilities in sectors
Thailand 2 New patents
obtained
55 Estates
~

OUR PRESENCE AND SCALE OF OPERATIONS

We are a global leader in protective handwear, with customers spanning over 70 countries. Our diverse operations also include tea
and rubber plantations, distributing these commodities to key global markets via a network of over 200 brokers.

POLAND ITALY

Marketing and distribution of Marketing and distribution of household,

cleaning equipment industrial and medical gloves and

Revenue : Rs. 992 Mn personal protective wear

Employees : 11 Revenue : Rs. 8,240 Mn ' '
' J Employees : 20

UAE
Marketing and distribution of INDIA
household, industrial Marketing and
and medical gloves 1 distribution of .
l household, industrial
Revenue : Rs. 62 Mn )
i and medical gloves
Employees : 2
Revenue : Rs. 120 Mn
Employees : 6
FRANCE SRI LANKA ‘ THAILAND
Marketing and distribution of 5 Manufacturing Facilities ‘E 02 Manufacturing Facilities ——
cleaning equipment Revenue : Rs. 28,118 Mn Revenue : Rs. 8,041 Mn
Revenue : Rs. 2,706 Mn Employees : 1,903 Employees : 608 -
Employees : 20
Rs. 79 Bn
Manufacturing >2 3 5 70 Globaltdlstt;b_utlon Revenue
fac:|I|t|¢=.3s 2 5 countries Rs. 5 Bn
countries Net Profit

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25 13



Aboul Us

OUR SOCIO-ECONOMIC IMPACT iil201!

We play an important role in our nation’s economy, through our contribution to export earnings, tax payments, employment
generation, community upliftment and environmental conservation.

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED AND GENERATED
2024 19% 20%
Rs. Mn
To Employees as 16,935 15,345 64% 60%
Remuneration 7% 9%
To Government of Sri Lanka 1,606 1,430 4%
& Overseas as Taxes 6% 5%
To Shareholders as Dividends 1137 1,347 ° 6%
(J
To Lenders of Capital 1,950 2,251
Retained in the Business 5,056 5,227
® To Employees as Remuneration ® To Shareholders as Dividends Retained in the
26,684 25600 @® To Government of Sri Lanka & @ To Lenders of Capital Business

Overseas as Taxes

‘13%37 Employment opportunities created ) 4 ﬁ Community upliftment

We provide employment for a large number of direct and
indirect employees across Sri Lanka, and overseas, boosting
economic growth and development in those nations.

Benefiting over 21,000+ individuals, we focused on
Enhancing Living Environments, Promoting Health
& Nutrition, Building Community Capacity, and
Empowering the Community.

1,903 667

Sri Lanka Overseas

>21,000 | Rs. 17 Mn

Investment in

Investment in Beneficiaries

Emp_loyee employee training CSR
Retention Rate and development
G /
=
d%h
Engaging

A ‘ The foundation

cont|ngoust|y|W|th RS . 3 . 5 B n of our market 7 7

approximately ipli

4,000+ smallholder Payment It_o Latex :iiﬁifg;%“es New customers
Su lers

farmers and our pp customer base

diverse supplier and lasting

base, we foster

strong, mutually 1 OO% \r;(leakt]iaovneships 94%

beneficial . )
New suppliers screened nurtured with Customer

relationships that .

o our global

support local and 57% existing cust%)mer base Retention Rate
communities. '

suppliers evaluated for

ESG compliance
\ J N J

14 DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



N
,%\ Environmental sustainability é Good governance and ethical compliance
<&

DPL makes positive o, Zero tolerance
contributions to the 388A 5’548 policy towards Non

Zero Zero

Corruption Non-

environment, resource I inc.rease Mwh - compliance robust and comBlit
management, and the in rainwater Solar governance framework bribery P
communities it serves. harvesting power is monitored, ensuring

We vi.evv e.r.whanced. generated compliance and highest
sustainability practices ethical standards for

as vital for creating a satisfy transparency, 1 0 o O/
better future for all and 80/ accountability across all (o]
(o) operations. Compliance with local

beneficial for business (o)
94 /° laws and regulations

success. Reduction

Reliance on in carbon
renewable emissions
energy per pair

4 v, Supporting the development of N\ 4 Contributing to the growth of the
& capital markets @ export sector
As a major player

in the global rubber Rs.4o Bn

love market, servin .
d 9 Group export earnings

As a well-

established Rs.33 Bn

company, our q o q
pany Market capitalisation

performance a significant portion
and stability of global demand for
contribute natural and synthetic
to investor R 1 6 B latex-based gloves, 70
confidence in s e n we directly contribute +
the Sri Lankan Dividend declared to Sri Lanka's overall Countries reached
capital market. export earnings.
- J - J

4 Value creation to governments N\

2
As a leading manufacturer in the global rubber All taxes paid as per
glove market, contribute to government revenue R 1 6 B n operating locations’ tax
through various tax payments, that support S nllnm requlaiioEEEEE e
national development goals of the respective Taxes 9 filed on time
countries.

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25 15



Highlights of the Year

Rs. 79 Bn Catering @
Revenue 7o+ &
Countries
Rs. 75 Bn | Rs. 6.8 Bn Rs. 5.0 Bn
Rs. 6.47 Rs. 32.9 Bn
Rs. 1.90
Dividend per share Rs_ 1_4 Bn
Rs' 53'09 Rs. 4.4 Bn
Net Asset Per share Capital Investments

CAPITAL
MARKETS

v

Share Price 11,594

Rs. 63.00 Rs. 28.90 Rs.55.00
High Low Closing Shareholders

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



HAND PROTECTION
SECTOR

r New Products Launched

94%

Reliance on
Renewable Energy

21,000+

CSR Beneficiaries

80% 94% @;
Employee Customer
Retention Rate | Retention Rate

6%

Reduction in Scope
2 emissions YoY

PLANTATION SECTOR

@ 5

New Products Developed

4%

National Rubber Production

™ 5%

National Tea Production

—T

Rs. 36 Mn

Investment in R&D

Rs. 347 Mn

Investment in CSR

76%

Reliance on

Renewable Energy

520,000+

CSR Beneficiaries

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25




DPI’s Contribution towards Advancing the
UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

We believe that we have an obligation to incorporate sustainability into our value-creation procedures in a way that tackles
significant global sustainability issues and advances a fair and just future for all. We actively contributed towards accelerating
progress on achieving all 17 of the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals. Below is a summary of our 2024,/2025

contribution.

UN SDG
Goal No

UN SDG
Goals’
Targets

DPL Actions & Impact on Key Stakeholders

Capital reference for
details

1.2 DPL’s flagship CSR programme, the Firstlight Initiative, empowers rural Social & Relationship
farmers by creating sustainable livelihoods and increasing their income Capital
L& through targeted support and engagement.
1.5
2.1 “Sisu Divi Pahana” Mid-Day Meals Programme supports our belief that no Social & Relationship
59 child should choose between hunger and education by providing daily Capital
’ nourishment to 2000+ students from vulnerable communities, fostering a
healthier, brighter future.
3.4 DPL continues to invest in improving workplace conditions, providing Human Capital
mental health support through the DPL Careline, and offering
3.8 ) : : - )
comprehensive health insurance for employees and their families, while
39 extending its commitment to external stakeholders through CSR initiatives
focused on drug prevention, health camps, and medical care to promote
overall community wellbeing.
41to 4.5 DPL fosters inclusive learning and career development through 36 average Human Capital / Social &
4.7 annual training hours per employee, diverse upskilling initiatives, ESG Relationship Capital
training, and educational sponsorships, while externally empowering rural
youth with over 327 school supply kits, 36 scholarships, and enhancing
farmer capabilities through the Firstlight education programme benefiting
550+ farmers.
f§ o 51 DPI_. champions diversity, equity, and inclusion through a robust DEI and_ Human Capital / _Social &
5 Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy, the “Choose to Challenge” gender equality Relationship Capital
' initiative, and by empowering 1,273 female smallholder farmers through its
5.4 Firstlight sourcing programme, fostering a safe, inclusive, and equitable
- workplace and supply chain.
§ o 6.2 DPL enhances water stewardship through safe drinking water access, Natural Capital
6.3 upgraded sanitation, effluent treatment, and employee ESG training on
ﬁ : water conservation, while supporting communities with water infrastructure
6.4 donations and awareness sessions that foster responsible water use from
factory floors to rural farms.
6.5
7.1 DPL advances its path to energy independence and low-carbon Natural Capital
79 manufacturing through 4.8 MWp rooftop solar generation, 94% reliance on
’ renewable energy, rigorous Scope 1, 2, and 3 GHG assessments, and a LEED
73 Platinum-certified glove plant that exemplifies sustainable industrial design.
DECENTWORKAND 8.2to0 8.8 DPL drives inclusive and sustainable growth through automation, Al-driven Natural Capital

ECONOMICGROWTH

o

quality control, support for smallholders and SMEs, recyclable packaging,
inclusive hiring of women and rural youth, and a zero-tolerance stance on
child labour, forced labour, and modern slavery across its supply chain.

18
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UN

SDG

Goal No

UN SDG
Goals’
Targets

DPL Actions & Impact on Key Stakeholders

Capital reference for
details

—— 91to0 9.5 DPL strengthens sustainable innovation and supply chain resilience Natural Capital / Social &
9 e through upgraded resource-efficient systems, renewable energy adoption, Relationship Capital
biodegradable glove development, advanced automation, patent filings,
and inclusive supplier development programs that empower smallholders—
especially women—while upholding high environmental and labour
standards.
10.1 DPL advances equitable economic empowerment by creating decent jobs Human Capital / Social &
102 above minimum wage, supporting local suppliers and smallholder farmers, Relationship Capital
’ fostering inclusive hiring through its DEI policy, upholding zero tolerance
10.3 for discrimination across its operations and supply chain, and enhancing
- employee welfare with benefits like paternity leave and newborn gift packs.
na DPL strengthens community resilience and employee wellbeing by Human Capital / Social &
12 improving housing and transport access, supporting local cultural Relationship Capital
’ and religious initiatives, enhancing factory infrastructure for disaster
1.4 to 1.7 preparedness, controlling pollution near residential areas, and engaging in
tree-planting and environmental restoration around its operations.
12.2 DPL advances environmental stewardship by optimizing resource use, Natural Capital
2.4t0 minimizing waste, safely managing hazardous materials, promoting
’ sustainable rubber tapping, strengthening sustainability reporting, enforcing
12.8 sustainable procurement, and fostering stakeholder awareness through
ongoing communication and education initiatives.
13.1 DPL integrates DPL Pulse climate targets, SLFRS S1 & S2-aligned climate Natural Capital (SLFRS
122 risk assessments, and farmer education on sustainable practices into S1 & S2 Disclosure)
‘ its strategy—embedding climate resilience, science-based goals, and
13.3 adaptation planning into core business and value chain decisions.
141 DPL safeguards ocean and coastal ecosystems through upgraded effluent Natural Capital / Social &
14.2 treatment, low-impact logistics, beach cleanups, mangrove reforestation, Relationship Capital
‘ and marine conservation efforts—empowering both employees and local
communities to protect vital water-based habitats.
15.3 DPL champions biodiversity through its EcoPulse Nature Reserve, Natural Capital / Social &
159 ecosystem restoration in Lindula, compliance with the EU Deforestation Relationship Capital
’ Regulation, and integration of biodiversity targets and ISO 14001-certified
environmental systems into its sustainability strategy, ensuring nature and
industry coexist responsibly.
16.2 DPL enforces zero tolerance for corruption through its Business Code of Intellectual Capital
16.5 to Conduct, ethics policies, whistleblower channels, and supplier due diligence,
) while ensuring accountability via strong governance, employee training,
16.7 ESG transparency, and regular audits.
16.10
17.10 DPL advances ethical global trade and national development by aligning Social & Relationship
with international standards, expanding exports, partnering with global Capital
17 B [zl buyers and institutions, engaging in sustainability networks like UNGC,
@ 17.16 promoting fair trade through third-party audits, and collaborating
with stakeholders on initiatives rooted in transparency, livelihoods, and
1717 environmental stewardship.
1718
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Our Journey of Progress

-~

Our Journey of
Perseverance

annual migration between
the Arctic and Antarctic

The Arctic Tern perseveres
extreme conditions and
vast distances in pursuit of
survival. In the same way, DPL
remains steadfast in navigating
challenges, relentlessly
adapting, and pushing forward
to secure enduring success.

70,000 - 80,000 km

Our Journey of
Adaptability

The Pelican scoops up fish
and water efficiently with
a large beak measuring
approximately up to

18 inch.

The Pelican’s ability to

adapt and thrive with its
distinctive beak mirrors DPL's
approach—leveraging the
right tools and strategies to
overcome challenges and
seize opportunities, ensuring
sustainable growth and
success.

Our Journey of
Adaptability

10,000 birds, and

sometimes more, can
be found in a flock
during migration

The Common Swift
embodies DPL's dedication
to collaborative efforts—
adapting to changing
environments with resilience,
working together to navigate
challenges, and consistently
driving growth and
sustainability, regardless

of the season.

20
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Our Journey of
Precision

The Red Knot covers vast
distances swiftly and
efficiently, reaching speeds
of approximately up to

80 km/h

The Red Knot’s ability to
cover vast distances with
remarkable speed reflects
DPL's commitment to
agility—swiftly navigating
challenges and adapting
to dynamic conditions.

Our Journey of
Resilience

Migrates across vast
distances with a
wingspan of up to

1.7 m

The Greater Flamingo’s
ability to soar effortlessly
over long distances mirrors
DPL's commitment to
resilience—navigating
challenges and stretching
our limits to achieve
sustainable growth

and long-term success.

Our Journey of
Endurance

3,000 km is the bird’s

approximate migration
from the Arctic to warmer
southern habitats during
harsh winter months

The Snow Goose’s
determination to journey
across vast distances

in search of sustenance
reflects DPL's commitment
to perseverance—pushing
forward through challenges
and adapting to shifting
environments in pursuit

of lasting success.
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Performance Highlights
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STRATEGIC PRIORITY- FINANCIAL PERFORMANCES

Earnings Highlights

2024/25

2023/24

Revenue Rs. million 79,289 73,942 7
Gross Profit Rs. million 16,564 17,059 (3
Gross Profit Margin % 21 23 )
Operating Profit Rs. million 7172 7,729 (7)
Operating Profit Margin % 9 10 (@)
Profit Before Tax Rs. million 6,836 7,567 o)
Profit Before Tax Margin % 9 10 @)
Profit After Tax Rs. million 5,032 5,779 a3)
Return on Equity % 13 16 (3)
Return on Capital Employed % 14 17 (3)
Interest Cover Ratio Times 9 10 an
Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Days Days 75 78 (3)
Debtor Days Days 59 60 @)
Creditor Days Days 70 64 6
Cash Conversion Cycle Days 64 74 (10)
Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio Times 1.7 2.2 24)
Quick Asset Ratio Times 1.1 1.4 22)
Financial Stability

Total Assets Rs. million 74,616 63,913 17
Return on Assets % 7 9 2
Total Liabilities Rs. million 34,984 27,833 26
Shareholders’ Funds Rs. million 31,778 28,877 10
Non Controlling Interest Rs. million 7,853 7,203 9
Total Debt Rs. million 12,014 9,592 25
Equity/Assets No. of times 0.53 0.56 ®)
Debt/Equity No. of times 0.30 0.27 14
Net Debt (Cash)/Equity No. of times 0.08 0.02 >100
Debt/Total Assets % 16 15 1
Shareholder Information

No of Shares in Issue Number 598,615,120 598,615,120 -
Earnings per Share Rs. 6.47 7.47 a3)
Dividends per Share Rs. 1.90 2.25 (16)
Net Asset Value per Share Rs. 53.09 48.24 10
Closing Price Rs. 55.00 30.40 81
Market Capitalisation Rs. million 32,924 18,198 81
P/E Ratio No. of times 8.50 4.07 >100
Dividend Payout % 29 30 m
Dividend Cover No. of times 3.41 3.32 3
Dividend Yield % 3 7 )
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Manufactured
Capital

Human
Capital

@

Intellectual
Capital

Social &
Relationship
Capital

Natural
Capital

Manufacturing Performance

2024/25

2023/24

Property, Plant and Equipment Rs. million 30,107 23,971 26
Capital Expenditure Rs. million 4,407 4,325 2
Manufacturing Facilities- Locations HP 7 6 1
Manufacturing Facilities- Locations Plantations 55 55 -
Asset Turnover Ratio Times 114 115 m

An Inspired Team

Total Employees Number 2,570 2,224 16
Payments to Employees Rs. million 16,935 15,345 10
Employee Retention Rate % 80 84 )
No. of Promotions Number 51 27 89
Female Representation % 33 32 1
Investment In Training Rs. million n 7.4 49
Total Training Hours Hours 85,865 71,543 20
Average Training Hours/Employee Hours 36 33 9
Profit per Employee Rs. million 2.65 1.8 47
Revenue per Employee Rs. million 28.77 19.35 49
Value Added per Employee Rs. million 10.38 11.51 (10)

Products and Innovation

New Products Launched Number 15 22 (32)
Investment in R&D Rs. million 495 385 29
Customer Satisfaction % 85 87 (3)
Customer Retention % 94 97 )
Strength of R&D Team Number 20 19 5
New Customer Number 77 54 43

Sustainable Operations

Payments to Suppliers Rs. million 23,612 24,042 )
Beneficiaries Number 21,000 10,691 96
Investment in CSR Rs.million 17 19 10)
Instances of Socio-economic Regulatory Number Nil Nil -
Non-compliance

Small Scale Suppliers % 93 93 -

Environmental Performance

Energy Consumption GJ Mn 2.29 2.08 10
% of Renewable Energy % 94 93 1
Water Consumption M3 Mn 2 2 5
Carbon Footprint MtCO2e 26,238 25,735 2
Emission Intensity KGCO2e/per 0.09 0.10 10)
pair
Energy Intensity MJ/per pair 8.01 8.00 0.1
Water Intensity Liters/per pair 7.58 7.89 @)
Sustainable Water Sourcing Liters Mn 191 172 n
Instances of Environmental Non - Compliance Number Nil Nil -

Unless mentioned otherwise, the non-financial information relates to the Hand Protection operations, which is the focus of this
Annual Report. Information on the Plantation Sector is available in respective annual reports of Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (KVPL),
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC (TTE) and Horana Plantations PLC (HPL).
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Key Milestones

e

1976

Incorporation of Dipped
Products LTD |

1981

Capacity enhancement
by 166%

1982

Three-fold capacity expansion, plant automation |
and re-development of factory complex

1983

Listed as a Public Listed entity |
of the Colombo Stock Exchange

( 1986
Third capacity

expansion

THE ARCTIC TERN

This timeline charts Dipped Products
PLC’s journey of growth, innovation, and
resilience—from humble beginnings to a 1990

global presence in protective wear and Acquisition Of. rubber
plantations. thread operation

Mirroring the purposeful flight of the Arctic 1992 |

Tern, each milestone reflects our deliberate | ti fG t Ltd
progress, as we continue to overcome ngeleielilelnl CIEIerEE]e |

challenges, seize opportunities, and shape a Incorporation of DPL Plantations Ltd
future driven by transformation.
1993

Expansion of ’
Grossart Ltd

1994

Incorporation of Venigros Ltd and
installation of production lines

1995

Acquisition of KVPL. Commencement
of production at Venigros Ltd

1998

Incorporation of
Neoprex Ltd

1999

Commencement of production
at Neoprex Ltd

2002 | i

Acquisition of 60% stake

in ICOGUANTI S.p.A ltaly | f
2003 | ‘j

Incorporation of Texnil Ltd and | ¢ 4
Dipped Products (Thailand) Ltd
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¢ 2024
Launched “DPL Pulse” ESG Road Map for 2030. 2025

Incorporated Dipped Products India Private Limited.

2023 Acquisition of Hi-Care
Incorporation of DPL France SAS -

Acquisition of Rozenbal Brand Thal Gloves CO.Ltd.
Acquisition of ROZENBAL POLSKA Sp.z.0.0

Commencement of operations
at Central Warehouse Facility

Commencement of production
at DPL Sports Glove Facility

2021

Installation of Electrician glove plant in Dipped
Products PLC, Unsupported glove plant in Hanwella
Rubber Products Ltd, Supported glove plant and
knitting machines in DPL Universal Gloves Ltd.

2020

Installation of Unsupported Glove plant
in DPL Premier Gloves Limited

Commenced implementation of SAP ERP
system to Dipped Products (Thailand) Ltd

( 2018
Amalgamation of Grossart (Pvt) Ltd and
Neoprex (Pvt) Ltd with Dipped Products PLC

Installation of SAP ERP System to local
companies of the Hand Protection Sector

2016

Acquired 100% ownership
of ICOGUANTI S.p.A lItaly

. ‘ 2015
Commencement of DPL

Universal Gloves Ltd

2014

Commencement of DPL
Premier Gloves Ltd

2011

Acquired 66.7% ownership of Hayleys Plantation
Services (Pvt) Ltd, the holding company of TTE

2006

Acquisition of Hanwella
Rubber Products LTD

2005

Commencement of Dipped
Products (Thailand) Ltd
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Awards and Accolades

-

PRESIDENTIAL
EXPORT AWARD
Overall Award -
Innovative Export

Recognized for outstanding
innovation in export
product development

at the national level.

PRESIDENTIAL
EXPORT AWARD
Sectorial Award - Best
Exporter Latex Rubber
Product Category

Honoured for excellence
in exporting latex
rubber products at

a sectoral level.

NATIONAL SUPPLY CHAIN

EXCELLENCE AWARDS
Best Supply Chain
Practicing Organization -
Special Commendation
Award (Large Scale)

Recognized for exceptional
supply chain practices in
the large-scale category.

CA SRI LANKA ANNUAL
REPORT AWARD 2024
Bronze Award -
Manufacturing Sector

Recognized for excellence

in annual reporting in the
manufacturing sector (Group
turnover above LKR 20 BN)

We continue to be recognized for excellence in all aspects of our operations and
were the proud recipients of a multitude of awards and accolades during the year

SRI LANKA NATIONAL
QUALITY AWARD 2022
Winner - Manufacturing
Large Scale

Recognized for excellence
in quality and performance
in the manufacturing
sector - 2022

PRESIDENTIAL
ENVIRONMENT AWARD
Silver Award - Rubber
Based Products Industry

Recognized for outstanding
environmental practices in
the Rubber-based Products
Industry” by Hanwella
Rubber Products Ltd

26
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[ .cadership Review

Steering the Course
Much like the migratory bird that leads the formation and guides the flock to safsty,
DPLs Ieaders.h:p has been the driving force behind our journey, As we reflect on
the decisions, strategies, and actions that have strengthened our resiience, fuelled
global expansion, and upheld our clear vision for the future. we recognise
the steadfast guidance that has shaped our success.

the-Arctic) Ferm, renawned for s remarkabfe J1,000-kiameter annual mareion, embumes
and endurance. This unwavering damrmmanon mirrors aur faadwmp team sa,b.*my mﬂwﬂm
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Joint Statement of the Chairman
and the Managing Direclorea:=
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As DPL approaches its

50th year, we take pride

in our evolution into

a globally respected,
ethically grounded, and
innovation-led organisation,
underpinned by resilience
and a commitment to
sustainable value

creation. q




Dear Valued Stakeholders,

In a year defined by dynamic global
shifts and challenging market conditions,
DPL once again proved its mettle,
demonstrating resilience, sharp strategic
focus, and an unyielding commitment

to growth. Mastering headwinds from
geopolitical instability, exchange rate
volatility, and fluctuating raw material
costs, we achieved significant milestones
that reinforce our leadership in the hand
protection industry. As we approach

our 50th anniversary next year, this
performance powerfully underscores the
enduring strength forged over decades of
knowledge, innovation, and dedication.

Within this Integrated Annual Report
and financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025, we detail these
achievements. The report provides a
comprehensive overview of our strategic
initiatives and steadfast efforts to
navigate a complex operating context
while championing responsible and
sustainable growth.

OPERATING LANDSCAPE

The global operating landscape remained
complex and volatile during the year
under review. While demand dynamics
remained largely favourable supported
by an uptick in industrial demand, the
continued decline in Sri Lanka’s natural
latex production, together with the
shortfall in global supply during the year
led to a sharp escalation in raw material
prices. Meanwhile, the Sri Lankan Rupee
appreciated by around 6% (monthly
average exchange rate) during the period
in review, adversely affecting global
competitiveness and eroding margins.

A YEAR OF STRATEGIC
ACHIEVEMENT AND RESILIENCE

Despite the challenging operating
environment, the financial year 2024/25
was one of commendable progress.

We maintained momentum, driven

by robust demand for our specialised
industrial products, particularly as
geopolitical changes influenced sourcing
patterns. While the industry experienced
fluctuations, our strategic focus on
high-value, speciality products enabled
us to achieve strong capacity utilisation
throughout the year.

Group turnover increased by 7% year-
on-year (YoY) to reach Rs. 79,289 million
in FY 2024/25 despite the negative
pressure from appreciation of the Sri
Lankan Rupee; the Hand Protection
Sector recorded a Revenue growth of
8%, supported by robust volume growth
in household gloves and disposable
gloves which grew by 7% and 30%
respectively along with a favourable
shift in our product mix. Meanwhile, the
Plantation Sector delivered a Revenue
growth of 7% supported by both
improved volumes and better pricing.
However, this top-line performance

was partially countered by significant
pressure on gross margins, as the cost
of sales rose by 10%, largely driven by an
approximate 21% YoY increase in latex
prices. Moreover, operating expenses
recorded an increase, with distribution
costs growing by 3% to Rs. 2,013 million
due to increased sales promotions
activities. Administration costs increased
by 6% to Rs. 8,683 million, influenced

by employee-related expenses. The
Group’s Earnings Before Interest and
Tax (EBIT) thereby declined by 7% to
Rs. 7172 million during the year, with the
Hand Protection and Plantations Sector
recording a decrease of 5% and 14%
respectively.

On a more positive note, Finance costs
declined substantially by 34% with the
reduction in exchange loss compared

to previous year. Conversely, Finance
income contracted by 51% to Rs. 629
million due to the YoY decrease in the
exchange gains and interest income.
Other income recorded a notable
increase of 59% to Rs. 1,303 million,
significantly boosted by a gain on
bargain purchase of Rs. 370 million from
the acquisition of Hi-Care Thai Gloves
Co Ltd in Thailand. The cumulative effect
of these revenue, cost, and income
dynamics resulted in a 10% decline in
Group Profit Before Tax (PBT) to Rs.
6,836 million for the year under review.
The PBT reduction of Hand Protection
and Plantation segments were 4% and
19%, respectively. Notwithstanding
these profitability challenges, the Group
remained committed to generating
shareholder value by upholding dividend
payments.
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REVENUE

./

Hand Protection

® Plantations

REVENUE

Rs. 79 Bn

58%

N

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Rs. 6-8 Bn
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Joint Statement of the Chairman
and the Managing Director

«

Our growth is guided by
clear strategic priorities
global expansion,
product innovation, and
operational excellence
anchored in a deep
commitment to
sustainability and

resilience. ,
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AN AGILE STRATEGY

Our growth strategy remains focused

on aggressively expanding our global
reach while enhancing manufacturing
capabilities. A cornerstone of this
strategy was the major acquisition of the
Hi-Care Thai Gloves Co Ltd in Thailand.
This acquisition will enable a near 60%
increase in our disposable glove capacity,
a move that significantly strengthens our
presence in this segment and establishes
a two-factory footprint in the country. We
also expanded capacity of our existing
facility in Hanwella with the opening of

a state-of-the-art natural rubber chain
plant. Investments were also made in
targeted expansions in upstream and
downstream facilities, boosting packing
and chlorination capabilities to cater the
enhanced production capacities. Notably,
we have sought to embed principles of
environmental sustainability into our
capacity expansions with the new Sports
Glove Complex earning the prestigious
LEED Platinum Certification, the first for
a glove manufacturing facility in South
Asia.

Complementing this, we solidified our
presence in key growth regions, reaping
the full benefits of our established sales
offices in the Middle East and India,

and sought increased penetration in
new markets by strengthening sales
capabilities in Australia and South
America. Expanding our presence
beyond traditional markets remains a
key short-to-medium term priority as we
seek to further diversify our geographical
reach.

Concurrently, operational optimisation
remained a priority; while performance
of our French operations were below
expectations, we undertook a major
restructuring focused on cost reduction
and efficiency improvements, vielding
encouraging results. Our Poland business
demonstrated a significant positive
turnaround and our Italian operations
performed well above budget. Through
these efforts, we secured a customer
satisfaction score of 85%, reflecting

the effectiveness of our commitment

to meeting the evolving needs of our
customers during the year under review.

INNOVATION AS A DISTINCT
ADVANTAGE

What truly differentiates DPL is our
identity as a preferred hand protection
solutions provider. Innovation has
long-been embedded in our DNA,
shaping our product development
aspirations. We continued to leverage
our best-in-class R&D capabilities to
remain agile and forward-looking,
engineering optimal solutions to meet
evolving customer requirements. The
introduction of our Sports Glove range
in 2023 is gaining significant traction,
attracting customers with its unique
blend of novelty and technology backed
by our deep industrial expertise. We
also made considerable progress in
enhancing our product proposition in
niche segments such as sports and
electrical gloves.

Our commitment to product innovation
was also externally validated this year
when we received the Best Exporter
Award for Innovation at the 26th
Presidential Export Awards offered by
Export Development Board of Sri Lanka.
This reflects our ongoing efforts, which
included introducing two advanced
chemical-resistant gloves, securing two
new patents, and developing bespoke
product ranges for key clients.

We also strengthened our journey

of digital transformation during the
year, actively pursuing opportunities
to leverage technology in driving
efficiencies, enhancing the customer
experience, optimising our resource
footprint and providing deeper data
insights. Accordingly, we enhanced
automation through robotics, installed
new high-efficiency heaters, and
successfully re-engineered certain
processes to double production
capacity using the same energy and
water inputs. Resource efficiency
recorded major strides, exemplified by
reducing water usage significantly and
enhancing the reuse of processed water
through expanded Effluent Treatment
Plant capabilities.
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Joint Statement of the Chairman
and the Managing Director

«

We are shaping

the future of Hand
Protection through
innovation, digital
integration, and
environmentally
conscious operations
anchored in trust and

transparency. ’

TOTAL ASSETS

Rs. 75 Bn

NAVIGATING MARKET
DYNAMICS AND CHALLENGES

The global trade landscape continues
to evolve. The uncertainty surrounding
potential new tariffs, particularly in the
USA, remains a key focus area. With
approximately 25% of our Sri Lankan
exports and 10% of our Thai exports
destined for the US market (making it
our largest single country destination),
we are engaging with policymakers and
regulators to advocate for favourable
tariff structures. An unfavourable
outcome, placing Sri Lanka at a
disadvantage compared to competitor
nations such as Malaysia, Thailand, and
Vietnam, poses a significant risk that we
are working diligently to mitigate.

32

STRATEGIC INTEGRATION OF
ESG

We have long-since understood that
sustainability is not just the right thing to
do, but is critical for long-term resilience
and commercial success. As such we
continue to make inroads in strategically
integrating ESG considerations across
our culture, processes and decision-
making. Guided by our holistic ESG
Roadmap to 2030, DPL Pulse, we made
significant progress in achieving our
environmental and social aspirations
achieving nearly 94% renewable energy
usage across our operations and
obtaining third-party verification for
our disclosed full-scope GHG emissions.
We expanded our waste management
programme through new partnerships
and continued to uplift livelihoods via
our flagship CSR programme, DPL First
light positively impacting over 4,000
farmer families. Our environmental
stewardship extended to launching
biodiversity conservation projects,
namely the Eco Pulse Nature Reserve
and the Bambarakelle Estate Ecosystem
Restoration Project. As regulations

and customer requirements pertaining
to sustainability continue to escalate,
we are improving our processes and
reporting mechanisms to achieve full
compliance by the relevant timelines.
We are parallelly strengthening our
external corporate reporting, obtaining
external assurance on our non-financial
reporting and also further improving
disclosures under SLFRS S1& S2
Sustainability Disclosure Standards,
which we voluntarily adopted last

yvear. We are progressing towards full
alignment of the Standards by 2025,
systematically integrating sustainability-
related risk and opportunity assessment
into our decision-making processes

INVESTING IN OUR PEOPLE

In the Hand Protection Sector, our global
team of 2,570 highly skilled and capable
professionals remains central to our
resilience, agility, and continued success.
We continuously review remuneration

to address cost-of-living challenges and
ensure competitive benefits. Promoting
the highest standards of Occupational
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Health and Safety remains paramount,
highlighted by our annual “"Health &
Safety Week.” We have also broadened
the conventional focus on physical
aspects of health and safety, to include
mental and emotional wellbeing and
marked a major milestone during the
year with the launch of DPL Careline,
which provides a dedicated, confidential
counselling support for employees.
Moreover, we focus on upskilling and
career development, complemented

by initiatives to enhance employee
engagement.

UPHOLDING ETHICAL
CONDUCT & SOUND
GOVERNANCE

Strong Governance and Ethical Conduct
forms the bedrock of our responsible
operations. As a part of the Hayleys
Group, we benefit from the robust
governance structures, frameworks,
policies and procedures of the Group
and committed to nurturing a culture

of integrity and transparency across all
aspects of our operations.

The Hayleys Way and the DPL Business
Code of Conduct serve as our ethical
blueprint for all employees. The Group-
wide Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
also mandates an explicit zero tolerance
approach to bribery and corruption. The
Board is dedicated to ensuring these
principles are upheld, overseeing robust
governance frameworks and effective
risk management to mitigate potential
risks and protect stakeholder interests.

Accordingly, we maintained full
compliance with key corporate
governance standards, including the
Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules
and its latest revisions. Accordingly,
measures were taken to formulate and
publish relevant mandatory policies,
ensure board compliance requirements
and reconstitution of Board committees.
The Group also achieved compliance
to the requirements of the 2023 CA

Sri Lanka Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance.



BOARD CHANGES

We extend our heartfelt appreciation

to Mr. S. Rajapakse and Mr. F.

Mohideen for their dedicated service

to the DPL Board and wish them every
success in their future endeavours
following their resignations during

the year. We are pleased to welcome
Mrs. A.l. Wanigasekera and Mr.

T.A.B. Speldewinde to the Board as
Independent Non-Executive Directors,
and Dr. R.M.U.N. Rathnayake, who joined
as an Executive Director. Their wealth
of experience and strategic insight

will undoubtedly enhance the Board’s
effectiveness, and we are confident that
their contributions will play a pivotal
role in steering DPL toward continued
growth and success.

A FUTURE OF SHARED
SUCCESS

Looking ahead, the global landscape,
particularly concerning trade policies
including potential US tariffs, will
continue to reshape our industry’s
competitive dynamics. We will continue
to invest strategically, and explore new
geographic footprints should market
conditions necessitate, while building on
the strengths of our core manufacturing
bases in Sri Lanka and Thailand.

We enter our 50th year as an
innovative, environmentally and socially
conscious, capable, and ethical global
company. With a proven track record,

a strong financial foundation, strong
commitment to quality and service, and
a futuristic mindset driving continuous
investment, we are confident in our
ability to navigate the future and

create sustainable value for all our
stakeholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

At DPL, we are driven by a purpose
beyond manufacturing gloves; we strive
to be your trusted partner, dedicated

to delivering high-quality, specialised
hand protection solutions underpinned
by exceptional service and firm
commitment to sustainability.

Our success during the year would

not have been possible without the
steadfast guidance and strategic
oversight of our Deputy Chairman and
Board of Directors. To them, we extend
our profound gratitude.

To our exceptional leadership team and
every dedicated member of the DPL
family: your unwavering commitment,
ingenuity, and passion are the true
engines of our continued success and
resilience.

We extend our sincere gratitude to our
valued customers, suppliers, business
partners, and stakeholders. Your
continued trust and collaboration have
been instrumental in helping us navigate
challenges and emerge more resilient
and united.
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Chairman
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Pushpika Janadheera
Managing Director
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Board of Directors

Mohan Pandithage Rajitha Kariyawasan Pushpika Janadheera
Executive Chairman Executive Deputy Chairman Managing Director

Sarath Ganegoda Ramesh Nanayakkara Gamini Gunaratne
Non-Executive Director Executive Director - Overseas Non-Executive Director
Operations

Indika Prasad Chandika Ratnasiri Ms. Brindhiini Perera
Executive Director - Sales & Executive Director - Non-Executive Director
Marketing Engineering
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Nanda Fernando Professor Arjuna De Silva Yohan Perera

Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Senior Independent Director
Director Director

Ms.Anomi Wanigasekera Timothy Speldewinde Dr. Upul Rathnayake
Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Executive Director - Technical
Director Director & R&D
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Board ol Direclors

Mohan Pandithage
Executive Chairman
Appointed to the Board in 2007

Mr. Pandithage currently serves as the
Chairman and Chief Executive of Hayleys
PLC.

As an accomplished industry veteran
and respected leader in the field of
transportation and logistics, he was
honoured with the prestigious ‘Best
Shipping Personality” Award by the
Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers,

in recognition of his outstanding
contributions to the industry.
Additionally, he was presented with a
Lifetime Achievement Award by the
Seatrade-Sri Lanka Ports, Trade and
Logistics (SLPTL). He was the first Sri
Lankan to be awarded the Pinnacle
Lifetime Award by the Chartered
Institute of Logistics and Transport
(CILT). He was also inducted as a
‘Legend of Logistics’ by the Sri Lanka
Logistics and Freight Forwarding
Association, in acknowledgement of
his invaluable services to Sri Lanka’s
logistics industry.

Mr. Pandithage serves as Honorary
Consul of the United Mexican States
(Mexico) to Sri Lanka. He is a Fellow

of the Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport (UK) and a Member of
the Advisory Council of the Ceylon
Association of Shipping Agents (CASA).
He also serves as a Council Member of
the Employers’ Federation of Ceylon.

As an Executive Chairman of multiple
companies within the Hayleys Group,
Mr. Pandithage possesses extensive
leadership experience across a broad
spectrum of industries. In addition to
being the Executive Chairman of Dipped
Products PLC, he holds the position of
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
of Hayleys PLC and Executive Chairman
of Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fibre PLC,
Hayleys Fabric PLC, Talawakelle Tea
Estates PLC, Kelani Valley Plantations
PLC, Horana Plantations PLC, Alumex
PLC, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, The
Kingsbury PLC and Hayleys Leisure PLC.
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Rajitha Kariyawasan
Executive Deputy Chairman
Appointed to the Board in 2016.

Mr. Kariyawasan counts extensive
leadership experience in the
manufacturing sector, which includes
over 15 years in the Hayleys Group.

Mr. Kariyawasan was appointed as the
Deputy Chairman of Dipped Products
PLC in October 2020. A Member of the
Hayleys Group Management Committee
and a Director of Hayleys PLC since
2010. He has overall responsibility for
the Purification Products sector as the
Managing Director of Haycarb PLC and
as the Deputy Chairman of the Eco
Solutions Sector. Serves on the Board of
Sri Lanka Institute of Nanotechnology
(SLINTEC) as the nominee Director

of Hayleys PLC. He has also served as
the Chairman of the Manufacturing
Association of the Export Processing
Zone, Biyagama.

He holds a BSc. Eng. (Electronics

and Telecommunications) from the
University of Moratuwa, Sri Lanka and

is a Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants,
UK. In addition, he is also a Six Sigma
(Continuous Improvement Methodology)
Black Belt, certified by the Motorola
University, Malaysia.

3

Pushpika Janadheera
Managing Director
Appointed to the Board in 2017

Mr. Janadeera joined Dipped Products
PLC in August 2017 as the Director
Operations. Appointed as Deputy
Managing Director in August 2020.
Appointed as the Managing Director of
DPL and a Member of the Hayleys Group
Management Committee in January
2023.

He is a Council Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
Fellow Member of the CA Sri Lanka
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(Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka), Associate Member of the
Chartered Institute of Managements
Accountants (CIMA-UK), Associate
Member of Global Management
Accountants (CGMA) of UK and the
National Institute of Accountants of
Australia. He holds B Sc Accountancy
(special) degree and an MBA from the
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.
Former Director of Associated
Motorways (Pvt) Ltd and Director/
General Manager of Richard Pieris Tyre
Co, Ltd. Currently he serves as the
Chairman of the Sri Lanka Association of
Manufacturers and Exporters of Rubber
Products (SLAMERP). He served as

a Council Member of the Plastics and
Rubber Institute of Sri Lanka. Member
of the Sri Lanka Institute of Directors.
Former Member of the Advisory
Committee of Rubber and Rubber
Based Products & Plastics Sector of the
Export Development Board and Member
of the Polymer Advisory Committee of
the Ministry of Industries.

4

Sarath Ganegoda
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board in 2009.

Mr. Ganegoda is a Fellow Member of
CA Sri Lanka and Member of Institute
of Certified Management Accountants
of Australia. Holds an MBA from the
Postgraduate Institute of Management,
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.

Worked for Hayleys Group between 1987
and 2002, ultimately as an Executive
Director. Subsequently, held several
senior management positions in large
private sector entities in Sri Lanka and
overseas.

Has responsibility for the Strategic
Business Development Unit, Group
Information Technology of Hayleys PLC,
Deputy Chairman of Alumex PLC. He
serves on the Boards of Hayleys PLC,
Unisyst Engineering PLC, Haycarb PLC,
Hayleys Fabric PLC, Hayleys Fibre PLC,
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC, Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC, The Kingsbury PLC and
Horana Plantations PLC.



5

Ramesh Nanayakkara

Executive Director - Overseas
Operations

Appointed to the Board in 2014.

Mr. Nanayakkara joined Dipped Products
PLC in 1991. Appointed to the Board in
July 2014. He holds a Degree in

BSc Physical Science from University of
Sri Jayewardenepura. Fellow Member

of Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants - UK.

6

Gamini Gunaratne
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board in 2015.

Mr. Gunaratne has held diverse
leadership positions in both private and
state sector organisations

He presently serves as a Non-
Executive Director of Hayleys PLC,
Horana Plantations PLC, Vallibel Power
Erathna PLC, Swisstek Ceylon PLC,

and Sri Lanka Institute of Information
Technology (Guarantee) Limited (SLIIT).
He is also the Chairman of Lanka Hotels
and Residencies (Pvt) Ltd (Sheraton
Colombo). Previously served as Vice
Chairman of National Water Supply and
Drainage Board.

7

Indika Prasad

Executive Director - Sales &
Marketing

Appointed to the Board in 2018.

Mr. Prasad joined Dipped Products

PLC in 2001. He holds a Degree in BSc
Physical Science (Industrial Management
- Special) with First Class Honours from
University of Kelaniya and an MBA from
University of Colombo.

Recipient of the Award by the National
Institute for Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises; Middle management

Development Programme for SME’s of
Africa/South Asia - Administrative Staff
College of India. Served as a committee
member of the Sri Lanka - USA Business
Council.

8

Chandika Ratnasiri
Executive Director - Engineering
Appointed to the Board in 2022

Mr. Ratnasiri joined Dipped Products
PLC in 2007. He currently oversees the
Group Engineering Projects and leads
the maintenance of manufacturing
operations across the company’s
facilities in Sri Lanka and Thailand. He
holds a Bachelor of Science (BSc) and a
Master of Science (MSc) with First Class
Honors in Engineering from the Moscow
State University, USSR. He is a Member
of the Institution of Engineering and
Technology (MIET), UK.

He is a seasoned professional with 28
years of experience in engineering,
project and operations management,
and held pivotal roles in leading
multinational corporations across Sri
Lanka, Europe, and ASEAN regions.
His career is distinguished by a proven
ability to drive cross-functional
collaboration, optimize complex
processes, and deliver extra large-
scale industrial projects that align with
strategic business objectives.

9

Ms. Brindhiini Perera
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board in 2022.

Ms. Perera holds a Master’s degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London, with a strong academic
foundation in Manufacturing Technology
and Management, Entrepreneurship,
Corporate Finance, Statistical Analysis,
and Applied Mathematics. She began
her professional development at an
early age, undertaking internships at
Vallibel One PLC from the age of 13.
Since then, she has gained experience
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at both Vallibel One and Hayleys PLC,
contributing to strategic planning,
operations, and engineering-driven
initiatives.

She serves as a Non-Executive Director
in Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fabric PLC,
The Kingsbury PLC, Hayleys Leisure
PLC, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, Royal
Ceramics Lanka PLC, Lanka Tiles PLC,
Lanka Walltiles PLC, Vallibel One PLC,
The Fortress Resorts PLC, Delmege
Limited, Otwo Biscuit (Private) Limited,
The Canbury Biscuit Company Limited,
Manatee Clothing Company (Pvt)

Ltd and Dhammika & Priscilla Perera
Foundation. She also serves on the
Board of Eurocarb Products Ltd (UK)
and Haylex Ltd (UK).

10

Nanda Fernando

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointed to the Board in 2024.

Mr. Fernando is a Banker with over
four decades of experience in banking.
He is a Senior Fellow of the Institute

of Bankers Sri Lanka and possesses a
Master of Business Administration from
Sikkim Manipal University, India.

He currently serves as a Business
Consultant and possesses a proven
track record in strategic leadership,
business growth, financial management
and analysis, business development, risk
management, compliance, operational
excellence, stakeholder engagement
and relationship management.

He also serves as the Managing Director
of Professional Business Consultants
and a Non -Executive Director in
Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fabric PLC,
Hatton National Bank PLC and Assetline
Finance Ltd.

Prior to his current role, he served as
the Managing Director of Sampath Bank
PLC where he held several roles for 36
years from the year of its inception.
Earlier in his career, he served Hatton
National Bank PLC.
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Professor Arjuna De Silva

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointed to the Board in 2024.

Vidya Jyothi Senior Professor Arjuna De
Silva is a Professor of Medicine, Faculty
of Medicine University of Kelaniya. He
holds the Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery degrees as well as
a postgraduate Doctorate of Medicine
from the University of Colombo. He also
holds as a MSc from the University of
Oxford.

Professor De Silva is a Board Certified
Specialist in General Medicine. He was
awarded FRCP from the Royal College
of Physicians London. He is a Board
Certified trainer in Gastroenterology
and is a Fellow of the Royal College of
Physicians London as well as a fellow
of the American Gastroenterological
Association and National Academy of
Sciences of Sri Lanka.

He has won many research awards
including the Presidential Research
Award in the years 2001, 2006, 2008,
2010 2012 and 2013.

He has served as the Director General
of Sports Medicine, Team physician

for the London Olympics and Member
of the Medical panel for the National
Cricket Team. He also served as the
Chairman of South Asian Regional Anti-
doping Agency and Chairman of George
Steuart Finance Limited, Director of Sri
Lankan Airlines Limited and Member of
the National Science and Technology
Commission.

Professor de Silva’s other appointments
include Head of the Sri Lanka Cricket
Medical Advisory Committee, Member
of the National Sports Council, Chairman
of Sri Lanka Anti-Doping Agency
(SLADA), Member of the Board of
Management of the Post Graduate
Institute of Medicine Colombo and
Associate Editor of the World Journal of
Gastroenterology.
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Yohan Perera
Senior Independent Director
Appointed to the Board in 2024.

Mr. Perera is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and a Fellow
Member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, UK. He
served as the Managing Partner of
KPMG Sri Lanka, while also serving on
the KPMG Middle East & South Asia
Board during his tenure as Managing
Partner of the Firm. Prior to being
appointed as Managing Partner, he
functioned as the Head of HR, Risk
Management Partner and Chief
Operating Officer.

Mr. Perera counts over 40 years of
experience in audits of conglomerates
and listed companies with diversified
business interests. He served as the
President of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka during the
years 2006 and 2007. He also served as
a Board Member of the Confederation of
Asian and Pacific Accountants (CAPA),
one of four regional organisations
recognised by the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

He currently serves on the Boards of
Hayleys PLC, Haycarb PLC, Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC, Laxapana PLC,
Muller & Phipps Ceylon PLC, Overseas
Reality PLC and E B Creasy & Company
PLC. Has served as a Member of the
Securities and Exchange Commission
of Sri Lanka, Member of the Monetary
Policy Consultative Committee of the
Central Bank of Sri Lanka and Member
of the Governing Council of the Post
Graduate Institute of Management of the
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.
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Ms. Anomi Wanigasekera

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointed to the Board in 2024

Ms. Wanigasekera is the Senior Partner
of Julius & Creasy, a prominent law
firm, in Sri Lanka. She counts over 40
years of experience in commercial law
specializing in intellectual property and
heads the Intellectual Property Division,
overseeing drafting of contracts and
advising on regulatory and compliance
matters. She contributed significantly
to the field of intellectual property

and commercial law through her
publications.

She is a Member of the Bar Association
of Sri Lanka and Colombo Law Society.
She holds an LLM from the University
of Wales and post graduate diplomas in
Intellectual Property Law, International
Trade Law, Banking, and Insurance Law
from the Institute of Advanced Legal
Studies (IALS).

She currently serves as Independent
Non-Executive Director of Haycarb
PLC and Horana Plantations PLC,
Chairperson of the International
Trademark Association (INTA) South
Asia Anti-Counterfeiting subcommittee
for the term 2024/25, Vice President
of Asian Patents Attorneys Association
(APAA) Sri Lanka Group, Council
member of APAA, and India and South
Asia Global Advisory Council.
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Timothy Speldewinde

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointed to the Board in 2025

Mr. Speldewinde is a Fellow Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka and a Fellow Member of
the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK. He possesses wide
experience in managing local as well as
international facilities and has been an
integral member of the MAS Group for
over 26 years. He served as the CEO of
Stretchline Holdings headquartered in
Hong Kong, with manufacturing facilities
in Sri Lanka and overseas.

He currently serves as Independent
Non Executive Director of Hayleys PLC,
Haycarb PLC and Hayleys Fabric PLC.
Independent Non Executive Director
and the Audit Committee Chairman of
The Kingsbury PLC, Horana Plantations
PLC, Ceylon Grain Elevators PLC,

Three Acre Farms PLC and WealthTrust
Securities Limited. He is also Director of
Contemporary Ceylon (Pvt) Ltd.

15

Dr. Upul Rathnayake

Executive Director - Technical &
R&D

Appointed to the Board in 2025

Dr Ratnayake joined Dipped Products
PLC in 2016 as the Group Manager -
Research & Development and appointed
as General Manager/Head - Technical &
Research and Development in 2017.

Dr Ratnayake holds PhD in Polymer
Technology and Material Engineering
from Loughborough University, UK,
Post Graduate Diploma in Chemical
Analysis from the University of Colombo,
and BSc in Applied Sciences from the
University of Sri Jayewardenepura. He
was one of the founding members of
Sri Lanka's nanotechnology initiatives
and served as a Senior Scientist when
Sri Lanka Institute of Nanotechnology
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(SLINTEC) was started. He has over 25
years of experience in Research and
Development in the field of rubber/latex
processing and technology.

Currently, he holds the position of

Vice President of Plastics and Rubber
Institute of Sri Lanka (PRISL) and is

a Fellow Member of PRISL. He was
awarded Presidents Award for Scientific
Publications in 2009 and National
Technology Award in 2016 from National
Science Foundation (NSF), Sri Lanka.
He is also a Visiting Lecturer and an
External Examiner of the University

of Moratuwa and the University of Sri
Jayewardenepura.
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The Corporate Management

Prabath Mendis Ms. Vasana Wanigasekara Thusitha Perera Nilaksha Pushpakumara
Country Manager - General Manager - Sales General Manager - General Manager -
Thailand Operations Human Resources Operations

Sampath Kumara Asanka Fonseka Thomas Taddei Piotr Maciejewski
General Manager - General Manager - Sales & Country Manager - Country Manager -
Procurement & Logistics Marketing (DUGL/SPG) DPL France Rozenbal Polska

Amila Priyadarshana Andrea Certusi Gaurav Sharma
Chief Financial Officer Country Manager - Country Manager -
ICOGUANTI DPL India
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Hand Protection

Mohan Pandithage
Executive Chairman

Rajitha Kariyawasan
Executive Deputy Chairman

Pushpika Janadheera
Managing Director

Ramesh Nanayakkara

Executive Director (Overseas
Operations)

Indika Prasad
Executive Director (Sales & Marketing)

Chandika Ratnasiri

Executive Director (Engineering &
Projects)

Dr. Upul Ratnayake
Executive Director (Technical & R&D)

GENERAL MANAGERS/COUNTRY
MANAGERS

Prabath Mendis
Country Manager - (DPTL)

Ms. Vasana Wanigasekara
Sales

Thusitha Perera
Human Resources & Legal

Nilaksha Pushpakumara
Operations

Sampath Kumara
Procurement & Logistics

Asanka Fonseka
Sales & Marketing (DUGL/SPG)

Thomas Taddei
Country Manager - (DPL France)

Piotr Maciejewski
Country Manager - (Rozenbal Polska)

Amila Priyadarshana

Finance

Andrea Certusi
Country Manager - {COGUANTI)

Gaurav Sharma
Country Manager - (DPL India)

DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGERS
Tilak Warakawalage
Operations (DL)

Pradeep Silva
Engineering

Gamini Karunarathne
Process

Randika Prasad
Operations (DPTL)

GROUP MANAGERS/FACTORY
MANAGERS

Chamara Wimalawardena
Factory Manager (HL)

Nishantha Jayasinghe
Factory Manager (DPGL)

Hewage Kamal
Factory Manager (SPG)

Naleen Aththudawe
Factory Manager (DUGL)

Mohamed Farharth
Group Quality

Mohan Manuel
Group Production Planning

Roshan Jayasinghe
Group Procurement

Mohan Perera
Group TSP

Dinesh Wickramasuriya
Group Logistics

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25

Nishan Buddhika
Group Finance

Dinesh Thandakkara
Group Sales

Kapila Harischandra
Group Engineering & Environment

Tiron Peiris
Group Process Excellence

Lakmal Wickramarachchi
Group Packing Materials

Danushka Rathnayake
Group Projects

Kalana Devapriya
Group Quality Systems

Nithipong Navaparitthikul
Group QA/QC/WT (DPTL)

Nipol Samolee
Group HR/SMR/Packing/ME (DPTL)

Ms. Selvaraj Princy
Group R&D and Process Control (DPTL)

MANAGERS
Niroshana Baddage
Centrifuging & Latex Supplying (HL)

Thilina Samarathunga
Knitting & Plying (DUGL)

Ms. Sagarika Mayadunne
Quality Control (HL)

Pradeep Kumar
Human Resources (Zone)

Palitha Lankeshwara

Environment

Ms. Devaki Rodrigo
Laboratory (DL)

Ms. Vinodani Dabare
Regional Business Development
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Nilush Kumara
Compounding (HL)

Suranga Hettiarachchi
Production (DPGL)

Madhawa Wettasinghe
Engineering (DL)

Ms. Hasini Dangalle
Research & Development (DL)

Ashoka Chandranath
Glove Designing (SPG)

Damian Thomas
Regional Business Development

Ms. Asika Attanayake
Finance

Susantha Perera
Engineering (DL)

Chandika Bandara
Engineering (DPGL)

Premalal Punchihewa
Production (DL)

Jayanath Rupasinghe
Energy

Indika Wickramaratne
Information Technology

Ms. Saranika Kumararathne
Regional Business Development

Ms. Amanda Denuwara
Regional Business Development

Chamidu Buddhika
Research & Development (DUGL)

Ms. Lakmini De Silva
Sales & Marketing (DUGL)
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Janaka Jayasundera
Sourcing

Dhammika Kulathilaka
Compounding (DL)

Malinda Navarathne
Process Control (DL)

Ms. Sanuji Wijesekara
Regional Business Development

Buddhika Ariyarathne
Process Control (DUGL)

Ms. Chamathya Fernando
ESG

Kanishka Sethunga
Business Development

Dr. Asanka Jayasinghe
Research & Development (DL)

Danuja Kumara

Centrifuging & Latex Supplying (HL)

Dushantha Perera
ERP

Thiwanka Kannangara
Procurement

Rasanga Abeywardana
Process (DPGL)

Chathuranga Vijayananda
Finance

Gihan Udagama
Finance

Indika Krishantha
Central Warehouse (DPGL)

Ms. Shevanthie Perera
Marketing
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Mahendra Ariyapala
Health & Safety

Lakshitha Chathuranga
Production (DUGL)

Damitha Senadheera
Learning & Development

Amila Bandara
Engineering (HL)

Jinesh Munasinghe

Business Development (Disposable
Gloves)

Ms. Sanjeewani Abeysinghe

Human Resources & Administration
(Non-Zone)

Chandana Ranaweera
Finance

Thakshila Weerarathna
International Sales

Suditha Shamika
Engineering (DL)

Ms. Siriwan Jindarat
Business Development (DPTL)

Ms. Sasithorn Chuaybumrung
Procurement (DPTL)

Suresh Karunathilake
Finance (DPTL)

Sanjaya Kumara
Engineering (DPTL)

Ms. Siragan Woraphubet
Administration/QMR (DPTL)

Ms. Orawan Chaiharn
Environment Safety and Health (DPTL)



Enrico Giuliano
Commercial ICOGUANTI)

Ugo Torriani
Commercial Professional (ICOGUANTI)

Salvatore Barraco
Finance (ICOGUANTI)

Luca Parodi
Procurement & IT (ICOGUANTI)

Ms. Giuseppina Ageno
Product and Quality (ICOGUANTI)

Guillaume Sautreau
Procurement (DPL France)

Ms. Kelly Bui
Finance (DPL France)

Laurent Soubigou
IT (DPL France)

Ms. Anna Rey
Quality (DPL France)

Lukasz Grzechnik
Commercial (Rozenbal Polska)

Ms. Joanna Kamieniecka
Finance (Rozenbal Polska)

Piotr Lewandowski
Logistics (Rozenbal Polska)

Daniel John
Sales and Operations (Hi-Care)

Benley Costa
International Sales (Hi-Care)

Nobel Sebastian
Finance (Hi-Care)

Pramual Thongrakjan
Production (Hi-Care)

Kapila Jeewantha

Regional Business Development
(DPL Middle East)

Bappa Khan

Regional Business Development
(DPL India)
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Plantations

Mohan Pandithage
Chairman

Dr. Roshan Rajadurai
Managing Director - KVPL/TTE/HPL

KELANI VALLEY PLANTATIONS PLC
Anura Weerakoon
Director/CEO

OPERATIONAL DIRECTORS
Viren Ruberu
Low Country

Ranil Fernando
Rubber Marketing & Administration

Vidura Weerabahu

Finance

Dilum Pathirana
Up Country

GENERAL MANAGERS
Dr. Anuruddha Gamage

Human Resources & Corporate
Sustainability

Madhawa Wickramaratne
Marketing

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGERS
Senaka Fernando
Dewalakande

Indra Gallearachchi
Invery

Anura Senanayake

Crop Diversification & Export Agriculture

SENIOR DEPUTY GENERAL
MANAGERS

Eranda Welikala
Ederapola

Buddika Attanayake
Annfield
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DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGERS
Udeni Wanigathunge
Edinburgh

Senaka Dayananda
Engineering

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGERS
Susantha Wijesinghe
Information Technology

Kenneth Alles
Corporate Affairs

Chandana Wanniarachchi
Process Technology

Rajith Gnanasekeram
Glassaugh

Yasith Hettiarachchi
Fordyce

Eroshan Peiris
Pedro

TALAWAKELLE TEA ESTATES PLC
Senaka Alawattegama
Director/CEO

OPERATIONAL DIRECTORS
Nishantha Abeysinghe
Plantations

Thusitha Rodrigo
Strategic Performance Management

Ms. Vindya Perera
Finance

GENERAL MANAGERS
Eashan Perera
Marketing

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGERS -
ESTATES

Gimhan Jayathilake
Kiruwanaganga

Kosala Wijesekera
Somerset
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SNR. DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER -
ESTATES

Eranga Egodawela
Bearwell

HORANA PLANTATIONS PLC
Johann Rodrigo
Director/CEO

Buddhi Gunasekara
Director - Plantations

GENERAL MANAGERS
Ajith Nissanka
Finance

Pushpika Samarakoon
Corporate Affairs

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGERS
Wasantha Gunawardene
Up Country
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Expanding Horizons

Over the years, DPL has extended its reach far beyond Sri Lanka, establishing a strong
presence across Africa, Europe, Asia, and the Americas. Today, we are a global force,
serving industries from healthcare to industrial manufacturing, and providing essential
protection to millions of workers and consumers in diverse environments.

The Common Swift, known for its extraordinary migratory journey of up to 20,000 kilometers across continents
each year, symbolises our global journey. Just as these birds take strategic routes to ensure their survival, DPL has
strategically expanded its operations, embracing new markets to deliver protection wherever it is needed most.



Value Creation Mode

THE GROUP’S VALUE CREATION MODEL DETAILS OUR STRATEGIC DEPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL
OVER THE YEAR, AIMED AT CREATING SUSTAINABLE VALUE FOR ALL KEY STAKEHOLDERS.

Financial Capital
4 Equity

Rs. 39.6 Bn
2 Debt

Rs. 12.0 Bn

Human Capital

4 18,345 Employees
4 Rs. 33.0 Mn
Training and development

8)

Manufactured Capital

4 7 Manufacturing locations
4 55 Estates

4 Rs. 4,407 Mn investment
in property, plant and
equipment

2 Rs. 188 Mn IT expenditure

Intellectual Capital

2 20 R&D experts

4 41 Management and
system certifications

&

Social & Relationship Capital
2 4,000 + Farmer
Relationships

4 4,500+ other value chain
partners

2 700+ customers

Natural Capital
4 26,166 Hectares Land
extent

4 Raw materials consumption
27,100 MT

4 Energy consumption
2.29 GJ Mn

4 Water consumption
2.2 m*Mn

VALUE CREATION PROCESS

Our Vision

To be the preferred and most sought after
provider of hand protection wear in the world

Profitable Customer
Growth Focus

g™ (e

Value Chain (o)
1 ur Innovation and
and Community TTﬁﬁ Strate Digitalisation
Development gy 9
A \
Climate Inspired and
Action Dedicated Team
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Our Business is Driven by Two Verticals

Hand Protection

@ SN

Procurement of Research and Quality Packaging Global Marketing

Raw Materials  Development Assurance and Distribution
Plantations
-5 N 2
s = @ © &
Land Cultivation Harvesting Processing & Marketing and
Management Manufacturing Sales

Corporate Governance Risk Management
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Financial Capital

2 Rs. 79.2 Bn Group Revenue
2 Rs. 6.8 Bn Group PBT

Human Capital

4 711 New employees

2 36 Hours of training
per employee

£ Rs.16.9 Bn Payments
to employees

Manufactured Capital

8)

4 Rooftop solar across
5 operational sites

4 Platinum LEED certification
for the Sports Glove factory

4 Cost saving from Lean
Projects - Rs. 310 Mn

Intellectual Capital

5
()

4 2 new Patents obtained

2 15 New products developed
in 2024/25

Social & Relationship Capital

2 Rs. 364 Mn Investment in
community development

4+ Rs. 28,700 Mn Payment to
suppliers

4 Rs. 4.5 Mn Invested in
supplier development

L 77 new customers

Natural Capital

2 26,238 MtCO2e Emissions
generated

4 5,766 Mt Waste generated

4 2,150 MJ Renewable energy
generated

4 Assets increased by 17% YoY

2 Revenue increased
by 7% YoY

2 High calibre team

2 Rs. 29 Mn Revenue
per Employee

2 Rs. 10 Mn value
added per employee

2 Employee retention ratio 80%

4 The first green building-rated
factory in Sri Lanka

2 State-of-the-art
manufacturing facilities

2 Improved productivity
24 Enhanced efficiency

4 High-quality products

2 Sustainable production

4 Advanced technology
4 Cost optimisation

2 70% Local procurement

24 21,000+ CSR beneficiaries
2 Loyal customer base

4 Sustainable supply chain
2 Empowered communities

2 1% Increase in renewable
energy generation

2 94% Renewable energy usage

STRATEGIC PILLAR/SDG

m Profitable Growth

Inspired &
Dedicated Team

=6

;; Innovation &
= Digitalisation

Customer Focus

o

Value Chain & Community
Development

+

Climate Action

6 et 12 s
Raron

v cO
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Responding to Our Stakeholders

[l 2-29

We value strong relationships with diverse stakeholders, essential partners in our value creation process. Through ongoing
dialogue, we understand their evolving expectations and address them proactively. Stakeholder prioritisation considers both
their influence on our business and their potential impact on our operations. An overview of the Group's stakeholder engagement

activities for the year is provided below.

Step 4:

Step 1:

Review feedback

Identify risks/opportunities from
feedback and determine actions

STAKEHOLDER MAPPING

OUR
STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT
PROCESS

Step 4:
REVIEW
FEEDBACK

Step 3:

Conduct engagement

Conduct stakeholder engagement
according to the criteria identified
under step 2 above

CONDUCT
ENGAGEMENT

Step 1:

Stakeholder mapping
Criteria for identifying and
prioritising stakeholders

Step 2:

Determine approach

Determine the engagement approach and
mechanisms, including the required intensity,
frequency, and logistics

Investors & Shareholders

Engagement channel and
Frequency

Key concerns raised

Our response

(H/M/L)

Level of engagement

Annual General Meeting
(annually)

* Strength of corporate governance
and risk management practices

Annual Report (annually) .

Interim financial statements

Resilience and effectiveness of
the strategy

(quarterly) « Effective allocation of capital

< Announcements to the *« Opportunities for growth .
éﬂgg}ﬁgoftock SIS * Delivering ESG commitments

» Corporate website (ongoing) * Share price performance :

Press releases (when required)

One-to-one engagement
(when required)

Implications of macroeconomic
stress on performance .

« Clear, accurate and timely .
communication

Strong corporate governance
Proactive risk management practices

Prudent financial management
Low
Focus on preserving balance sheet strength

and liquidity

13%

Effective implementation of our strategy,
which led to strong earnings growth

Capacity expansion to cater to emerging
demand

Exploring opportunities in new markets

Implementation of DPL Pulse ESG roadmap

£\

HIGH

Return on Equity

Customers

Engagement channel and Frequency

Key concerns raised

Our response

(H/M/L)

Level of engagement

Customer Satisfaction Surveys (annual)

Customer Relationship Management
(ongoing)

Corporate website (ongoing)

Buyer visits to estates and factories (upon
request)

Participation in trade fairs (ongoing)
Customer grievance mechanism (ongoing)
Press releases (when required)

One-to-one engagement (when required)

48

* Superior product quality

* Ongoing investments in
innovation and value addition

* Uninterrupted availability of

products
* Price competitiveness

* Assurance of processes,
systems, and products

* Ease of transactions

* Responsible and sustainable

business practices

* Social and environmental
consciousness

* |nvested in enhancing distribution

efficiencies
Low

*+ Embedding sustainable practices
into processes and decision-
making

*« Ongoing compliance to quality,
safety, and environmental
certifications

85%
* Sustained focus on product and

process sustainability Rate
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Engagement channel and

Employees

Key concerns raised

Qur response

Level of engagement

Frequency (H/M/L)
< Engagement through trade <« Adequacy of remuneration given Significant investments in training and
unions (ongoing) « Safe and conducive work environment SIS NS ’ (\
. Z}enr;i;r;r;ance appraisals Attra.ct'\ve rewgrd schemes incllcing Inves.,ted |rT |mpr.ovmg emplo.yee féC|I\t|es Low.HleH 7777777777
medical benefits Provided financial and non-financial
* Staff meetings (ongoing) * Physical and mental well-being support .&‘P

Work-life balance initiatives
(ongoing)

Opportunities for skill development and

career progression
Grievance mechanism
(ongoing)

Continued emphasis on health, safety, and
well-bein
g 80%
Employee
Retention Rate

Closer engagement with trade unions

Engagement channel and

Suppliers & Business Partners

Key concerns raised

Our response Level of engagement

Frequency (H/M/L)
«  Supplier forums (annual) « Ethical business conduct « Timely payment of all dues to
* Relationship managers (ongoing) « Fair and transparent pricing ensure.contmuwty O SRIgllet? ’ A \
q operations )
mechanisms Low HIGH

Firstlight Programme (ongoing)
Corporate website (ongoing) > PRYITERE O Hine
Press releases (when required)

One-to-one engagement (when © Esso ol e

required) * Financial support in addressing

import restrictions

« Competency development and

capacity building

« Consistent demand for produce

* Increased visibility of future

demand @

« Supplier development programmes

* Focus on ensuring commercial
sustainability of suppliers through
financial and other forms of
support

of our natural latex
is procured from
4,200+ local farmers
through the Firstlight
programme

Communities

Engagement channel and

Key concerns raised

Our response

Level of engagement

Frequency (H/M/L)
* CSR and community « Community employment Recruiting from local communities

development initiatives generation . . A

———— Focus on reducing environmental A

<lellis * Community development and implications of operations ow T HGH

. Grlevance mechanisms corporate philanthropy Ongoing investment in community ©

(ongoing) L . o

* Minimising adverse environmental engagement initiatives ®B®

Press releases (when required) impacts

21,000+

CSR Beneficiaries

Government & Regulators

Engagement channel and

Key concerns raised

Our response Level of engagement

Frequency (H/M/L)
« Engagement at industry forums and * Generation of export income « Compliance with all government

corporate engagement platforms (ongoing) and conversion of proceeds regulations and guidelines ’ \

N,
* Written communications (ongoing) « Tax payments * Maintaining close and transparent low @ e
* Regulatory reporting (ongoing) * Support the achievement of :Elajllzssgps et el el | s—
national economic objectives 9 &
* Announcements to the Colombo Stock . —
« Timely payment of taxes

Exchange (ongoing)

One-to-one engagement (when required) regulitiens

and environment

Compliance with relevant

Contribute positively to society

* Generation of export income to
support Sri Lanka’s balance of

100%

Compliance with

payments
government
« Employment generation and regulations and
community development guidelines
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Strategic Priorities and Resource Allocation

Our strategy is framed by four strategic priorities that underpin our resource allocation decisions across the capitals whilst
balancing our business objectives and sustainability objectives to achieve triple bottom-line growth.

‘ Profitable Growth

Shifted our product mix towards
high value, specialised solutions that
command better margins.

Implemented in-house printing
capabilities for labels to realise
significant cost savings.

Implemented centralised warehousing
strategies to optimise inventory
management and distribution logistics.

Prudent logistics management,
underpinned by established long-term
contractual agreements with key global
shipping lines, enabled the mitigation of
the increase in freight costs.

By producing chemical dispersions
in-house from imported concentrated
powder instead of importing pre-
mixed, water-heavy versions, we have
substantially cut freight costs and
gained better inventory control.

Customer Focus

Progress in FY 2024/25

Established branch office in UAE,
positioning it as key regional centre.

Implemented predictive analytics to
improve forecasting accuracy and
optimise inventory management.

Addressed unique customer needs by
offering tailored glove solutions.

Invested in an electrician glove testing
facility in India to meet local demand
and enhance market validity.

Expanded the market reach in India and
Middle East through DPL Sales Offices
established.

Expanded glove market share in Europe
through ICOGUANTI, DPL France &
Rozenbal Polska.

Deployed representatives in Western/
Eastern Europe, Africa, Australia and
Asia to increase the market share.

Innovation and Digitalisation

Launched three new chemical gloves
offering optimal hand safety

Substantial investments in

plant technology, including the
implementation of robotic systems and
plant upgrades.

Deployed a fully digitised Electrician
Glove Testing Tracking and Monitoring
System.

Commenced the migration of key on-
premises servers to SharePoint Online.

Launched Microsoft Dynamics CRM.

Deployed advanced Al-driven
monitoring tools to improve security
management capabilities.

Launched a new platform for
unsupported chemical gloves, aiming for
market leadership in this segment.

Hand Strengthened the technology platforms
Protection Implemented lean management Participated in exhibitions at relevant developed for unsupported gloves
principles and waste reduction across International Trade Fairs to find new to differentiate our product from the
our manufacturing facilities. customers and to promote a new competition
DLt g Introduced the new EVPro glove,
Focused on special products for specifically designed for electrical
disposable gloves insulation within the EV industry.
Continued to meet production and Established an R&I (Research &
packaging standards, including the use Innovation) Centre dedicated to
of recycled materials in our transition to supported gloves, further strengthening
sustainable packaging solutions. our R&D and technical capabilities in
) this area.
Improved engagement with customers
to better understand their evolving Introduced high end value added
needs and expectations. chemical and cut resistance supported
Ensured compliance with a variety gloves
of certifications related to quality, Transitioned from on-premise SAP
environmental protection, occupational S/AHANA to the RISE with SAP cloud
health and safety, and food safety. platform.
Concentrated on creating high-value,
customised products specifically for
niche market segments.
50 DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25




Inspired and Dedicated Team

Ensured Human Resources policies and
procedures remain relevant to evolving
global trends and are revised promptly.

Introduced advanced recruitment and
selection practices to attract skilled and
talented individuals.

Strengthened Learning and Development
with innovative, sustainable solutions for
continuous learning and capacity-building.

Fostered a performance-driven culture
through a transparent reward and
recognition system via the Performance
Management System.

Enhanced succession planning to adapt to a
changing environment and support career
growth across all job levels.

Implemented the organisation’s Diversity,
Equity & Inclusion (DEI) Policy and drove
initiatives to increase diversity at all levels.

Developed the employer brand to be a
preferred choice for current and potential
employees by enhancing the employee value
proposition.

Ensured the CSR Policy and Framework are
relevant and up to date with global trends.

Developed a versatile workforce adaptable
to fluctuating order demands and work
schedules.

@ Climate Action

Progress in FY 2024/25

Initiated the Monthly ESG Forum, chaired by
the Managing Director.

Reviewed existing policies and procedures,
formulating new ones where necessary, while
supporting departments to implement them
(e.g., DE&I, CSR, Sustainable Procurement,
Anti-Bribery policies) through training and
awareness.

Ensured all standard reporting requirements
were met and kept current with new
requirements and trends.

Increased the range of sustainable product
offerings to include options such as
biodegradable materials, FSC®-certified
paper packaging/products, and fair-trade
certified rubber gloves.

Integrated ESG communication objectives
into the overall Group Communication/
Marketing Strategy, targeting at least two
communications per week.

Engaged with customers and suppliers to
understand their ESG requirements and
share progress on overall ESG commitments.

Initiated the due diligence processes for
EUDR compliance.

Introduced sustainable aspects such as
low carbon footprint, material circulation,
renewable material, biodegradability/
composability into our products.

Continued compliance with production and
packaging regulations.

Integrated recycling components in the
transition towards sustainable packaging
solutions.

Value Chain and Community
Development

TT@TT

Increased local supplier base in Sri Lanka,
Thailand and other key areas to ensure
uninterrupted supply chain.

Invested in technology and infrastructure to
support our Sri Lankan farmer partners.

Developed farmer bases in new regions such
as Ampara and Haputale.

Commenced the setting up of a local testing
lab in Moneragala.

Leveraged established shipping contracts for
favourable rates and space, helping to limit
cost pass-through to customers.

Set a Community Development Fund by
contributing an additional Rs. 5 per dry kg of
FSC-certified latex.

Implemented cost-saving optimising and
cost-saving measures.

Maintained ongoing engagement with our
local and international suppliers.

Rolled out the digital latex collection
application

Conducted supplier development
programmes.
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Strategic Priorities and Resource Allocation

()

Plantations

52

Resource Allocation

Measuring Progress

UDU Profitable Growth

Sustained investments in automation
and the mechanisation of processes.

Continuous allocation of resources
towards field development and
improvement.

A deliberate prioritisation of product
quality and overall productivity.

A persistent focus on expanding the
variety of crops cultivated.

55

Estates in
Sri Lanka

Rs. 4.4 Bn

CAPEX
Investment

Acquisition of a Glove Manufacturing
Facility

USD 264 Mn

Revenue Reported

14%
Return on Capital Employed

Rs. 6.47 Rs. 1.90

Earnings Per Dividend Per
Share Share

Net Asset Per Share

Customer Focus

Progress in FY 2024/25

Designated chemical-free fields for
cultivating premium tea.

Implemented Rainforest Alliance (RA™)
certified field management practices.

Adhered to established guidelines
and standards for product quality and
responsibility.

Focused on product innovation and
strengthening the customer value
proposition at Mabroc Teas.

Maintained a dedicated team focused on
upholding the quality and food safety
management system.

Rs. 2 Bn 36

Selling and Sales and

distribution marketing

expenditure experts in local
office

315

OEM/Private label partnerships

77

New customers

2

New markets
reached

85% 94%

Customer Customer
Satisfaction Score Retention Ratio
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Innovation and Digitalisation

Integration of new technologies to
reduce labour costs and improve
productivity.

Launched a structured programme
across 55 estates to encourage research-
driven solutions to critical challenges.

Rs. 188 Mn Rs. 495 Mn

Investment in IT Investment in R&D

and digitization

20 - 100%

R&D experts IT Security with
i Strict Access
controls

15

New products
(Hand Protection)

Rs. 310 Mn

Annual savings
from lean

16

New products in
the pipeline (Hand
Protection)

New patents
(Hand Protection)

Rs. 1,567 Mn

Revenue from New
Products




Inspired and Dedicated Team

@ Climate Action

Progress in FY 2024/25

Value Chain and Community
Development

Providing comprehensive life-long healthcare
for employees.

Two plantations maintained their "Great
Place to Work” (GPTW) certifications
throughout the year.

Conducted regular risk assessments across
all operational facilities.

Ongoing female supervisor programme.
Providing career development opportunities.
Offering youth empowerment programmes
with higher education support.

Provided First Responder training in
collaboration with Humedica.

Continued operation of mini-hydro plants.
Increased solar power generation.

The new factory in Kirwanaganga obtained
the Green Building Certification.

Operate effluent treatment plants across all
three estates.

Rigorous screening and due diligence
to verify their social and environmental
credentials.

Increased focus on crop diversification.

Commitment to biodiversity conservation
and ecosystem restoration.

Integrated Environment Conservation Model
for managing material usage, energy, water
consumption, emissions, and waste.
Adopting environmentally friendly
agricultural practices.

« Ongoing investments in supporting well-
being of our estate communities through
the “Home for Every Plantation Worker”
programme.

Resource Allocation

Rs. 16.9 Bn

Payments to
employees

Rs. 33 Mn

Investment in
Training

36 Hrs

Average Training

Recruitments per employee

Rs. 22 Mn

Investment in environment initiatives

Scope 3

GHG emissions assessment and
disclosure

388%

Increase in rain water harvesting

Rs. 364 Mn

Investment in
community
development

Rs. 28.7 Bn

Payment to
suppliers

Rs. 4.5 Mn

Investment in supplier development

18

Active logistic & distribution partners

Measuring Progress

80%

Employee retention
ratio
(Hand Protection)

Rs. 28.8 Mn

Revenue per
employee

Rs. 10.38 Mn

Value added per
employee

82%

Employee retention ratio (Plantation)

1.7 m3 Mn

Waste water treated

5,548 Mwh |
Solar power :
generated across
the group

59% 94%

Renewable Reliance on
material usage renewable energy

3,884MtCO2e

Total GHG Emmission offset
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New strategic
partners onboard

70%
Local natural latex
procurement

100% 57%

New Suppliers existing suppliers
screened evaluated for ESG
compliance

540,000+

CSR beneficiaries in Plantations



UU” Profitable Growth

Short-term

Efficiency and cost management
for streamlining operations to
enhance profitability

Investment in new manufacturing
facilities for expanding production
capacity, including a new sports
glove manufacturing facility

Market expansion - Strengthening
distribution networks in key
markets such as Italy, France and
Poland

Sustainability Initiatives

Long-term

Developing innovative glove
solutions to meet evolving
customer needs

Embedding environmental,
social, and governance (ESG)
considerations into business
strategy

Expanding presence in over
70 countries and maintaining a
competitive edge

Leveraging digitization and
automation to improve efficiency
and product quality

Strategic Priorities and Resource Allocation

Customer Focus

Future Focus Areas

Short-term

Promote DPL brands through a
specialised product range

Improve Industrial Sales in Europe

Expand market share in Mexico and
Brazil

Long-term

Use an outsourced platform to
cater to price-sensitive markets

Improve Electrician Glove Sales in
Europe

Expand market share in South
American countries

Innovation and Digitalisation

Short-term

Targeted a 10% increase in
production capacity for NR latex
products and a reduction in Cost of
Production (COP) through process
improvements.

Rationalised the portfolio of NBR
latex grades used for NBR glove
manufacturing across the group.

Long-term

Position DPL as “The Leader” in the
unsupported industrial chemical
gloves.

Strengthen the skills and
knowledge of R & D staff through
Postgraduate qualifications and
training.
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Inspired and Dedicated Team

Short-term

Increase 2 hours of learning (YoY)
for employees and measure
effectiveness

Establish a comprehensive Talent
Pipeline for technical skills

Develop and implement retention
programs focused on employee
engagement and satisfaction

Provide digital learning and
technology Integration

Enhance employee well-being &
cultivating a dynamic workplace

Implement innovative recruitment
and hiring practices to minimise
unconscious bias and paper
utilisation

Launch employee engagement and
retention programmes

Long-term

Establish a comprehensive talent
pipeline and succession planning

Implementation of continental shift

Carder rationalisation and
automation

Maintain healthy industrial relations

Future Focus Areas

Short-term

* Carbon Footprint Reduction
* Renewable Energy Expansion

* Implementing waste management
strategies to eliminate landfill waste

* Strengthening responsible
procurement practices to minimize
environmental impact

Long-term

* Aiming to meet nearly all energy
needs through renewable sources
by 2030

» Aligning operations with UN
Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs)

* Expanding eco-friendly production
methods, including LEED-certified
facilities

* Enhancing recycling and resource
efficiency across the supply chain

Value Chain and Community

% Climate Action el

Short-term

* Improve the latex collection
process by eliminating errors and
improving the payment cycle

* Increase the local source of natural
rubber

e Source alternative suppliers

» Achieve procurement savings from
other materials

+ Consolidate group freight volumes

Long-term

¢ Conduct supplier and Risk
Management
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Managing Our Tradeolls

Our strategic priorities demand prudent resource allocation, requiring trade-offs between various capitals. This often involves
balancing immediate gains with the pursuit of long-term value. The subsequent section will explore these capital trade-offs,
outlining their short-term and long-term dimensions within our strategic framework.

Profitable
Growth

Financial Capital

Strategic capital expenditures (Capex)
aimed at enhancing production capacity
and distribution capabilities involve a
deliberate reinvestment of financial capital
in the short term. This prudent approach,
while temporarily impacting immediate
liquidity, is foundational for unlocking
superior revenue generation and achieving
sustainable profit growth in the medium to
long term.

Human Capital

Strategic expansion of our operations
directly translates into the creation of
valuable new employment opportunities,
while simultaneously fostering an
environment conducive to professional

development and individual growth for our

human capital.

Intellectual Capital

Profitable growth fuels increased
investment in Research and Development
(R&D), which in turn builds and expands
our intellectual capital through innovation,
proprietary knowledge, and the
development of unique technological
capabilities.

Customer
focus

Delivering customer-focused product
offerings creates significant value for our
clientele, leading to accelerated revenue
growth and a corresponding positive
impact on our financial capital.

Increased customer focus enriches human
capital by creating new and evolving

opportunities in sales, marketing, and CRM,

while also fostering essential customer-
centric skills and mindsets across our
organisation.

By prioritising a customer-focused
approach, we capture deep customer
insights. These insights become a
cornerstone of our intellectual capital,
product innovation, service enhancements,
and the development of more effective
customer engagement models.

Innovation &
Digitalisation

Strategic investments in Research and
Development (R&D) and comprehensive
digitisation initiatives necessitate a
significant financial outlay in the short
term. However, this forward-looking
allocation of capital is engineered to yield
transformative returns in the long term
through pioneering product innovations
and substantial process efficiencies,
ultimately driving superior financial
performance.

Innovation and digitalisation augment
human capital by improving employee
productivity, while simultaneously
requiring and developing new skKill sets,
fostering adaptability, and enabling our
employees to contribute to higher-value
activities.

Through robust R&D capabilities, we
convert innovative ideas and research
findings into tangible intellectual capital,
such as new technologies, protected
inventions, and specialised expertise that
underpin our competitive edge.

Inspired and
dedicated
team

While dedicating financial resources to
invest in and support our employees
represents a short-term outlay, we

view this as crucial for cultivating talent
and securing a long-term competitive
advantage. Such investments consistently
translate into substantial organisational
benefits, manifested through improved
efficiency, increased productivity, and a
highly motivated, high-performing team.

An inspired team, nurtured through
investments that enrich the employee
value proposition, impacts our human
capital by creating a virtuous cycle: they
attract and retain top talent, drive higher
levels of engagement and discretionary
effort, promote knowledge sharing, and
build a resilient, innovative culture that
amplifies collective knowledge.

The engagement and motivation of our
team are foundational to our intellectual
capital. These attributes directly translate
into higher levels of skill development,
knowledge retention, and a proactive
culture of problem-solving and innovation,
all of which form the core of our
proprietary knowledge and capabilities.
Additionally, this also shapes a positive
brand reputation.

Climate action

Transitioning to sustainable energy sources
such as biomass and solar power involves
a significant upfront cost in financial
resources. Nevertheless, these investments
are projected to deliver sustained and
material cost savings in the long run,
validating the initial capital expenditure.

Embracing climate action translates
beyond just an improved working
environment; it helps nurture a stronger
sense of purpose among our employees,
bolsters our Employee Value Proposition
(EVP), and positions us as a responsible
employer, thereby attracting and retaining
top talent aligned with these values.

Pioneering R&D into sustainable products,
including compostable gloves, is a

key climate action that generates core
intellectual capital through the creation of
novel technologies, proprietary processes,
and unique material expertise, while also
driving environmental sustainability.

Value

chain and
community
development

Strategic investments in developing

our value chain are designed to foster
significant supply chain efficiencies,
thereby creating a positive and sustainable
impact on our financial capital in the
medium to long term.

Our strategic involvement in shaping and
communicating CSR efforts across the
value chain goes beyond just improving
employee engagement and satisfaction.

It reinforces our Employee Value
Proposition (EVP) by demonstrating
tangible commitment to ethical practices,
thereby making the our organisation more
attractive to talent and fostering deeper
loyalty among our employees.

Strategic partnerships across our value
chain, designed to create broader
community impact, simultaneously build
valuable intellectual capital. This includes
gaining deep local insights, fostering
strong relational capital with community
stakeholders, and co-creating solutions
that address community needs, which can
spark innovation and enhance our social
license to operate.

56
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‘ Natural Capital Social and Relationship Capital

By strategically reinvesting profits into state-of-
the-art, eco-efficient technologies, we not only
reduce our environmental impact (preserving
natural capital) but can also achieve operational
savings that further fuel profit growth. This
creates a virtuous cycle where financial success

enables enhanced stewardship of natural capital.

Achieving sustainable, profitable growth

allows us to provide consistent and fair returns
(dividends, salaries, payments), which solidifies
our Stakeholder and Relationship Capital. This
reliability fosters an environment of trust and
predictability, encouraging deeper engagement
and long-term commitment from all key
stakeholders.

@) Manufactured Capital

Sustained profitable growth empowers us to
continuously invest in enhancing production
capacity and optimising distribution systems.
These investments are key to modernising and
expanding our manufactured capital, leading to
greater operational efficiency and market reach.

Understanding that our customers increasingly
value transparency and environmental
stewardship, our commitment to product
certifications and industry standards directly
supports the preservation of natural capital. This
adherence to best practices provides customers
with credible assurance of our responsible
resource management, aligning our operations
with their values and strengthening their
preference for our brand.

By prioritising customer focus and fostering
closer engagement, we cultivate robust
Stakeholder and Relationship Capital. This
manifests as strong customer loyalty, increased
advocacy, and a deeper understanding of their
evolving needs, all vital for long-term success.

Responding directly to evolving customer needs,
our strategic enhancements to sales, digital
infrastructure, and capacity improvements
continuously build and refine our manufactured
capital, ensuring it is aligned with delivering
optimal customer value.

Leveraging innovation and digitalisation enables
us to proactively enhance our stewardship

of natural capital. This includes developing
solutions that optimise resource consumption,
reduce emissions, and support the regeneration
of ecosystems where possible.

Leveraging innovation, such as digitalisation for
operational efficiencies, is key to strengthening
the customer relationship component. Improved
customer satisfaction resulting from these
efficiencies builds a foundation of trust and
encourages long-term loyalty.

The strategic improvement of our digital
infrastructure, a direct result of ongoing
innovation, significantly enhances our
manufactured capital, enabling greater
operational efficiency, scalability, and new
service delivery models.

An engaged and environmentally aware team

is instrumental in safeguarding natural capital.
Their productive efforts are channelled towards
reducing wastage and promoting responsible
resource consumption, demonstrating a
collective stewardship of the environment.

Our team enhances Social and Relationship
Capital on multiple fronts: their engagement

in CSR activities strengthens community trust
and our societal license to operate, while their
delivery of enhanced customer service builds
lasting customer loyalty, advocacy, and deepens
rapport.

Enhanced investments in employee facilities
directly upgrade our manufactured capital,
providing our team with an improved and more
supportive physical infrastructure conducive to
productivity and well-being.

Through dedicated climate action, including
significant emissions reductions and the
promotion of responsible resource consumption,
we work to mitigate our environmental impact,
thereby safeguarding the integrity and resilience
of our natural capital.

Proactive and progressive climate action
significantly bolsters our brand reputation as a
responsible and forward-thinking organisation,
which resonates positively with customers,
investors, suppliers, and the wider community.

Climate action drives us to integrate energy-
efficient designs and technologies into our
physical infrastructure, thereby elevating the
quality, sustainability, and resource efficiency of
our manufactured capital.

Proactive engagement with suppliers and
communities is fundamental to creating a
sustainable value chain. This collaboration
directly contributes to the preservation and
enhancement of natural capital by promoting
responsible sourcing, minimising waste and
emissions, and supporting local environmental
stewardship initiatives.

Building stronger relationships with the
community enhances our local standing,
cultivates goodwill, and creates a more
supportive and collaborative operating
environment.

Stronger partnerships with the value chain and
community enable the company to streamline
its supply chain infrastructure, including vehicle
fleets and warehousing, for enhanced efficiency
and sustainability.
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Determining Malerial Matters

€ 5

The Group’s material topics encompass the organisation’s most notable impacts on the economy,
environment, and society, encompassing impacts on human rights.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS

The Group conducts an annual materiality assessment, aligning with the methodology adopted by the Hayleys Group. This
comprehensive analysis entails a meticulously defined seven-step filtration process. Materiality assessments are carried out
individually for both the Hand Protection and Plantation Sectors. Subsequently, the results are amalgamated through a scoring
mechanism, facilitating the identification of topics relevant to the entire DPL Group.

1: Define process parameters based on

Reporting frameworks
(GRI and IR)

Discussions with Heads of

Group’s business model Strategic aspirations divisions

Step 2: Filtration of the extensive list of identified topics based on organisational impact and stakeholder impact

Financial Innovation . e . Stakeholder
opportunity RepUtatlon EXternaIItles Hinkte Strategy m

Potential
impact on the
Group’s short-,
medium-, and
long-term
financial results,
cash flow
generation,

and financial
stability.

Opportunities
stemming from
material issues
to develop
new products
or processes,
potentially
improving the
Company’s
competitive
position.

Potential
implications for
the Company’s
reputation

and its ability
to compete
effectively.

Potential
impacts arising
from external
variables,
including

exchange rates,

interest rates,
commodity
prices, and

climate change,

among others.

Organisational impact

Matters related
to value
creation which
form the basis
of boardroom
discussions.

The magnitude
and likelihood
of internal and
external risks.

Step 3: Evaluate the importance of each matter through a scoring system

The magnitude
and likelihood
of exposure to
both external
and internal risk
factors.

Stakeholder
impact

Each factor is scored from 1 (low impact) to 3 (high impact) and aggregated to obtain a consolidated score

Group operations

IR Framework

58

Step 4: Set reporting boundaries based on

Industry dynamics, risks and
opportunities discussions with Heads of

divisions

Step 5: Determine disclosures based on

GRI Standards
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Materiality Matrix

10
Product & Packaging
Impacts of Lifecycle
Infrastructure .
Snery e o Cli PhtySII:'alk Product
consumption Development Imate Risks - e
Rainfall Water Stress & Responsibility
Management of
Consumption
Emissions &
Air quality Macro Regulations and
SEEEH Compliance
Impacts
o—
Water Discharge an )
Environmental and Effluentg ¢ Chemical
social issues along Management
supply chain ~- \
On Time ‘
Delivery l\
. (OTD) V4
%
5 Evolving .\
< Climate
3 Regulations Ct{stomgr
& and Policies Satisfaction
w 5
o
e
=)
%)
(]
o Climate
E . Change
Cggnnity Adaptation
and Livelihood
Development
Material
Waste Management
Management
Biodiversity Customer
Conservation Requirements
on
Sustainability
Technology
and Pro_duct Human Rights Product
Innovations Assessment Quality
0 5 10
Impact to Organisation
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Determining Malerial Matlers

Category

Materiality

Compared to the
Previous Year

Relevant Reporting
Standards

Impacted Strategic
Pillar

Capital
Reviews

M1 Product Economic High GRI 417, 419 / SASB 12,9 7 Customer
Responsibility FB-AG-250a.1, 250a.2, Focus IC, S&R
CG-AA-430a.l
M2  Product & Economic New Topic GRI 301, 305 / SASB FB- 12,13, 9 7= Customer
Packaging Lifecycle AG-320a.1, RT-CH-410a.1 Focus IC, S&R
M3  Water Stress & Environmental | New Topic GRI 303 / SASB FB-AG- 6,12,13
Management of 140a.1, FB-AG-140a.2, Ead Climate NC
Consumption FB-AG-140a.3 / SLFRS XX Action
S1& S2
M4  Product Quality Economic New Topic GRI 416, 419 / SASB 9,12
RT-CH-250a.1, 250a.2
’ ’ =\
250a.3, 410a.1, 410b.1, Egituzmer IC, S&R
410b.2, CG-AA-250a.2,
250a.3
M5  Material Environmental = High GRI 301/ SASB CG-AA- 12,9, 8 Climate
Management 430a.2 Action NC
M6 Customer Social High GRI 2-29, 416, 417, 418 12,8 e
Satisfaction / SASB CG-AA-250a.1, Customer IC, S&R
& Focus
250a.2,250a.3
M7 Climate Change Environmental @ High GRI 201, 302, 305 / 13,11 Climate
Adaptation FB-AG-440a.l, 440a.2 / Lk A NC, S&R
TCFD / SLFRS S1& S2
M8 @ Regulations and Economic High GRI 205, 206, 307, 413, 16,12,13 Profitable
Compliance / Social / 419 / RT-CH-530a.1, P Focus/ Inspired & NC, IC, FC,
Environmental RT-CH-540a.1, 540a.2 / Dedicatedeeam S&R, HC, MC
SLFRS S1& S2
M9 Waste Management Environmental High GRI 306 / SASB RT-CH- 12, 6,13 Clifmeta
_CH- NS : NC
150a.1, RT-CH-210a.1 2= Action
M10 Environmental and Environmental | New Topic GRI 204, 308, 407, 408, 8,12, 16,
social issues along / Social 409, 411, 412, 414 / SASB 10
supply chain FB-AG-250a.2, 250a.3, Bt )
FB-AG-430a.1, 430a.2, = S!EZ%@?:OH/
430a.3, RT-CH-410c.1, and Communit S&R
CG-AA-430b.1, 430b.2, @ Dovelaa Y
430b.3, CG-AA-430a.2, g P
CG-AA-430b.1, 430b.2,
430b.3 / SLFRS S1& S2
M11 = Chemical Environmental | New Topic GRI 303, 306, 403, 416 3,6,12
Management / SASB RT-CH-410b.1, Climate I NC
RT-CH-410b.2 , CG-AA- Action ’
250a.1, CG-AA-250a.2
M12 Macro-Economic Economic Low GRI 201, 203,207 / SASB 8,10 Profitabl
Impacts CG-AA-430a.1, FB-AG- il Fro ftable FC
430a.] ocus
M13 Physical Climate Environmental | New Topic GRI 201,308 / TCFD / 13,6, M clifreie
Risks - Rainfall / Economic SLFRS S1& S2 Lk Action S&R, NC

IC - Intellectual Capital, S&R - Social & Relationship Capital, NC - Natural Capital, MC - Manufactured Capital,
FC - Financial Capital, HC - Human Capital
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Material Topic

Category

Materiality
Compared to the
Previous Year

Relevant Reporting
Standards

Impacted Strategic
Pillar

Capital
Reviews

M14 |Impacts of Economic/ Low GRI 203, 413 / SASB RT- 91,13
Infrastructure Social/ CH-540a.1,540a.2 ~~  Profitable FC S&R MC
and Project Environmental Focus ’ !
Development
M15  Emissions & Air Environmental @ Low GRI 305/ SASB FB-AG- 3,11,13
quality 110a.1, FB-AG-110a.2, FB- Climate NC
AG-110a.3, RT-CH-110a.1, Action
110a.2, RT-CH-120a.1
M16 Energy Environmental = New Topic GRI 302 / SASB RT-CH- 7,12,13 Climate
consumption 130a.1, FB-AG-130a.] B o IC, MC, NC
M17 Evolving Climate Environmental New Topic GRI 201, 307 / SASB RT- 13,16 I Climate
Regulations and CH-120a.1, 410a.1, 410a.2, m\;@ Action S&R
Policies 530a.1/ SLFRS S1& S2
M18 Operational Safety | Social New Topic GRI 403, 413 / SASB RT- 3,81 @
and Emergency CH-320a.1, 320a.2 I Inspired &
Preparedness Dedicated Team / @ HC, MC
Y. Climate Action
M19  Customer Environmental New Topic GRI 301, 305, 308, 414, 12,9
Requirements on / Social 416, 417 / SASB CG-AA- e
Sustainability 430a.1, 430a.2, 430a.3, Customer S&R
S Focus
RT-CH-410a.1, 410a.2,
410a.3 / SLFRS S1& S2
M20 On Time Delivery Economic High GRI103 / SASB FB-AG- 8,9 = Customer
(OTD) 440a.1, RT-CH-110a.1 Focus S&R
M21 Technology Economic High GRI 301, 302, 305, 416, 9,12,7 P | ovation and
and Product 417 / SASB RT-CH- " Digitalisation IC, MC
Innovations 250a.3, 410a.1 ¢ e
M22 Water Discharge Environmental = New Topic GRI 303 / SASB FB-AG- 6,14 Climate
and Effluents 140a.1,140a.2,140a.3, RT- mv‘Qo Action NC
CH-140a.2, RT-CH-140a.3 ‘
M23 Human Rights Social New Topic GRI 407, 408, 409, 410, 5, 8,10, Insoired &
Assessment 412, 414 / SASB FB-AG- 16,17 Degicated ey
SN a0 B HOES @ Value Chain HC, S&R
RT-CH-410c 1, CG-AA- iy R :
430b.1, 430b.2, 430b.3 / Do Y
SLFRS S1& 52 B
M24 Biodiversity Environmental = New Topic GRI 304 / SASB - FB-AG- 15,6, 14 Climate
Conservation 440a.1, 440a.2,160a.1 mv’Q& Action NC
RT-CH-410c.] ‘
M25 Community Social / New Topic GRI 203, 423 / SASB 1,2, 3, Value Chain
and Livelihood Economic FB-AG-430a.1, 430a.2, 45,8, TT@TT and Community S&R
Development 430a.3, RT-CH-410c.1 1017 Development
IC - Intellectual Capital, S&R - Social & Relationship Capital, NC - Natural Capital, MC - Manufactured Capital,
FC - Financial Capital, HC - Human Capital
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Determining Malerial Matlers

MANAGEMENT OF MATERIAL TOPICS @153

Capitals Material Topics Captured

Financial Capital M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M12 - Macro-Economic Impacts, M14 - Impacts of Infrastructure
and Project Development

Social & Relationship M1 -Product Responsibility, M2 - Product & Packaging Lifecycle, M4 - Product Quality,M6 - Customer

Capital Satisfaction, M7 - Climate Change Adaptation, M8 - Regulations and Compliance,M10 - Environmental
and social issues along supply chain, M13 - Physical Climate Risks - Rainfall, M14 - Impacts of
Infrastructure and Project Development, M17 - Evolving Climate Regulations and Policies, M19 -
Customer Requirements on Sustainability, M20 - On Time Delivery (OTD), , M23 - Human Rights
Assessment, M25 - Community and Livelihood Development

Human Capital M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M18 - Operational Safety and Emergency Preparedness, M23 -
Human Rights Assessment

Manufactured Capital M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M14 - Impacts of Infrastructure and Project Development, M16 -
Energy consumption, M18 - Operational Safety and Emergency Preparedness, M21 - Technology and
Product Innovations

Intellectual Capital M1 - Product Responsibility, M2 - Product & Packaging Lifecycle, M4 - Product Quality , M11- Chemical
Management, M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M16 - Energy consumption,M21 - Technology and
Product Innovations

Natural Capital M3 - Water Stress & Management of Consumption, M5 - Material Management, M7 - Climate Change
Adaptation, M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M9 - Waste Management, M11 - Chemical Management
,M13 - Physical Climate Risks - Rainfall, M- 15 Emissions & Air quality ,M16 - Energy consumption, M22 -
Water Discharge and Effluents, M24 - Biodiversity Conservation.

Strategic Priorities & Material Topics Captured

Resources Allocation

Profitable Growth M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M12 - Macro-Economic Impacts, M14 - Impacts of Infrastructure
and Project Development

Customer Focus M1 - Product Responsibility, M2 - Product & Packaging Lifecycle, M4 - Product Quality, M6 - Customer
Satisfaction, M19 - Customer Requirements on Sustainability, M20 - On Time Delivery (OTD)

Customer Focus M1 - Product Responsibility, M2 - Product & Packaging Lifecycle, M4 - Product Quality, M6 - Customer
Satisfaction, M19 - Customer Requirements on Sustainability, M20 - On Time Delivery (OTD)

Natural Capital M3 - Water Stress & Management of Consumption, M5 - Material Management, M7 - Climate Change
Adaptation, M8 - Regulations and Compliance, M9 - Waste Management, M11 - Chemical Management
,M13 - Physical Climate Risks - Rainfall, M- 15 Emissions & Air quality ,M16 - Energy consumption, M22 -
Water Discharge and Effluents, M24 - Biodiversity Conservation.

Innovation & Digitalization M21 - Technology and Product Innovations

Inspired & Dedicated M18 - Operational Safety and Emergency Preparedness
Team
Climate Action M3 - Water Stress & Management of Consumption, M5 - Material Management, M7 - Climate Change

Adaptation, M9 - Waste Management, M10 - Environmental and social issues along supply chain, M1l
- Chemical Management, , M13 - Physical Climate Risks - Rainfall, M15 - Emissions & Air quality, M16 -
Energy consumption, M17 - Evolving Climate Regulations and Policies, M18 - Operational Safety and
Emergency Preparedness, M22 - Water Discharge and Effluents, M24 - Biodiversity Conservation

Value Chain & Community M10 - Environmental and social issues along supply chain, M23 - Human Rights Assessment, M25 -
Development Community and Livelihood Development
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A Foundation for Growth

At the heart of DPL's success lies our unwavering commitment to corporate governance.
We take pride in the systems we have established to protect our people, assets, and
values. This strong foundation of trust and transparency has enabled us to attract top
talent, drive innovation, and build the lasting relationships essential for long-term success.

The Snow Goose, known for its cooperative breeding and migration patterns, thrives on teamwork to ensure
the flock reaches its destination safely. Likewise, DPL’s governance structure fosters collaboration at all levels,
promoting a culture of inclusion and ethical leadership that guides us toward continued growth and success.




Corporate Governance

[c2{l 2-9, 2-23, 24

The Board of Dipped Products
PLC relies on a sound corporate
governance framework to steer
the Group towards realisation

of its strategic goals and to
manage the operations of all
companies within the Group. A
comprehensive policy framework
articulates the Group’s values
while reinforcing regulatory
requirements, best practice

and corporate ethos. As part

of the Hayleys Group, DPL is a
beneficiary of the time-tested
governance systems that have
evolved over more than a century.

As we face dramatic change in
world trade and stability of global
supply chains, strong governance
structures will be vital in steering
DPL through with foresight,
agility and informed decision
making.

Highlights 2024/25

Appointment of following
Directors:

Ms. A. I. Wanigasekera
(Independent Non
Executive Director) w.e.f.
December 4, 2024

Mr. T. A. B. Speldewinde
(Independent Non
Executive Director) w.e.f.
April 1,2025

Dr. R. M. U. N. Ratnayake
(Executive Director) w.e.f.
April 1,2025

Resignation of the following
Directors:

Mr. S. Rajapakse
(Independent Non
Executive Director) w.e.f.
November 30, 2024.

Mr. F. Mohideen (Non
Executive Director) w.e.f.
November 30, 2024.

Appointment of Mr.P.Y.S Perera
as Senior Independent Director
on December 4, 2024
Reclassification of
Mr.K.D.G.Gunaratne as a

Non-Executive Director on
December 4, 2024

Reconstitution of the Board

sub committees
Nominations and
Governance Committee
Remuneration Committeg

Related Party Transactions
Review Committee
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Hayleys PLC

Shareholders

Hayleys
PLC Board of
Directors

whom

Nominations

Composition

7 Executive Directors of

Dipped Products PLC

(DPL)

Executive Chairman of
Hayleys PLC is also the
Chairman of DPL

Shareholders

e 2 are common with the
parent company

e 5incharge of
Corporate Management
Finance, Marketing,

and Engineering, R & D.

Governance
Committee

Related Party
Transactions
Review
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Audit
Committee

Internal Audit

|
Division Group CISO

Other Group functions of Hayleys
PLC which support coordination
and harmonization of Group
policies and systems

Group Finance

Company Secretaries

Group HR

Group Strategic Planning

Group Legal
Group ESG

3 Non-Executive
Directors

5 Independent Non-
Executive Directors
of whom 1is a Senior
Independent Director

Board of
Directors

DPL Related
Party
Transactions
Review
Committee

DPL
Nominations
and
Governance
Committee

Managing

Director

DPL
Remuneration
Committee

DPL Audit
Committee

DPL Group
Senior
Management
Team
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DPL Plantations (Pvt) Ltd.
(100% Owned Subsidiary
(DPLP)

Composition of
DPLP

Executive Chairman
is the Chairman

of Hayleys PLC,
Dipped Products
PLC and DPL
Plantations (Pvt)
Ltd

Board of
Directors

DPLP
Management
Team



KEY DEVELOPMENTS IN 2024/25 @22

DPL focused on implementing the necessary changes to comply with the regulatory requirements and best practices stemming
from the changes in 2024/25. Progress made is set out in the table below:

Impact on DPL | Progress to date and changes during the year

Issue of CSE Listing Rule No. 9 on Corporate Governance

Compliance with CSE Rule No. 9. *  Fully compliant.
¢« Changes effected during the year include:
» Publishing policies on the website
» Reclassification of Mr.K.D.G.Gunaratne as a Non-Executive Director
» Reconstitution of Board Committees

« Other provisions were complied with in the previous year or were
already in place due to DPL's adherence to high standards of
corporate governance.

Issue of revised Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

Voluntary adoption * Fully compliant

Issue of European Sustainability Reporting Standards by the European Commission

Impact will be mainly from customers requiring *« Monitoring the developments of this standard and how its future

additional information to comply with standards. We will developments will affect our reporting practices. Even though this is

continue to assess need to comply. not reflected in this year’s report, certain areas are captured through
our disclosures on SASB, GRI and IFRS S1and S2 standards.

Issue of IFRS Sustainability Standards by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

These became mandatory for the top 100 companies by * Reporting SASB standards for Agricultural Products, Chemicals,
Apparel, Accessories and Footwear and Medical Equipment and

market capitalization for reporting periods commencing
after January 1, 2025. DPL is commencing its journey

to compliance as processes need to be established

and tested appropriately prior to disclosure of detailed
qualitative and quantitative non-financial information. The
following improvements give our commitment:

Supplies.

The Annual Report continues to evolve as we enhance the level of
compliance with IFRS S1Tand S2.

A FRAMEWORK FOR GOVERNANCE @223

The governance structure conforms to that of the parent company, Hayleys PLC as set out above and complies fully with the
regulatory and voluntary requirements set out below.

Mandatory

« The Companies Act No.7 of 2007
and regulations

« Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange (CSE) including Rule #9
on Corporate Governance

« Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka Act No.
36 of 1987, including directives and
circulars

Voluntary

« Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance issued by CA Sri Lanka
(2023)

« Gender Parity Reporting Framework
(2019) of CA Sri Lanka

Integrated Reporting Framework
published by the International
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC)

Global Reporting Standards of the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)

SASB Standards for Household
and Personal products and
Agricultural Products

Internal Authoritative
Documents

Policy on the Matters relating to the
Board of Directors

Policy on Board Committees
Policy on Corporate Governance
Policy on Rewards and Remuneration
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Business Code of Conduct

Policy on Risk Management and Internal
Control

Policy on Shareholder and Investor
Communications

ESG - Environmental Policies
ESG - Social Policies

Policy on Control and Management
of Company Assets and Shareholder
Investments

Policy on Corporate Disclosure
Policy on Whistleblowing

Policy on Good Governance and
Business Ethics
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Corporale Governance

A Comprehensive Policy Framework Gl 212

DPL has a comprehensive policy framework that provides guidance for managing day to day operations of the Group. As part
of the Hayleys Group, the policies are harmonized with the parent company policies with additional policies or customisations to

ensure that they are relevant for DPL's operations. These are set out below.

FROM PARENT COMPANY e Hayleys Values e Hayleys Way

Environment Policies

< Energy and Emissions Management
Policy

< Water Management Policy

« Material and Waste Management
Policy

¢« Chemical Management Policy
* Biodiversity Conservation Policy
* Product Lifecycle Management Policy

* Consumer Health & Safety

Social Policies

¢ Customer Management Policy
¢ Sustainable Procurement Policy

« Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI)
Policy

« Community Engagement Policy

DPL’s Policy Framework

HR Policies

Human Rights Policy .

Health & Safety Policy
Industrial Relations Policy
Disciplinary Policy

Grievance Handling Policy
Recruitment Policy

Learning & Development Policy

Talent Management and Succession
Planning Policy

Performance Management Policy
Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy
Social Accountability Policy
Pregnant Mothers’ Policy

Higher Education Assistance Policy

Late Attendance & overtime Policy

Flexible Work Arrangement Policy .

¢ Hayleys Lifecode

Governance Policies
Policy on the Matters relating to the
Board of Directors
Policy on Board Committees
Policy on Corporate Governance
Policy on Rewards and Remuneration
Business code of Conduct

Policy on Risk Management and
Internal Control

Policy on Shareholder and Investor
Communications

Policy on Control and Management
of Company Assets and Shareholder
Investments

Policy on Corporate Disclosure
Policy on Whistleblowing

Policy on Good Governance and
Business Ethics

IT & ERP Policy & Procedure

Processes and procedures that support 6 System certifications, 12 Product Certifications, 2 Social Compliance Certifications

Role of the Board @l 212

The Board's primary governance roles and responsibilities are summarised below:

Set Corporate

Approves Policy

Strategic ‘ Oversight & Values and
. : & Resource e :
Direction . Monitoring promote ethical
Allocation :
behaviours
*« Approves strategy « Articulates policy * Monitor Performance * Ensure effective
. c id trend d framework against plans functioning of internal
boer| erT rzn san N . c id ¢ | fi controls for organisational
usiness landscape ”pprot\_/es resource onsider extema operating performance through
« Monitor stakeholder aliocation environmen reporting, disclosure and
concerns « Risk management engagement.
* Accountability
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The Chairman, the Deputy Chairman « Financial reporting and capital management with Directors possessing

and Mr.Sarath Ganegoda are Members backgrounds in finance, accounting, investments, and banking.

of the Hayleys Board and the Hayleys « Product and process innovation supported by Directors with deep understanding
Group Management Committee. They of R&D, Engineering, business applications and product knowledge.

act as a conduit between the DPL Group

and the Hayleys Group, ensuring there is * Business development and international market expansion with Directors skilled in
an alignment of values and culture. The marketing, sales, and strategic growth initiatives.

multi layered oversight by DPL's own
Board and sub committees as well as
Hayleys Group Management Committee
and Board results in a high level of ¢ Legal and regulatory compliance supported by Directors with expertise in
probity and rigour. The Managing governance, legal affairs, and policy frameworks.

Director who is also a member of the
Hayleys Group Management Committee,
leads the corporate management team
in the design and implementation of

the Company’s strategic plan. Regular
reporting on key matters enables
effective oversight by the Hayleys A Balanced Board Skills & Experience
Group. Foorreroreonosoc ot e

’ \

¢ Risk management and sustainability covered by Directors with experience in risk
governance, supply chain management, and ESG.

¢ This robust composition ensures that the Board is well-equipped to guide the
Company through evolving business challenges while capitalizing on opportunities
for sustainable growth.

Skills & Experience
Strategically aligned Key Performance

Indicators (KPI) drive performance and ‘ Executive Directors (Including Chairman, | Marketing |
the achievement of objectives of DPL ‘ Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) Stience
and these have been cascaded to the ! | Engineering
KMPs and their teams to align personal ‘ O O O | Banking&
and organisational goals. ! ' Financial
" Non-Independent Non-Executive ! .
. . Directors i Leadership
An Effective Board : :
! ! 0 2 4 6 8 10
The Board of Directors continues to
provide ethical and effective leadership, | ) ] .
carefully balancing stakeholder interests \\I\ndependent Non-Executive Directors
in creating and distributing sustainable T T T )
value through effective resource Age Diversity Tenure of Service
allocation. | |
>60 16-20
Board Composition €} 217 — —
Composition is key to sound corporate
governance as a balance of power, skills, A0=50 G=10
experience and perspectives broaden
the collective knowledge of the Board, <40 =

enhancing the objectivity of discussions 0 2 4 6 8 10 01 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
and deliberations on matters set before

the Board. The following table sets out

the diversity and strengths of the DPL

Board.
The Board comprises 7 Executive Directors and 8 Non-
: : . Number of
Collectively, the Board brings expertise Executive Directors of whom 5 are independent. The 5 Directors
in financial management, risk oversight, Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the criteria [
regulatory compliance, sustainability, for independence set out in the CSE Rule #9. All directors is in line

directors are reputed professionals or business leaders with Section 9.8.2

product innovation, international market S S Rulle N, ©

development, and business growth. of repute and exercise independent judgement on
matters set before the Board. The current composition
of Executive Directors is balanced by the number of
Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors and the appointment of a Senior
Independent Director. The directors ensure a sufficient balance of power within the
Board, well beyond the minimum level for compliance.

Specifically, the Board demonstrates
strong capabilities in below areas
supporting its oversight and providing
strategic direction mitigating and
adapting to Sustainability and Climate
Related Risks and Opportunities;
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Corporale Governance

The collective background of the Board of Directors provides a balanced mix of skills, experience and tenures to enable the
Board to objectively and effectively fulfill its roles and responsibilities. Non-Executive Directors are eminent professionals in their
respective fields, who bring varied perspectives to Board deliberations and constructively challenge management. The Board,
through the Nominations and Governance Committee reviews the composition on an ongoing basis. All Directors have provided
declarations confirming that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria set out in Section 9.7.4 of the CSE Listing Rule No. 9.

6 directors including the Chairman of the Audit Committee, are finance professionals ensuring sufficient financial acumen within

th

e Board.

Board Appointments, Re-elections, Retirement and Resignation

Board refreshment allows for the introduction of members with new skills, insights and perspectives, while retaining valuable
industry knowledge and maintaining continuity. The Board is refreshed periodically through new appointments, retirement,
resignation, and Re-election /Re-appointment of Directors. There were 3 new appointments during the year.

Directors are appointed by the
shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, following a formal and
transparent process and based on
recommendations made by the Board
of Directors.

The Nominations and

Governance Committee will make
recommendations to the Board in

this regard having considered the
combined knowledge, experience and
diversity of the Board in relation to the
Company’s strategic plans and any
gaps thereof.

Appointments are communicated to
the CSE and shareholders through
corporate disclosure and press
releases and include a brief resume of
the director.

' Re-election/Re-appointment

In compliance with the Companies
Article of Association, 1/3 of the total
Directors excluding the Managing
Director (MD) will retire from office at
each Annual General Meeting.

These Directors are eligible to stand
for re-election by the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.

The Nominations and Governance
Committee recommends the Directors
for re-election, and approval by the
Board.

A Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy arisen since the
previous AGM, will offer them self for
re-election at the next AGM.

4

2-10,13

Retirement/Resignation &
Director Tenure

Directors may resign by submitting a

letter to the Board. On acceptance of
the resignation by the Board, the CSE
is informed of the same.

B

oard Sub-Committees &l 23,18

The Audit, Related Party Transactions Review, Nominations and Governance and Remuneration

Committees of DPL also connect with the parent company Board Committees to ensure alignment
of goals and objectives. The Chairman of the Board does not hold positions as chair of any Board
Committee in accordance with the provisions of Section 9.3.3 of the CSE Listing Rule No. 9.

The Publicly listed Plantation companies have their own Board Committees that meet the
requirements of the CSE Listing Rule No. 9.

68
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Chairman of the
Board does not
chair any board
committee in
accordance with
section 9.3.3 of
CSE Rule No. 9



Board Areas of Oversight
Committee

Audit * Financial Reporting
Committee

Internal Controls
Internal Audit

External Audit

Composition

Comprises wholly of
Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Further Information

Report of the Audit
Committee on page
324

Nominations
and Governance
Committee

Appointment of Key Management Personnel/
Directors

Succession Planning

Effectiveness of the Board and its Committees

Chaired by the Senior
Independent Director, and
includes 2 Independent
Directors and 2 Non-Executive
Directors

Report of the
Nominations and
Governance Committee
on page 318

Remuneration
Committee

Remuneration policy for Key Management
Personnel

Goals and targets for Key Management
Personnel

Performance evaluation

Chaired by the Senior
Independent Director, and
includes 2 Independent
Directors and 2 Non-Executive
Directors

Report of the
Remuneration
Committee on page
320

Related Party
Transactions
Review
Committee

Review of related party transactions

Chaired by the Senior
Independent Director, and
includes 2 Independent
Directors and 2 Non-Executive
Directors

Report of the Related
Party Transactions
Review Committee on
page 322

Meetings & Minutes

Board meetings are held on a quarterly basis with the flexibility to arrange any additional meetings to supplement these when
required. An annual calendar is prepared by the Company Secretary and dates and times are agreed at the commencement of the
financial year. Meeting agendas are set by the Chairman in consultation with the Managing Director and the Company Secretary.
Board agendas and papers are made available to the Directors seven days before the meeting allowing members sufficient time to
review the papers, seek clarification and make their observations in preparation for the meeting. Care is taken to ensure that the
Board spends sufficient time considering matters critical to the Company’s success, as well as compliance, risk and administrative

matters.

Board Minutes Resolutions by Circulation Oversight & Monitoring

* Board minutes are circulated to the .

Directors in advance prior to the next
Board meeting for review and formally
approved at the subsequent Board
meeting.

Directors’ concerns regarding matters
which are not resolved unanimously
are recorded in the minutes.

Directors have access to the past
Board papers and minutes via
electronic means

matters may be passed by circulation,
within regulations.

Resolutions concerning business .

In the effective discharge of duties,
Directors are provided accurate,
relevant and timely information on
which they base their decisions.

Executive Directors and the Key
Management Personnel (KMP) attend
Board meetings, increasing contact
between the Board and management.
Management is open and transparent
with the Board and brings to attention
any matters of concern in a timeous
manner.
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Attendance At Meetings

Name of Director Executive/Non-Executive/ Board Meeting

Attendance

Independent Non-Executive

Mr. A. M. Pandithage Executive 04/04
Mr. H. S. R. Kariyawasan Executive 03/04
Mr. R. H. P. Janadheera Executive 04/04
Mr. S. C. Ganegoda Non-Executive 04/04
Mr. N. A. R. R. S. Nanayakkara Executive 04/04
Mr. K. D. G. Gunaratne Non-Executive 04/04
Mr. K. M. D. |. Prasad Executive 04/04
Mr. B. K. C. R. Ratnasiri Executive 04/04
Ms. K. A. D. B. Perera Non-Executive 04/04
Mr. M. N. R. Fernando Independent Non-Executive 03/04
Prof. A. P. De Silva Independent Non-Executive 04/04
Mr. P. Y. S. Perera Independent Non-Executive 04/04
Mr. S. Rajapakse (Resigned w.e.f. 30.11.2024) Independent Non-Executive 02/02
Mr. F. Mohideen (Resigned w.e.f. 30.11.2024) Non-Executive 02/02
Ms. A. |. Wanigasekera (Appointed w.e.f. 04.12.2024) Independent Non-Executive 02/02
Mr. T. A. B. Speldewinde (Appointed w.e.f. 01.04.2025) Independent Non-Executive 01/01

Dr. R. M. U. N. Rathnayake (Appointed w.e.f. 01.04.2025) Executive 01/01

Roles & Responsibilities €Ll 2-n

The Chairman of Hayleys PLC (parent company) serves as Chairman of DPL and the roles of the Chairman and Managing
Director ('MD") are segregated facilitating a balance of power.

Role Role

Leads the Board, preserving good corporate governance
and ensuring that the Board works ethically and
effectively.

Accountable for implementation of DPL strategic plan and
driving performance.

Responsibilities
Responsibilities R

* Setting the ethical tone for the Board and Company;

Appointing and ensuring proper succession planning of
the corporate management team, and assessing their

erformance;
* Setting the Board’s annual work plan and the agendas, P
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in consultation with the Company Secretary and the
MD

Building and maintaining stakeholder trust and
confidence;

Ensuring effective participation of all Board Members
during Board meetings.

Facilitating and encouraging discussions amongst all
Directors of matters set before the Board and ensuring
a balance of power is maintained between Executive
and Non Executive Directors.(NED).

Monitoring the effectiveness of the Board.

Developing the Company’s strategy for consideration
and approval by the Board;

Developing and recommending to the Board, budgets
supporting the Company’s long-term strategy.

Monitoring and reporting to the Board on the
performance of the Company and its compliance with
applicable laws and Corporate Governance principles.

Establishing an organisational structure for the
Company which is appropriate for the execution of
strategy;

Ensuring a culture that is based on the Company’s
values;

Ensuring that the Company operates within the
approved risk appetite.
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Company Secretary Senior Independent Director

The office of the Company Secretary is integral to the
effective functioning of the Board. Secretarial services
to the Board are provided by Hayleys Group Services
(Private) Limited. The Company Secretary guides the
Board on discharging its duties and responsibilities,
promoting best practices in Corporate Governance.

Responsibilities include;

* Ensuring the conduct of Board Sub Committee and
General Meetings in accordance with the Articles of
Association and relevant legislation.

» Maintaining statutory registers and the minutes of
Board Sub Committee Meetings.

« Prompt communication to regulators and shareholders.

» Filing statutory returns and facilitating access to legal

advice in consultation with the Board, where necessary.

» All Directors have access to the advice and services
of this group function as necessary. Appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary is a matter for the
Board.

The responsibilities of the Senior Independent Director
(SID) are as follows:

Convene and chair and meetings of the Independent
Directors at least once a year or as often as deemed
necessary without the presence of the other Directors
to discuss matters and concerns relating to the Entity
and the operation of the Board. The SID shall provide
feedback and recommendations from such meetings to
the Chairperson and the other Board Members.

Convene and chair a meetings of the Non-Executive
Directors without the presence of the Chairperson
at least annually, to appraise the Chairperson’s
performance and on such other occasions as are
deemed appropriate.

The SID shall be entitled to a casting vote at the
meetings specified in Rules 9.6.3. (b) and (c) given
above.

Make a signed explanatory disclosure in the Annual
Report demonstrating the effectiveness of duties of the
SID.

Directors’ Independence

Directors are experienced leaders in their respective fields and exercise independent judgement, promoting constructive board
deliberations and objective evaluation of matters set before them.

Independence is determined in accordance with the

Definition o X o
criteria set out in the CSE Listing Rule 9.8.3

Independent assessment of directors is conducted INEEEEREEmes

. of Directors

Assessment annually by the Board, based on annual declaration and e i
other information submitted by Non Executive Directors accordance

with section

9.8.3 of CSE

Rule #9

The Board is satisfied that all directors classified as
independent meet the criteria set out in Section 9.8.3
of the CSE Listing Rule #9
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Directors Interests and Related Party Transactions

Directors declare their business interests at appointment and annually thereafter. Details are maintained in a Register by the
Company Secretary. The Register is available for inspection in terms of the Companies Act. Directors have no direct or indirect
interest in a contract or a proposed contract with the Company other than those disclosed on page 313 in this report.

The Company’s Related Party Transactions Review Committee considered all transactions that require approval, in line with the
Group’s Related Party Transactions Policy and in compliance with regulations, ensuring transactions are fair and in the best interest
of DPL. Related party transactions are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements on page 393.

The total number of Board seats (excluding directorship in DPL) held by each Director as at March 31, 2025 is given below. The
Board is satisfied that all Directors allocate sufficient time to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Number and Name of Directorships Held in Sri Lanka

Name of Director

Classification

Listed

Companies
(*ED/**NED)

Unlisted
Companies
(ED*/NED**)

Listed Company Names

Unlisted Company Names

Mohan Executive 11/ 01 120 /10 Executive Director Executive Director
Pandithage Chairman « Hayleys PLC Hayleys Group Companies- 120
* Haycarb PLC i i
. Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC Non-Executive Director
+ Hayleys Fabric PLC + Beata Power (PvD) Ltd
+ The Kingsbury PLC « Joule Power (Pvt) Ltd
« Horana Plantations PLC « Ocean Network Express Lanka
« Kelani Valley Plantations PLC (Private) Limited
* Hayleys Leisure PLC « The Beach Resorts Ltd
* Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC ¢ Delmege Forsyth & Co. Exports
+ Hayleys Fibre PLC (PvD) Ltd
e Alumex PLC « Delmege Coir (Pvt) Ltd
. . » Delmege Forsyth & Co.
Non-Executive Director (Shipping) Ltd
* Diesel & Motor Engineering *« Delmege Freight Services (Pvt)
PLC Ltd
« Lewis Shipping (Pvt) Ltd
« Lewis Brown Air Services (Pvt)
Ltd
Rajitha Deputy 03 /00 14 / 01 Executive Director Executive Director
Kariyawasan Chairman « Hayleys PLC Hayleys Group Companies- 14
* Haycarb PLC i i
- Hayleys Fibre PLC Non-Executive Director
Sri Lanka Institute of
Nanotechnology (Pvt) Ltd
Pushpika Managing 00/ 00 06 /00 - Executive Director
Janadheera Director Hayleys Group - 6 Companies
Sarath Non- 02/ 08 00/ 54 Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Ganegoda E>I<ecuti\/e « Hayleys PLC « SriLankan Airlines Ltd
Director « Alumex PLC «  Sri Lankan Catering Limited
i i *« Hayleys Group Companies- 52
Non-Executive Director
* Haycarb PLC
* Hayleys Fabric PLC
* Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
* Hayleys Leisure PLC
* Horana Plantations PLC
* Kelani Valley Plantations PLC
+ Hayleys Fibre PLC
* The Kingsbury PLC
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Name of Director

Classification

Listed

Companies
(*ED/**NED)

Unlisted
Companies
(ED*/NED**)

Listed Company Names

Unlisted Company Names

Yohan Perera Independent 00/ 07 00 /00 Non-Executive Director -
Non- _ « Hayleys PLC
Executive + Haycarb PLC
Director « Commercial Bank of Ceylon
(Senior PLC
Independent « Overseas Realty PLC
Director) « E B Creasy & Company PLC
* Laxapana PLC
«  Muller & Phipps Ceylon PLC
Ramesh Executive 00/ 00 02/ 00 = Executive Director
Nanayakkara Director Hayleys Group Companies- 02
Chandika Executive 00/ 00 01/ 00 - Executive Director
Ratnasiri Director Hayleys Group Companies- O1
Indika Executive 00/ 00 02 /00 - Executive Director
Kulathunga Director Hayleys Group Companies- 02
Dr. Upul Executive 00/ 00 01/ 00 - Executive Director
Rathnayake Director Hayleys Group Companies- O1
Gamini Non- 00/ 04 01/ 01 Non-Executive Director Executive Director
Gunaratne Egecutlve « Hayleys PLC Lanka Hotels and Residencies
Director « Horana Plantations PLC (Pvt) Ltd
e Swisstek Ceylon PLC i i
» Vallibel Power Erathna PLC EW EEEE B er
SLIIT (Guarantee) Limited
Brindhiini Perera Non- 00 /10 00 /04 Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
E>I<ecut|\/e « Hayleys Fabric PLC + Delmege Limited
Director + Haycarb PLC +  Otwo Biscuit (Private) Limited
* The Kingsbury PLC * The Canbury Biscuit Company
* Hayleys Leisure PLC Limited
* Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC * Manatee Clothing Company
* Vallibel One PLC (Pvt) Ltd
* Lanka Tiles PLC
* Lanka Walltiles PLC
* Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC
* The Fortress Resorts PLC
Nanda Fernando Independent 00/ 04 01/ 01 Non-Executive Director Executive Director
Non- « Haycarb PLC «  Professional Business
Egecutlve « Hayleys Fabric PLC Consultants
Director « Hatton National Bank PLC Non-E oy
- RIL Property PLC on-Executive Director
* Assetline Finance Ltd
Anomi Independent 00 /02 05/00 Non-Executive Director Executive Director
Wanigasekera  Non- . - Horana Plantations PLC « Julius & Creasy
Executive *« Haycarb PLC « Jacey Advisory Services
Director (Private) Ltd

« Jacey Trust Services (Private)
Ltd

« Jacey & Lanka (Private) Ltd

« Jacey & Company
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Name of Director

Classification

Listed

Companies
(*ED/**NED)

Unlisted
Companies
(ED*/NED**)

Listed Company Names

Unlisted Company Names

Timothy Independent 00/ 06 01/ 01 Non-Executive Director Executive Director
Speldewinde Non- * Hayleys Fabric PLC * Contemporary Ceylon (Pvt) Ltd
Executive * Haycarb PLC ) i
Director « The Kingsbury PLC Non-Executive Director
*« Horana Plantations PLC ¢ WealthTrust Securities Limited
¢« Ceylon Grain Elevators PLC
e Three Acre Farms PLC
Prof. Arjuna De Independent 00 /00 00/ 00 - -
Silva Non-
Executive
Director

*ED - Executive Director
**NED - Non Executive Director

Conflict of Interest

A Director or KMP is prohibited from
using his or her position, or confidential
or price sensitive information, for
personal benefit or benefit of any third
party, whether financially or otherwise.
Directors notify the Board promptly of
any conflicts of interest they may have
in relation to particular items of business
or other Directorships. Directors do not
participate in and excuse themselves
from the Meeting when the Board
considers matters in which a conflict
may arise. The Company Secretary
maintains a register of director’s
interests and updates this regularly.

[cld) 2-15
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Informed Decision making

Sufficient information is key to informed
and objective decision-making,
facilitating effective risk management
and resource allocation. DPL’s reporting
and information systems ensure the
Board receives relevant and objective
information, in a timely manner.

Supply of Information

The Board pack is generally circulated
seven (7) days in advance of a Board
Meeting and provides sufficient
qualitative and quantitative information
on items included in the agenda of

the meeting. This includes reports on
the Company’s performance against
strategic value drivers and reports on
key focus areas such as Sales pipelines,
capacity utilisation, working capital
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management, risk assessment and other
key matters regarding DPL's operations.
Further, Corporate Management

and external experts make regular
presentations regarding the business
environment, strategy and operations of
the Company and ensure that the Board
is apprised of developments impacting
the Company.

Access to Information

Directors have unrestricted access to
Management, organisation information,
and resources to facilitate discharge

of their duties. Directors are entitled to
seek independent professional advice,
co-ordinated through the Company
Secretary, at the Company’s expense.
Copies of such advice obtained are
circulated to Directors who request for
it.



Training & Orientation of Directors

On appointment, Directors are provided with an orientation pack with all relevant external and internal regulation documents and a
tour of the factory premises. Directors are briefed of developments and changes to applicable legislation and regulation, relevant
sector developments and changes in the risk and general business environment on an ongoing basis. Directors undertake training
and professional development as they consider necessary, which requirements are coordinated through the Company Secretary.
Many are Members of the Sri Lanka Institute of Directors and attend sessions from time to time. Directors also undertake other
Continuous Professional Development (CPD) programmes in their personal capacity to update their knowledge on relevant and
emerging topics.

Corporate Management

The MD is accountable for the implementation of strategy and performance and is
supported by the Corporate Management Team.

Led by the MD, the Corporate Management Team develops and implements
corporate strategy and is responsible for the daily management of the Company.
All functional departments are headed by competent individuals and are
adequately resourced. Management is open and transparent with the Board

and escalates concerns to its attention in the appropriate forums and in a timely
manner.

Corporate
Management
Team

These committees include the HR, Finance, Planning and Production, Compliance,
Environmental, Health and Safety, and Sustainability which are responsible for
delivering strategic goals. The Committees meet monthly and make executive
decisions including risk management and allocation of capital, technical and human
resources in managing the business. These cross functional teams are managed
through delegation and reporting obligations and are key to enhancing employee
engagement and empowerment.

Executive
Committees

Appraisal of MD €&} 218

The Board assesses the performance of the MD annually using criteria aligned to the short, medium and long-term objectives of
DPL which are agreed with the MD at the beginning of the year. Performance is reviewed at the end of the financial year against
the backdrop of the operating environment, and remuneration revised based on performance.

Board Effectiveness

The Chairman and Remuneration Committee are responsible for evaluating the performance of the Executive Directors and
committees through an annual self-evaluation of its own performance. The results of the evaluation are assimilated and submitted
to the Chairman for discussion at a Board meeting.
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INTEGRATING SUSTAINABILITY AT DPL @l 212 13,14, 23

Integration of ESG

DPL launched its ESG Framework DPL Pulse in 2023 which is aligned to the framework of our parent company, the Hayleys
Lifecode. It codifies the ESG practices and processes that evolved over the years and was done in consultation with the
leadership of entities within the DPL Group and approved by the parent company. Pulse communicates our ESG roadmap to
2030 and sets out the strategies that we will pursue on material topics that are relevant for the DPL Group as set out graphically
overleaf. It builds on the existing infrastructure to capture ESG information, the Cube, which is updated monthly enabling review
of ESG performance by the Senior Management and DPL Boards, Group Management Committee of the parent and its Board of
Directors. Please refer page 154 to 308 for detailed update on the progress made on DPL Pulse targets in the FY 2024/25.
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The policy framework relating to DPL Pulse are set out on page 76 to 77. The policy framework is strengthened
with 6 System certifications, 12 Product Certifications, 2 Social Compliance Certifications which
support DPL’s access to markets in advanced economies.

Principles for Governance

Structure & Oversight - Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Stakeholder Engagement - Meaningful and impactful stakeholder relationships

Transparent & Accurate Reporting - Internal and external reporting on ESG factors

Enterprise Risk Management - Holistic process to identify, measure and mitigate ESG risks

Ethics & Culture - Compliance to the Hayleys way
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ESG GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK @ 24
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v

_________________ > Group ESG Steering
Committee

Report on Target
Performance & Update
Data on Hayleys Cube
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IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
GROUP’S ESG STRATEGIES,
POLICIES GOALS AND
TARGETS @il 216

The Board is responsible in setting
strategic direction to the formulation
and implementation of the Group’s ESG
strategies, policies, goals and targets.

An ESG Steering Committee was
established in FY 2023/24 to ensure the
roll out of its ESG agenda across Group
Companies. The composition of the ESG
Steering Committee is as follows:

* Managing Director (Chair of the
Committee)

* 4 Executive Directors

* 7 members of the General
Management Committee including
Chief Financial Officer heading the
ESG Division and monitoring the Non-
Financial Disclosures of the Company.

The responsibilities of the ESG Steering
Committee include the following:

Provide oversight and drive ESG
strategy implementation by turning
Board-approved ESG goals into
practical projects aligning with the
DPL Pulse including progress against
environmental, social and governance
targets in the short, medium and long-
term.

* Ensure ESG is built into everyday
business operations and work across
departments to align efforts.

e Track progress using ESG KPIs and
share success stories.

Identify and manage Sustainability &
Climate Risks and Opportunities under
the guidance of the Audit Committee

* Create action plans to reduce risks
and capture new opportunities.

* Explore and recommend mitigation
and adaptation plans and keep the
Audit Committee and Board informed
on key risk areas to build high
resilience of the organisation towards
risks.
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Ensure compliance and reporting of
Non-Financial Disclosures aligned with
ESG related laws, regulations, standards,
and best practices.

¢ Lead ESG reporting (e.g., annual
integrated report, sustainability
reports, newsletters) and share
progress to the Board quarterly.

« Monitor regulation updates and align
with global frameworks like GRI,
SASB, TCFD, IFRS S1& S2.

Engage stakeholders and communicate
ESG progress to build strong
relationships with shareholders,
employees, investors, suppliers,
customers, and communities.

*« Improve engagement with key
stakeholders and communicate ESG
goals and performance clearly.

Promote innovation and continuous
improvement staying up-to-date on new
ESG trends and regulations.

¢ Suggest new ideas and improvements

to the Board.

« Review performance and improve
ESG targets bi-annually.

Monitor and Report Performance of
ESG progress to the Board by providing
quarterly summaries to the Board

and review ESG Steering Committee
performance annually.

Provide resources to ensure access to
the right people, data and tools and if
required recommend external experts as
and when required.

Provide direction to the ESG Division to
build capacities of respective teams to
bridge the knowledge and skill gaps in
the teams.

The ESG Steering Committee held

4 meetings during the FY 2024/25.

The committee is supported by the
dedicated ESG Division of the Company.

Focus Areas Section of the Annual Report ‘ Page No.

« Economic Sustainability « Financial Capital 142
e Environment * Natural Capital 280
e Labour Practices ¢ Human Capital 198
e Impacts on External « Social and Relationship 148
Stakeholders (Customer / Capital
Supplier / Community)
* Product Responsibility ¢ Intellectual Capital 252
* Sustainable & Green * Manufactured Capital 234

Manufacturing Facilities
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RESPONSIBLE AND FAIR
REMUNERATION @& 219 20

The Board strives to ensure that
remuneration is fair, responsible and
transparent.

Remuneration Policy

Remuneration of KMP and Executive
Directors is linked to sustainable

value creation objectives in line

with DPL’s strategy and is based on
clear performance targets that have
adequate stretch and benchmarked to
|local market rates. The Remuneration
Committee (RC) consisting of 3
Independent Directors and 2 Non
Executive Directors is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration of the
Executive Directors. Please refer page
320 for the Report of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board as a whole determines

the remuneration of the NEDs who
receive a Director’s fee ,Board and
Audit Committee meeting attendance
fee. Remuneration for Non-Executive
Directors reflects the time commitment
and responsibilities of their role, taking
into consideration market practices.
They do not receive any performance
related / incentive payments. Services
of HR professionals are sought when
required, by the Board and RC in
discharging their responsibilities.

Level and Make Up of
Remuneration

The Remuneration packages of
Executive Directors are designed

to attract eminent professionals as
Directors with the requisite skills

and experience. Remuneration of
Executive Directors are compliant with
the provisions of Schedule G of the
Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka

in 2023 and comprises fixed and
variable components with the variable
component linked to performance. No
special early termination clauses are
included in the contract of employment
of Executive Directors that would entitle

them to extra compensation. However,
such compensation, if any, would be
determined by the Board of Directors.
Please refer page 313 for the total
Directors’ Remuneration.

Board Accountability
Compliance

Directors are required to comply with
laws, regulations, regulatory guidelines,
internal controls and approved policies
in accordance with the Board Charter
which is part of the Hayleys Way. DPL
takes significant measures to ensure
compliance with all relevant legal and
statutory requirements on an ongoing
basis.

Risk Management and Internal

control

The Board is responsible for formulating
and implementing effective risk
management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholder
interests and the assets of the Company.
These systems cover all controls,
including financial, operational and
compliance and are monitored and
regularly reviewed for effectiveness

by the Board. The Board increased

the rigor of oversight functions in
managing risks as the environment
continued to be uncertain and
challenging. The Hayleys Group Internal
Audit Department supports the Audit
Committee, reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of DPLs internal control
systems and reporting to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis. The Board
is satisfied with the integrity of financial
information and the soundness of the
internal controls and systems of DPL.

Accountability & Audit

Every effort has been made to present a
balanced assessment of the Company’s
financial position, performance and
prospects in compliance with the
various legal enactments applicable, the
Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards,
the GRI Standards on Sustainability
Reporting published by the Global
Reporting Initiative and the Integrated
Reporting Framework published by

the International Integrated Reporting
Council. The Company’s position and
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prospects have been discussed in detail
in the following sections of this annual
report.

+ Joint Statement of the
Chairman & the MD pages to 28

*« Management Discussion & Analysis
on pages 27 to 33

* A Positive Outlook on page 56 to 57
*« Managing Risk on page 106 to 131

The Company has also complied with

the requirements of the Colombo Stock
Exchange and published Interim Reports
on the company website within 45

days of first three quarters and within 2
months of the last quarter. Price sensitive
information, which may have an impact
on the shares of the company, has been
disclosed in a comprehensive but concise
manner to the Colombo Stock Exchange
on a timely basis. Reports required by
regulators including the Department of
Inland Revenue, Sri Lanka Accounting

& Auditing Standards Monitory Board,
Registrar of Companies and the Colombo
Stock Exchange have been filed in

a timely manner in compliance with
specified requirements. The following
reports set out further information
required by the Code:

* The Annual Report of the Board
of Directors on the affairs of the
Company on pages 312 to 317
(including the declaration that the
company is a going concern)

* The Statement of Directors’
Responsibility on page 329

* Report of the Auditors on page 333

External Auditor

The External Auditor is appointed in line
with the provisions of the Companies
Act. The Audit Committee (AC) makes
recommendations to the Board for

the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the External Auditor in-line
with professional & ethical standards
and regulatory requirements. The AC
monitors and reviews the External
Auditor’s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process
considering relevant professional and
regulatory requirements.
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In assignment of non-audit services to External Auditors, the AC ensures that the
External Auditor has the necessary skills and experience for the assignment and
ascertains that independence and objectivity of the External Auditor in carrying
out his duties and responsibilities will not be impaired.

On the recommendation of the Board, the shareholders approved the
reappointment of Messrs. Ernst & Young (Chartered Accountants) as the External
Auditor for 2024/25 at the last AGM. In compliance with Section 163 (3) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, the External Auditors submit a statement annually
confirming their independence in relation to the external audit.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

DPL is committed to conducting its business operations with honesty, integrity and
with respect to the rights and interests of all stakeholders. The company is bound
by DPL Business Code of Conduct aligned with the “ The Hayleys Way”- The

Code of conduct developed by Hayleys PLC ( Parent Company) for the Group. It
applies to all employees including key management personnel and Directors, and
is reinforced at all levels through structured communication. The Code fosters an
ethical culture and promotes compliance with relevant laws and legislation, an
imperative to retaining the trust of stakeholders. The Board is not aware of any
material violations of any of the provisions of the Code by any Director or employee
of the DPL.

(eIl 2-23-26

Competition

Shareholders

Regulatory §
Compliance Employees
0
Conflict of DPI Business
Interest .

M’rywwf/km
DPL Business
Code of Conduct

@
bép -, Environment
s °

Public Activities @

Corporate
Responsibility

Good Governance & Business Ethics Policy

DPL is committed to fostering an environment that upholds good governance and
ethical business practices, aligning with local, national, and international standards

to ensure accountability and transparency. The policy provides clear guidelines on
ethical conduct, including the handling of gifts, hospitality, political contributions, and
third-party commissions, applicable to all directors and employees.

Through this policy, DPL reinforces its dedication to integrity and responsible

corporate behaviour across all levels of the organisation.
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The Group complies with ISO 9001:2015,
which includes evaluating contracted
external parties for adherence to anti-
bribery and anti-corruption policies. All
employees, including Directors, are trained
on the Group’s Code of Conduct—covering
these provisions within three months of
joining, with information accessible via the
intranet and related trainings. No incidents
of corruption, disciplinary actions, contract
terminations, or legal cases were reported
during the year. There were no legal actions
for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust
and monopoly parties in 2024/25.

Human Rights Policy

As a signatory of the UN Global Compact,
DPL is committed to upholding its ten
Human Rights Principles. DPL adopted

its Human Rights Policy, which promotes
globally recognised standards and aims

to prevent any form of rights abuse. The
policy ensures fair treatment, a harassment-
free workplace, prohibition of child and
forced labour, freedom of association, and
strong health and safety measures across
all operations and partners across the value
chain.

Whistle Blowing/Grievance
Mechanism @l2:25.26

Mechanisms are in place for employees

and other stakeholders to seek advice or
report concerns about unethical or unlawful
behaviour. DPL’s Policy on Whistleblower
enables anonymous reporting of matters of
concern regarding possible inappropriate
financial reporting, internal controls or
other issues that may require internal
investigation. Information on accessibility,
anonymity, processes and the policy
relating to the whistle-blowing service is
communicated to all employees. The MD is
appointed by the Board to handle matters
relating whistleblowing and reports to the
Board if any critical matter is identified. No
incidence were reported in the FY 2024/25.

Innovation Governance

DPL’s ability to continually innovate is critical
to remaining relevant to the changing needs
of customers. The Board and Management
are aware of their role in innovation and
governance and to this end, encourages

the creativity and flexibility that promotes
innovative thinking, while managing risk
within the agreed appetite.



Information Technology & Cyber Security Governance

The Board understands the advantages of flexibility, adaptability, and creativity that digital platforms offer and makes sure that

a strong and well-funded technology strategy is in place that creates excellent client and employee experiences. The Board also
cares about protecting the Company’s information assets and operational systems and spends a lot on cyber risk management
systems. Hayley’s Group IT Department is responsible for implementing the Group's digital strategy including adopting IT policies
and safeguarding against cyber threats. The Group Head of IT functions as the Chief Information Security Officer. Coverage

and scope of related Group policies and guidelines are given below. Cybersecurity is an agenda item of the monthly Group
Management Committee meetings with matters escalated to the DPL Board where deemed necessary considering risk, impact and
other prudential measures.

DPL Group IT & Cybersecurity Objectives

¢ Ensuring Information Verification for Accuracy ¢ Compliance with all applicable laws, regulatory

« Safeguarding Confidentiality, Integrity, and Availability standar.ds, and industry sta_ndards governing data
(CIA) protection and cyber security.
¢ Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan to ensure

* Preventing Unauthorised Access and RACI Matric ; . ; } .
operational resilience during disruptions.

(Responsible,Accountable,Consulted,Informed) for
Designated Persons.

* Integration into Employee Onboarding and Mandatory
Information Security Training for all employees.

Group Information Security Policy Principles
¢« Group Connectivity * Protection of information from *« Acceptable IT Use
unauthorised access
« Access requirements/Resource *« Password Protection Standards
utilisation « Confidentiality, availability and

) : ) . « Email Usage
integrity of information

* Individual Sector Networks/System Iy
¢ Internet Usage

Management * Regulatory requirements
* Backup & Recovery/Software « Business continuity plans * Monitoring
Modification « Enforcement

* Information security training
* |IT Equipment, Software & Third Party

[T p———, * Reporting breaches of information

security
¢ |T Assets & Media disposal and

procurement ¢ |T policy embedded in to employee

induction programme

DPL strengthened its IT security with the Leveraging advanced Al-driven threat monitoring solutions to enable real-time
following initiatives during the year: detection and proactive mitigation of emerging cyber risks, strengthening the

) ) ) organization’s overall security posture.
« Emerging cyber security risks, the 9 Jp

probability of its occurrence and

potential impacts on our bus.iness are « AIllIT infrastructure related concerns raised during the financial year have
eva_luated on a quarterly basis a"?d been fully resolved with preventive measures in place to avoid re-occurrence
action plans are updated accordingly of such issues within the operations

by the DPL IT team
» Zero cases on information security or data protection breaches such as

* Progressively adopting a Zero leaks, thefts, or losses of data and privacy violations reported by internal or

Trust security model, shifting from external stakeholders during the year

perimeter-based defense to verifying

every user and device access request, * There are NO significant incidents reported of cyber threats or attacks
significantly minimising potential causing major disturbances or failures during the FY

attack surfaces.
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RELATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS kil 212

The Board is conscious of their
responsibility towards stakeholders and
is committed to fair disclosure, with
emphasis on the integrity, timeliness and
relevance of the information provided.
Information is communicated accurately
and in such a manner as to avoid the
creation of a false market.

Communication with
Shareholders

Shareholders are engaged through
multiple channels of communication,
including the Annual General Meeting
(AGM), Annual Report, interim financial
statements, a dedicated investor
relations page on the company’s website
and notification of key events through
announcements in the CSE.

The Annual Report presents a fair

and balanced review of DPLs financial
position, performance and prospects
combining narrative and visual
elements to facilitate readability and
comprehension. The Annual Report
and the interim financials have been
reviewed and recommended by the
Audit Committee and approved by the
Board of Directors, prior to publication.

Shareholders also have the opportunity
to ask questions, comment or make
suggestions to the Board through the
Company Secretary. All significant
issues and concerns of Shareholders are
referred to the Board with the views of
the Management.

Company Secretarial services are
provided by Hayleys Group Services
(Private) Limited which is headed by
an Attorney-at-Law who is a qualified
Chartered Secretary ably assisted by
professionally qualified secretaries
who are registered with the Registrar
of Companies. Shareholder matters
are handled in-house by the Registrar
division of Hayleys Group Services
(Private) Limited.

82

Constructive use of Annual
General Meeting (AGM)

The Board ensures that proactive
engagement with shareholders is
encouraged by the Group, including
engagement at the Company’s AGM.
Board Sub-Committee Chairmen,
Directors and key members of
management, are available at the
AGM to interact with and respond to
questions raised by the Shareholders.
External Auditors also attend to address
any queries raised.

Notice of the AGM, the Annual Report
and Accounts and any other resolution
together with the corresponding
information that may be set before

the shareholders at the AGM, are
circulated to shareholders minimum 15
working days prior to the AGM allowing
for all the shareholders to review the
documentation and attend the AGM.
DPL proposes a separate resolution

for each item of business, giving
shareholders the opportunity to vote on
each of such issue, separately. Voting
procedures at the AGM are circulated to
the shareholders in advance.

All Shareholders are encouraged

to exercise their voting rights. The
Company has an effective mechanism to
record and count all proxy votes lodged
for each resolution. In the event there
are a significant proportion of the votes
cast against a resolution, the Board will
take steps to understand the reasons
behind the vote results and determine

if any actions are required. The
outcome of the vote on each resolution
is informed to the CSE, soon after the
conclusion of the AGM.
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Appendix | - Compliance with the Continuing Listing Rule 7.6 on Corporate Governance Rules for
Listed Companies issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange.

CSE Rule Corporate Governance Principles Compliance | Page
Reference Status
7.6 (i), (i) Names of persons who during the financial year were Directors and Compliant Report of the Board of
principal activities during the year Directors Pages 312 to 317
7.6 (iii), Twenty largest Shareholders, float adjusted market capitalisation, Compliant Share Information page 408
(iv) public holding percentage, no. of public shareholders and minimum
required public shareholding
7.6 (V) Directors’ and CEO/MD’s holding in shares Compliant Report of the Board of
Directors Pages 312 to 317
7.6.(vi) Material foreseeable risk factors of the entity Compliant Risks and Opportunities on
page 106
7.6 (vii) Details of material issues pertaining to employees and industrial Compliant Human Capital on page 198
relations of the Entity
7.6 (viii) Extents, locations, valuations, number of buildings Compliant Statement of Value of Real
Estate Pages 397
7.6 (ix) Number of shares representing the Entity’s stated capital Compliant Report of the Board of
Directors Pages 312 to 317
7.6 (X) Shareholder Distribution Schedule including percentage of total Compliant Share Information page 408
holding in given categories
7.6 (xi) Ratios and Market Price Information Compliant Refer Pages 22
7.6(Xii) Changes in Entity’s and subsidiaries fixed assets and market value of Compliant Please refer pages 397
land
7.6 (xiii) If during the financial year the entity has raised funds either througha N/A N/A
public issue, rights issue or private placement.
7.6(Xiv) Information in respect of Employee Share Ownership or Stock Option  N/A N/A
Schemes
7.6 (xVv) Disclosures pertaining to Corporate Governance practices in terms of Compliant Corporate Governance
Section 9 of the Listing Rules Report Page 84
7.6 (xVi) Related party transactions exceeding 10% of Equity or 5% of total Compliant Refer Related party

assets of the Entity as per audited financial statements, whichever is
lower

transactions on pages 393 to
394
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Appendix Il - Compliance with the Continuing Listing Rule 9 on Corporate Governance Rules for
Listed Companies issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange.

(1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025)

CSE Rule
Reference

Corporate Governance
Principles

Compliance
Status

DPL’s Extent of Adoption

9.21

Policies

Compliant

The Company has established and continues to maintain the
policies on Board Matters, Board Committees, Corporate
Governance, Nominations, Remuneration, Internal Code of
Business Conduct, Risk Management and Internal Control,
Relations with Shareholders and Investors, Environment, Social
Governance and Sustainability, Whistleblowing and Anti Bribery
and Corruption.

9.3

Board Committees

Compliant

The Company has its own Audit Committee which met 4 times
during the year. Until 16th May 2024, the Nominations and
Governance Committee, Remuneration Committee and Related
Party Transactions Review Committee of the Parent Company
Hayleys PLC acted as the Company’s Committees. On 16th

May 2024 the Company established its own Nominations and
Governance Committee, Related Party Transactions Review
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

9.3.3

Chairperson of Board
Committees

Compliant

Chairperson of Board Committees is not the Chairperson of the
Board

9.4.1

Meeting Procedures

Compliant

Company maintains records of all resolutions passed at General
Meetings.

9.4.2

Communication and Relations
with shareholders

Compliant

The Company has a Shareholder Communication and Relations
Policy and it is published on the corporate website https://www.
dplgroup.com/investor-relations/.

Shareholders can contact the Company Secretary regarding
queries relating to their shareholding matters.

The policy includes a process whereby Directors are informed of
major issues and concerns of shareholders.

9.5,

Policy on matters relating to the
Board of Directors

Compliant

The Company maintains a Policy on Matters relating to the Board
of Directors.

9.6.2

Chairperson and CEO

Compliant

The MD of the Company, performs the role of the Chief Executive
Officer by being responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Company. The Chairperson and MD of the Company are 2
separate persons.

9.6.3

Senior Independent Director

Compliant

The Company appointed Mr.PY.S.Perera as the Senior
Independent Director (SID) during the year with the
reclassification of Mr. K.D.G.Gunaratne as a Non-Executive
Director since the Chairperson is an Executive Director.

9.6.3. (b)

Senior Independent Director

Compliant

The SID holds a meeting once a year with the Independent
Directors without the presence of other Directors to discuss
matters and concerns relating to the Company.

9.6.3. (©)

Senior Independent Director

Compliant

The SID holds a meeting once a year with the Non Executive
Directors without the presence of the Chairperson to appraise the
Chairperson’s performance.
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CSE Rule Corporate Governance Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Reference | Principles Status

9.6.3. (&) Senior Independent Director Compliant The SID has made a disclosure demonstrating the effectiveness of
duties of the SID in page 327.

9.71and Fitness of Directors and CEO Compliant The Company ensures that the persons recommended by the

9.7.2 Nominations and Governance Committee fulfill the assessment
criteria set out in the Listing Rules

9.7.4 Fitness of Directors and CEO Complaint The Directors have provided the declaration confirming that they
satisfy the Fit and Proper Assessment Criteria during the financial
year and as at the date of such confirmation.

9.7.5 Disclosure in the Annual Report Compliant Page 04 of the Annual Report provides the relevant disclosure.

9.8.1 Minimum number of Directors Compliant The Board consisted of 13 Directors up to March 31, 2025. On
April 1, 2025, one independent non-executive director and an
executive director were appointed.

9.8.2 Independent Directors Compliant Five Directors are Independent

9.8.3 Independent Directors Compliant All NEDs have submitted their confirmations on Independence
as per the criteria set by the Company, which is in line with the
regulatory requirements.

9.8.5 Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Each Independent Director signed and submitted a declaration
regarding his/her independence.

9.9 Alternate Directors Not None of the Directors have appointed Alternate Directors

Applicable

9.10.1 Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Policy on maximum number of Directorships is disclosed in the
Policy on Matters relating to the Board.

9.10.2 Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Disclosed the appointments of new Directors to the Colombo
Stock Exchange, together with a brief resume of Director, capacity
of directorship and if they hold any relevant interest in shares of
the Listed Entity. Appointments are reviewed by the Nominations
and Governance Committee and recommended to the Board.
Please refer pages 32 to 35 for the brief resume of each Director.

9.10.3 Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant All changes to Board and Board Committees were immediately
informed to the Colombo Stock Exchange.

9.10.4 Disclosure relating to Directors Compliant Pages 72 to 74 of the Annual Report contains the relevant
information

9.11.1-3 Nominations and Governance Compliant The Parent Company’s Nominations and Governance Committee

Committee acted as the Nominations and Governance Committee of the
Company. The Company established its own Committee on 16th
May 2024. The Committee has written Terms of Reference. Refer
the Nominations and Governance Committee Report on page 318
9.11.4 Composition of the Nominations  Compliant The Nominations and Governance Committee comprises 5 Non
and Governance Committee Executive Directors, which includes 3 independent Directors
The Chairperson is an Independent Director.
9.11.5 Functions of the Nominations Compliant Refer the Nominations and Governance Committee Report on
and Governance Committee page 318

9.11.6 Disclosures in Annual Report Compliant Refer the Nominations and Governance Committee Report on
page 318

9.12.1 Remuneration Committee Compliant Refer the Remuneration Committee Report on page 320 and
Principles B1to B3 on page 91 of this Corporate Governance
Report.
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CSE Rule Corporate Governance Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Reference | Principles Status

9.12.6 Composition of the Compliant The Parent Company’s Remuneration Committee acted as
Remuneration Committee the Remuneration Committee of the Company. The Company

established its own Committee on 16th May 2024. The Committee
has written Terms of Reference. Refer the Remuneration
Committee Report on page 320

9.12.7 Functions of Remuneration Compliant The Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration
Committee payable to the Executive Directors.

9.12.8 Disclosure in the Annual Report Compliant The aggregate remuneration paid to Directors is given in note 06
relating to Remuneration to the financial statements on page 366.
Committee

refer the Remuneration committee Report on page 320

9.13.3 Composition of Audit Committee Compliant Refer Audit Committee Report on pages 324 to 326.

9.13.4 Audit Committee Functions Compliant

9.13.5 Disclosure in the Annual Report Compliant
relating to Audit Committee

9.14.2 Composition of the Related Party Compliant The RPTRC of the Parent Company acted as the RPTRC of the
Transactions Review Committee Company. The Company established its own Committee on 16th
(RPTRC) May 2024. The Committee has written Terms of Reference. Refer

the RPTRC Report on page 322

The current Committee comprises 5 Directors out of which 3
Directors are Independent.

9.14.3 Functions of RPTRC Compliant Please refer the Report of the RPTRC in page 322.
9.14.4 RPTRC Meetings Compliant RPTRC met 04 times on a quarterly basis during the Financial year
2024/25.
9.14.7 Immediate Disclosures Compliant Please refer Note 33 of the Notes to the Accounts on pages 393
to 394
9.14.8 Disclosure of Non-Recurrent Compliant Please refer Note 33 of the Notes to the Accounts on pages 393
and Recurrent Related Party to 394

Transactions

9.14.8.(3) The Report by the Related Party  Compliant Please refer the Report of the Related Party Transactions Review

Transaction Review Committee Committee on page 322
9.14.8.(4) An affirmative declaration by the Compliant Please refer the Annual Report of Board of Directors for an
Board of Directors affirmative statement of compliance of the Board on pages 312 to
317
9.17 Additional Disclosures Compliant Please refer the Report of the Board of Directors on pages 312 to
317
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Appendix lll: Compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka in 2023

Section 01
Compliance with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2023 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka.

Corporate Governance | Reference Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Principles of Code

Directors

A.1 The Board

The Company is headed by an effective Board of Directors with local and international experience. The Board of Directors of
the Company consists of professionals in the fields of accounting, management, law, economics, engineering, medical, banking,
marketing and business leaders. All Directors possess the skills and experience and knowledge complemented with a high sense
of integrity and independent judgment. The Board gives leadership in setting the strategic direction and establishing a sound
control framework for the successful functioning of the Company. Profiles of Directors are given on respective locations.

Board Meetings Al Complied The Board usually meets at quarterly intervals, but also meets more
frequently when needed. The Board met four times during the year under
review. Scheduled Board meetings were arranged well in advance to ensure
that all Directors could attend these meetings. The attendance at Board
meetings held is set out accordingly. Refer Page 70

Board Responsibilities  A.1.2 Complied The Board is responsible to the shareholders for creating and delivering
long-term sustainable shareholder value through the business. The Board
ensures the formulation and implementation of a sound business strategy.
The Board has put in place a Corporate Management team led by the
Managing Director with the required skills, experience and knowledge
necessary to implement the business strategy of the Company.

The Board also ensures effective systems are in place to secure integrity
of information, internal controls and risk management. It ensures that the
Company’s values and standards are set with an emphasis on adopting
appropriate accounting policies and fostering compliance with financial
regulations. Refer Page 71

Compliance with Al3 Complied The Board collectively and Directors individually, must act in accordance
laws and access with the laws applicable to the Company. The Company complied with
to independent all applicable laws and regulations during the year. A procedure has
professional advice been put in place for Directors to seek independent professional advice

in furtherance of their duties, at the Company’s expense. This will be
coordinated through the Company or the Company Secretaries when
requested. Refer Page 74

Company Secretary Al4 Complied All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretaries, Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited, as required. The
Company Secretaries keep the Board informed of new laws and revisions,
and regulations and requirements coming into effect which are relevant to
them as individual Directors and collectively to the Board. Refer Page 71

Independent A5 Complied All Directors exercise independent judgment in decisions made by the

Judgment Board on issues of strategy, performance, resource allocation and the
conduct of business.

Dedication of Al.6 Complied All Directors dedicate adequate time and effort to fulfilling their duties as

adequate time and Directors of the Company, before and after meetings, in order to ensure

effort by the Board that the duties and responsibilities owed to the Company are satisfactorily

and Board Committees discharged.
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Corporate Governance | Reference Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Principles of Code

Call for a Resolution A7 Complied Any Director can call for a resolution to be presented to the Board if

to be presented to the deemed necessary.

Board

Training for new and Al.8 Complied Both new and existing Directors of the Company are provided guidelines on
existing Directors general aspects of corporate governance and industry specific matters. In

this regard, the Directors have recognised the need for continuous training,
expansion of knowledge and to take part in professional development as
and when they consider it necessary and which would assist them to carry
out their duties as Directors.

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in order to ensure a balance
of power and authority, in such a way that any individual has no unfettered powers of decision-making

The Managing Director, who performs the role of the Chief Executive Officer in the Company, is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company.

Division of A.2 Complied The positions and functions of the Chairman and the Managing Director
Responsibilities of ('MD") have been separated. The Chairman’s main responsibility is to lead,
the Chairman and direct and manage the work of the Board in order to ensure that it operates
Managing Director effectively and fully discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities.
(CEO) The role of the MD is to manage the day-to-day running of the Company

and recommend strategies to the Board. The MD leads the Corporate
Management team in making and executing operational decisions.

A.3 Chairman’s Role

The Chairman leads and manages the Board, ensuring that it discharges its legal and regulatory responsibilities effectively and
fully preserves order and facilitates the effective discharge of the Board functions.

Role of the Chairman A.31 Complied The Chairman is as an outstanding business leader who provides leadership
to the Board, preserves order at Board meetings and provides the Board
with strategic direction and guidance in managing the affairs of the
Company.

The Chairman is also responsible for ensuring effective participation of
both Executive and Non-Executive Directors at meetings. All Directors
are encouraged to make effective contribution, within their respective
capabilities, for the benefit of the Company.

A.4 Financial Acumen

The Code requires that the Board comprises Members with sufficient financial acumen and knowledge in order to offer guidance
on matters on finance. The Board of the Company has met the above requirement as some of the Board Members are qualified
accountants having professional qualifications and are equipped with sufficient financial acumen and knowledge to offer
guidance on matters of finance.

Financial Acumen and A.4 Complied As at the date of this Report, the Board comprised four (04) Chartered
Knowledge Accountants (CA Sri Lanka) and six (06) Management Accountant. One
of them serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee. These Directors add
substantial value and independent judgment to the decision-making of the
Board on matters concerning finance and investment.
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Corporate Governance | Reference
of Code

Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Principles

A.5 Board Balance

The Code requires that a balance is maintained between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) so that no individual
or a small group of individual Directors are able to dominate the Board’s decision-making.

The Board consists of Seven (07) Executive Directors and Eight (8) Non-Executive Directors. Each of them brings to the Board
wide experience and the ability to exercise independence and judgment when taking informed decisions.

Presence of Non- A.51 Complied Eight (8) of the Fifteen (15) Directors are Non-Executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Independent Non- A.5.2 Complied Five (5) out of Eight (8) Non-Executive Directors are independent as

Executive Directors defined by the Code and the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Criteria to Evaluate A.5.3 Complied Please refer Section A.5.5 below. The Board considers Non-Executive

Independence of Non- Director’s independence on an annual basis. All Independent Directors

Executive Directors are independent of management and free of any business or any other
relationship that could materially interfere with or could reasonably be
perceived to materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment.

Annual Declaration of A.5.4 Complied Each Non-Executive Director has submitted a declaration stating

Independence - Non- the independence or non-independence in a prescribed format. This

Executive Directors information is made available to the Board.

Determination of A.5.5 Complied The Board has determined the independence of Directors based on

Independence of the the declarations submitted by the Non-Executive Directors, as to their

Board independence as a fair representation and will continue to evaluate their
independence on this basis annually.

Alternate Directors A.5.6 Complied None of the Directors of the Company have appointed Alternate Directors.

Senior Independent A.5.7 Complied Since the Chairman is not an Independent Director, Mr. PY.S. Perera,

Director Independent Non-Executive Director has been appointed as the Senior
Independent Director (SID) of the Company. The SID is the Director to
whom concerns can be conveyed if a need arises. The SID Report is
enclosed in statement by the Senior Independent Director. Refer Page 84

Confidential A.5.8 Complied A SID is available for confidential discussions with other Directors who may

discussions with Senior have concerns which pertain to significant issues that are detrimental to the

Independent Director Company.

Chairman’s meeting A.5.9 Complied The Chairman meets with the Non-Executive Directors without the

of Non-Executive presence of Executive Directors, whenever necessary.

Directors

Recording of Concerns A.5.10 Complied Concerns raised by the Directors which cannot be unanimously resolved

in Board Minutes

during the year, if any, are recorded in the Board Minutes with adequate
details.

A.6 Supply of Information

Management should provide time-bound information in a format that is appropriate and enables the Board to discharge its
duties. Financial and non-financial information is analysed and presented to the Board to make informed and accurate decisions.

Obligation of the
Management to
provide appropriate
and timely information
to the Board

A.6.1

Complied

The Board was provided with timely and appropriate information by

the Management by way of Board papers. The Board sought additional
information as and when necessary. The Chairman also ensured all Directors
were properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings.
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Corporate Governance | Reference
Principles of Code

Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Circulation of papers
for meetings in a
timely manner

A.6.2

Complied

The minutes, agenda and papers required for Board meetings are circulated
7 days prior to a Board meeting to facilitate effective conduct and
discussion at meetings.

A.7 Appointments to the Board

The Code requires having a formal and transparent procedure in place for the appointment of new Directors to the Board.

Nomination A.71 Complied The Company formally appointed its own Nominations and Governance

Committee Committee ('NGC") on 16th May 2024. The NGC comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Director. Mr.
PY.S.Perea, who is the SID of the Company serves as the Chairman of the
NGC. Other Members are K.D.G Gunaratne, S.C.Ganegoda, M.N.R. Fernando
and Prof. A.P. De Silva. Please refer the NGC Report. Refer Page 318

Assessment of A.7.2 Complied Based on the recommendation of the NGC, the Board annually assesses

Board Composition Board composition to ascertain whether the combined knowledge and

by the Nomination experience of the Board matches the strategic demands facing the

Committee Company. The findings of such assessment are taken into account when
new Board appointments are considered. Please refer NGC Report. Refer
Page 318

Disclosure of Required A.7.4 Complied When new Directors are appointed, a brief resume of each such Director,

Details to Shareholders including the nature of expertise, names of companies in which the Director

on New Appointments holds directorships, memberships in Board Sub-Committees etc., are

to the Board reported to the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) in addition to disclosing
this information in the Annual Report. Further, any changes in the details
provided by the Directors are disseminated to the CSE without delay. The
profiles of the above Directors are given on Board of Directors. Refer Page
36

Report of the NGC in A.7.5 Complied Please refer NGC Report. Refer Page 318

the Annual Report

Terms of Reference of A.7.6 Complied The NGC has comprehensive Terms of Reference, which include the

NGC

composition and functions of the NGC.

A.8 Re-Election

The Code requires all Directors to submit themselves for re-election at regular intervals and at least once every three years.

Appointment of Non-
Executive Directors

A.8.1

Complied

The provisions of the Company’s Articles require a Director appointed

by the Board to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting and

seek reappointment by the shareholders at that meeting. The Articles of
Association of the Company call for one-third of the Directors in office
(excluding the Managing Director) to retire at each Annual General Meeting.
The Directors who retire are those who have served for the longest period
after their appointment/reappointment. Retiring Directors are generally
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. S. C. Ganegoda, Mr. N. A. R. R. S.
Nanayakkara, Mr. B. K. C. R. Ratnasiri and Ms. K. A. D. B. Perera, retire by
rotation and being eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Election of Directors
by Shareholders

A.8.2

Complied

The names of the Directors submitted for election or re-election are
accompanied by a resume to enable shareholders to make an informed
decision on their election at the AGM.
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Corporate Governance | Reference Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Principles of Code

Prior Communication A.8.3 Complied In the event of a Director resigning prior to the completion of the appointed
of Resignation of a term, a written communication is provided to the Board of his/her reasons
Director for resignation.

A.9 Appraisal of Board Performance

The Board should periodically appraise its own performance against the present targets in order to ensure that the Board
responsibilities are satisfactorily discharged.

Annual Performance A91&9.2 Complied The Board undertakes an annual self-evaluation of its own performance and
Evaluation of the of its Committees. The Board evaluated its performance and effectiveness
Board and its in the year under review.

Committees

Evaluation at Re- A.9.3 Complied Board reviews the participation, contribution and engagement of each
Election Director at the time of re-election

Disclosure on A.9.4 Complied Evaluation criteria with regard to Executive Directors are financial and
Performance non-financial targets set at the beginning of the year through the annual
Evaluation Criteria corporate plan. Criteria relating to evaluation of Board Committees are the

performance against their duties referred in respective committee reports.

A.10 Disclosure of Information in Respect of Directors

Details in respect of each Director should be disclosed in the Annual Report for the benefit of the shareholders

Details in Respect of A.10.1 Complied The following details pertaining to each Director are disclosed as follows:

Directors ) ) ) ) )
a) Brief profile with expertise and experience.

b) Directors’ Interest in transactions and shareholding.
c) Attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year.

A.11 Appraisal of Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors should annually assess the performance of the Managing Director who performs the role of the Chief
Executive Officer

Targets for Managing A Complied Prior to the commencement of each financial year, the Board sets

Director reasonable financial and non-financial targets which are in line with short,
medium and long-term objectives of the Company, achievement of which
should be ensured by the Managing Director.

Evaluation of the A2 Complied The performance is evaluated by the Board at each Board Meeting
Performance of the and the overall evaluation at the end of each fiscal year in order to
Managing Director ascertain whether the targets set by the Board have been achieved and

if not, whether the failure to meet such targets was reasonable in the
circumstances.

Directors’ Remuneration

B.1 Remuneration Procedure

This principle ensures that the Company has a well-established, formal and transparent procedure in place for developing an
effective Remuneration Policy for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors where no Director is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration in order to avoid potential conflict of interest.

Remuneration Policy B.1 Complied The Company has a formal and transparent procedure for fixing
remuneration of Executives and Directors. No Director is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration. Refer Page 312
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B.2 The Level and Make-Up of Remuneration

The level of remuneration of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors should be sufficient to attract and retain the Directors
needed to run the Company successfully. A proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration should be structured to link rewards
to the corporate and individual performance.

Level and Make-Up B.2.1 Complied The Board is mindful of the fact that the remuneration of Executive

of the Remuneration Directors should reflect the market expectations and is sufficient enough to

Packages of Executive attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors of required competence in

Directors order to run the Company.

Establishment of B.2.1 Complied The Company formally appointed its own Remuneration Committee on

a Remuneration 16th May 2024. The Committee is required to decide on the remuneration

Committee of the Executive Directors and sets guidelines for the remuneration of the
management staff within the Group. The Chairman and Managing Director
are not members of this Committee. Please refer Remuneration Committee
report.

Composition of B.2.2 Complied The Remuneration Committee comprised three Independent Non-Executive

Remuneration Directors and two Non-Executive Directors.

Committee The SID serves as the Chairman of this Committee. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. P.Y.S. Perera, Mr. K. D.
G. Gunaratne, Mr. M. N. R. Fernando, Prof. A. P. De Silva and Mr. S. C.
Ganegoda.

Consultation of the B.2.3 Complied The Remuneration Committee has the authority to seek internal and

Chairman and Access external independent professional advice on remuneration of other

to Professional Advice Executive Directors and also on matters falling within its purview at the
Company’s expense. Views of the Chairman of the Company is obtained, in
addition to the views of the Managing Director.

Determination of B.2.4 Complied The Remuneration Committee structures the remuneration package to

Remuneration of the attract, retain and motivate the Directors needed to run the Company

Executive Directors successfully but avoid paying more than is necessary for this purpose. The
remuneration levels relative to other companies and performance of the
Directors are taken into account when considering the remuneration levels
of the Directors.

Executive Directors’ B.2.5 Complied Executive Directors’ remuneration has been designed to promote short,

remuneration medium and long term success of the Company.

Competitiveness B.2.6 Complied The Remuneration Committee ensures that the remuneration of Executives

in Levels of of each level of Management including Executive Directors is competitive

Remuneration and in line with their performance.

Comparisons of B.2.7 Complied The Remuneration Committee reviews data concerning Executive pay

Remuneration with among the Group Companies.

Other Companies in

the Group

Performance- B.2.8 Complied Performance-based incentives have been determined by the Remuneration

related elements of Committee to ensure that the total earnings of the Executive Directors

Remuneration for are aligned with the achievement of objectives and budgets of the Group

Executive Directors companies.

Executive Share B.2.9 N/A Presently the Group does not have an Executive Share Option Scheme.

Options
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Designing Schemes of  B.2.10 Complied The Remuneration Committee follows the provisions set out in Schedule G
Related Remuneration of the Code as required.

Early termination of B.2.1 Complied Termination of Executive Directors are governed by their contracts of
Executive Directors service/employment.

Levels of B.2.14 Complied Remuneration for Non-Executive Directors reflects the time commitment
Remuneration and responsibilities of their role, taking into consideration market practices.
of NonExecutive Non-Executive Directors are paid a quarterly fee and a Board meeting
Directors attendance fee on a quarterly basis.

Report of the B.2.15 Complied Please refer Remuneration Committee Report. Refer Page 320
Remuneration

Committee in the

Annual Report

Terms of Reference B.2.16 Complied The Remuneration Committee has comprehensive Terms of Reference,

of Remuneration
Committee

which include its composition and functions.

B.3 Disclosure of Remuneration

The Code requires the Company to disclose in its Annual Report the details of the remuneration paid and the Remuneration

Policy

Disclosure of B.3.1
Remuneration

Complied

Please refer Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the Affairs of the
Company for the total Directors’ remuneration.

Relations with Shareholders

C.1 Constructive Use of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Conduct of General Meetings

The Code requires the Board to use the AGM, which is a major event in the Company’s calendar, to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their active participation. In this regard, all shareholders of the Company receive the Notice of

Meeting within the statutory due dates.

Adeqguate Notice Cla Complied A copy of the Annual Report including Financial Statements, Notice of the

of the AGM to Meeting and the Form of Proxy are sent to shareholders 15 working days

Shareholders prior to the date of the AGM, as required by the statute, in order to provide
the opportunity to all the shareholders to attend the AGM.,

Separate Resolution Cl1.2 Complied The Board remains mindful of being accountable to shareholders and the

for Substantially need for transparency at all levels, striving to maintain its value framework

Separate Issues and in all shareholder dealings and communications. The Company proposes

Adoption of Annual a separate resolution at the AGM on each substantially separate issue.

Report and Accounts Further, the adoption of the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the
Affairs of the Company and Audited Financial Statements together with the
Report of the Auditors thereon are considered as a separate resolution.

Use of Proxy Votes Cl13 Complied The Company has in place an effective mechanism to count all proxies
lodged on each resolution, and the balance for and against the resolution,
after it has been dealt with on a show of hands, except where a poll is
called.

Availability of all Cl4 Complied The Chairman of the Company ensures the Chairmen of all Board

Board Sub Committee Committees are available to answer questions at the AGM, if so requested

Chairmen at the AGM by the Chairman.

Circulation of Cl15 Complied The procedure for voting at the AGM is circulated to the shareholders with

procedure governing
voting at AGM

the Notice of AGM.
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The Code requires the Board to implement effective communication with shareholders.

Channel to Reach all C.21 Complied The main mode of communication between the Company and the

Shareholders Shareholders is the AGM. Shareholders are provided with the information
relating to the Company prior to the AGM. Further, financial and other
announcements are promptly submitted to the CSE to publish on the CSE
website.

Policy Methodology C.2.2 Complied An Open Door Policy is in place, which enables shareholders to keep in

for Communication constant touch, visit and obtain information from the Company Secretaries,

with Shareholders Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited and engage in dialogue. Contact
details are published in all annual and quarterly financial reporting. The
Company has a Shareholder Communication and Relations policy and it is
published on the corporate website https://www.dplgroup.com/policies/

Implementation C.2.3 Complied Please refer C.2.4 and C.2.5 for the implementation of the policy and

of the Policy and methodology.

Methodology for

Communication with

Shareholders

Contact Person for C.24 & C.2.6 Complied Details of contact persons are disclosed in the back inner cover of the

Communication Annual Report and Quarterly Financial Statements. Shareholders may
contact the Company Secretaries i.e Hayleys Group Services (Private)
Limited (R. De Silva) on +94112627654 for queries regarding their
shareholding.

Process to make C.2.5 Complied The Company Secretary maintains a record of all correspondence received

Directors Aware from shareholders. All major issues and concerns of the shareholders are

of Major Issues referred to the Board of Directors with the views of the Management.

and Concerns of

Shareholders

Response to the c.2.7 Complied The process for responding to shareholder matters has been formulated by

Shareholders’ Matters

the Board and disclosed. Such process include responding to shareholders
during shareholder meetings, publications on the Colombo Stock Exchange
or through communication by the Company Secretary to the shareholders.

C.3 Major Transactions

Directors should disclose to shareholders all proposed corporate transactions which, if entered into, would materially alter/vary
the Company’s net asset base or the consolidated Group’s net asset base.

Disclosure on C.3.1 Complied During the year, there were no major transactions as defined by Section
Proposed Major 185 of the Companies Act which materially affect the net asset base of the
Transactions Company or the Group’s consolidated net asset base.

Shareholders’ C.3.2&C.3.3 Complied During the year, there were no transactions/events which required approval

Approval by Special
Resolution

of the shareholders by way of a special resolution. The Company complied
with the disclosure requirements of the CSE in this regard.

Accountability and Audit

D.1 Financial and Business Reporting

The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s financial position, performance and

prospects.

94

DIPPED PRODUCTS PLC | Annual Report 2024/25



Corporate Governance | Reference Compliance | DPL’s Extent of Adoption

Principles of Code

Board’s responsibility D11&D.1.2 Complied The Board has recognised the responsibility to present regulatory and

for Statutory and statutory reporting in a balanced and understandable manner. When

Regulatory Reporting preparing quarterly and annual financial statements, the Company

that is true and complied with the requirements of the Companies Act and prepared and

fair, balance and presented them in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and

understandable Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards. The Company complied with the
reporting requirements prescribed by the CSE.

Declaration by Chief D.1.3 Complied Chief Financial Officer has made all required declarations in the

Executive Officer and ‘Responsibility Statement of Chairman, Managing Director and Chief

Chief Financial Officer Financial Officer’ and the ‘Statement of Directors’ Responsibility. See the

on the Financial ‘Auditors’ Report’ for the reporting responsibility of Auditors. Refer Page

Reporting 328

Declaration by Board D1.4 Complied Directors have made all necessary declarations. Refer the Directors’ Report
in Annual report. Refer Page 312

Statement of D.15 Complied These statements are given in the ‘Annual Report of the Board of Directors’

Boards and Auditors and the ‘Statement of Directors’ Responsibility’ and pertains to required

Responsibility and declarations.

Statement of Internal

Control Refer Page 28

Management D.1.6 Complied Refer Joint Statement of the Chairman the Managing Director’.

Discussion and

Analysis

Summon an EGM to D.1.7 Complied Reason for such an EGM has not risen as yet but would be complied with if

Notify Serious Loss of such a situation arises.

Capital

Disclosure of Related D.1.8 Complied The Directors have instituted an effective and comprehensive system of

Party Transactions

internal control for identifying, recording and disclosing related party
transactions. All related party transactions, as defined in Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard - (LKAS 24) on Related Party Transactions, are
disclosed in Note 33 to Financial Statements.

D.2 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board should have a sound system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets.

Annual Evaluation of D.2.1,D.2.1.1, Complied The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control and its
the Internal Controls D.2.1.2, effectiveness. Internal control is established with emphasis placed on
System D.2.1.3 safeguarding assets, making available accurate and timely information

and imposing greater discipline on decision-making. It covers all

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management. It is important to state, however, that any system can
ensure only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that errors and
irregularities are prevented or detected within a reasonable time. The
Hayleys Management Audit & System Review Department (MA & SRD)
plays a significant role in assessing the effectiveness and successful
implementation of existing controls and strengthening these and
establishing new controls where necessary. The MA & SRD’s reports are
made available to the Chairman and Managing Director and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of

the system of financial controls for the period up to the date of signing
the accounts. There is a direct channel of communication between the
Head of MA & SRD and the Chairman of the Audit Committee without the
interference of any Directors or Executives.
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Directors’ D.2.2 & Complied The Board has established a process to ensure internal controls are
Responsibility of D2.21 designed, implemented and monitored, to provide reasonable assurance of
Maintaining a Sound the achievement of an entity’s objectives on reliability of financial reporting,
Internal Control effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable
System laws and regulations. The board obtains a review of the effectiveness
of the internal control systems. Please refer Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities. Refer Page 329
Need for Internal Audit D.2.2.2 Complied The Hayleys Management Audit & System Review Department (MA & SRD)
Function is responsible for the internal audit function of the Company and Group.
Review of the Process D.2.2.3 Complied The Audit Committee reviews internal control issues and risk management

and Effectiveness of
Risk Management and
Internal Control

measures and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems including financial reporting.

D.3 Audit Committee

The Board should have formal and transparent arrangements in selecting and applying the accounting policies, financial
reporting and internal control principles and maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s External Auditor.

Composition of the D.3.1
Audit Committee

Complied

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Non Executive Directors
i.e. Mr. PY.S. Perera (Chairman), Mr. M.N.R. Fernando and Ms. A.l.
Wanigasekera. A majority of the Members have relevant experience in
financial reporting and control. Please refer Audit Committee report.

Hayleys Group Services (Private) limited, the Company Secretaries serves
as its Secretary. The Chairman, Managing Director, CFO and Hayleys Group
CFO are invited to attend meetings as required. The input of the statutory
auditors will be obtained where necessary.

The Audit Committee is required to help the Company to achieve a balance
between conformance and performance. Refer Page 326

Duties of the Audit D.3.2
Committee

Complied

The Audit Committee keeps under review the scope and results of the audit
and its effectiveness, and the independence and objectivity of the auditors.
Review of nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the auditors
to seek balance objectivity and independence.

Refer Audit Committee report for the duties of the Audit Committee. Refer
Page 326

Terms of Reference of D.3.2
the Audit Committee

Complied

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined in the Charter
of the Audit Committee approved by the Board of Directors. This clearly
explains the purpose of the Committee, its duties and responsibilities
together with the scope and functions of the Committee. The Committee

is required mainly to deal with the matters pertaining to statutory and
regulatory compliance in financial reporting, matters with regard to the
External Auditors, Internal Audit and Risk Management procedures of the
Company. Please refer Audit Committee report. Refer Page 326

Disclosures of the D.3.3
Audit Committee

Complied

Please refer Audit Committee report. Refer Page 326

Risk Committee D.4

Complied

The scope of the Audit Committee has been widened to include risk
management duties. Refer to the Audit Committee Report of this Annual
Report for further information. Refer Page 326
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D.5 Related Party Transactions Review Committee

The Company should establish a procedure that it will not engage in “Related Party Transactions” which is more favourable
treatment than with third parties in the normal course of business.

Adhere to LKAS 24 D.5.1 Complied The Company adopts the definition of a related party and related party
transactions as defined in LKAS 24.

Related Party D.5.2 Complied The Committee makes recommendations and gives directions to the Board.

Transactions Review The Company established its own Related Party Transactions Review

Committee Committee (RPTRC) on May 16, 2024. Please refer RPTRC Report. Refer
Page 322

Terms of References D.5.3 Complied The RPTRC has written Terms of Reference.

of Related Party
Transactions Review
Committee

D.6 Code of Business Conducted and Ethics

The Company should develop a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Members of the Senior Management
team and must promptly disclose any waivers of the Code for Directors or others.

Code of Business D.6.1 Complied The Directors and the Members of the Senior Management are bound by
Conduct and Ethics the ‘Hayleys Way’ which is the code of business conduct and ethics of
the Hayleys Group. The Company adopted the Internal Code of business
conduct and Ethics Policy with effect from October 1, 2024. This Code
addresses conflict of interest, corporate opportunities, confidentiality
of information, fair dealing, protection and proper use of the Company’s
assets, compliance with laws and regulations and encouraging the reporting
of any illegal or unethical behaviour, among a range of other criteria.

Material and Price D.6.2 Complied Material and price sensitive information is promptly identified and reported

Sensitive Information to the shareholders via Colombo Stock Exchange notices.

Policy and Disclosures D.6.3 Complied The Company has a policy and process for monitoring and disclosure of

on Share Purchases by shares purchased by any Director, key management personnel or any other

Directors employee involved in financial reporting. All disclosures are duly made in
the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Policy on D.6.4 Complied The Company adopted the Policy on Whistleblowing with effect from

Whistleblowing October1,2024.

Training on Code of D.6.5.& D.6.6 Complied The Company conducts trainings about the Business Conduct to its

Business Conduct employees on regular basis and to new employees upon them joining the

and Dissemination of Group.

information

Affirmative Statement D.6.7 Complied Refer the Joint Statement by the Chairman and Managing Director’ for

by the Chairman required details. Refer Page 28

D.7 Corporate Governance Disclosure

Directors of the Company disclose annually the Company’s adherence to the Code of Best Practices on Corporate Governance
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Disclosure of D.7.1 Complied This requirement is met through the presentation of this report.
Corporate Governance
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E. Institutional Investors

E.1 Shareholders’ Voting

Institutional shareholders are required to make considered use of their votes and are encouraged to ensure their voting intentions

are translated into practice.

Communication with ET
Shareholders

Complied

In order to avoid conflicts of interest by nurturing mutual understanding,
the Board carries out dialogues with its shareholders at General Meetings.
In this regard, the AGM of the Company plays a critical role. Voting by the
shareholders is crucial in carrying a resolution at the AGM. The Chairman,
who plays the role of the agent, commmunicates the views and queries of the
shareholders to the Board and the Senior Management, in order to ensure
that the views are properly communicated to the Company.

E.2 Evaluation of Governance Disclosures

The Code requires the Company to encourage institutional investors to give due weightage to all relevant factors drawn to their

attention

Due weightage by E2 Complied The institutional investors are encouraged to give due weightage to all

Institutional Investors relevant matters relating to Board structure and composition.

F. Other Investors

F.1 Investing/Divesting Decisions

Seek Independent F1 Complied Individual investors are encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek

Advice independent advice in investing or divesting decisions. The Company’s
website serves to provide a wide range of information on the Group.

F.2 Shareholder Voting

Encourage Voting by F.2 Complied Individual shareholders are encouraged to participate in General Meetings

Individual Investors

of the Company and exercise their voting rights.

G. Internet of Things and Cybersecurity

Internal and External IT G.1 Complied Connection of internal and external IT devices to the organisation network
Devices Connected to has been allowed with necessary access controls and firewalls to safeguard
the Business Model the integrity of information.

Cyber Information G.2 Complied The Hayleys Group Chief Information Security Officer (CISO) continuously
Security Officer and monitors and reviews the security requirements of the Company’s

Cyber Security Risk information system and has introduced and implemented a Cyber Security
Management Policy Risk Management Policy.

Discussions on Cyber G.3 Complied This is a regular agenda item of the risk management discussion of the
Risk Management Board and has been given due attention.

Independent G.4 Complied Periodic reviews are carried out by the external auditors and consultants
Periodic Reviews and and observations are submitte